

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

CALENDAR 1975-1976

Cover: Post-Graduate Hall Complex



UNIVERSITY HEADQUARTERS 大 学 本 部 现有非复物 Existing Buildings -1 Benjamin Franklin Centre 治古原推 the second second second second second second 2. University Administration Building 行赴大楼 大學圖書館 大器科學館 5. 中国文化研究所 6 大學保健醫療中心 7 (Belle ale Marine Science Laboratory 8 海洋科學研究中心 9 拉基住字 10 Senior Staff Quarters Phase I 高級教職員住宅(·I) Senior Staff Quarters Phase II 11 高級教職員住宅(Ⅱ) Senior Staff Quarters Phase III 12 高級教職員住宅(Ⅲ) 13. Joint Minor Staff Quarters Phase I 减工宿舍(I) 14 博子站 Proposed Additions -增設建築物 Business Administration, Economics & Public Administration ... 15 工商管理、經濟及公共行政學大樓 16 大學就解事務大樓 17. 综合教室大博 18 大學禮堂 19 AF\$ 生完合 20 4- 10. 54 -5 52 21. 間祖免爵士堂 22 机波方能 22 计任禄 24 高级最限目宿会(IV及V) 25 Joint Minor Staff Quarters Phase II 减工完合(II) UNITED COLLEGE 聯合書院 現有建築物 Existing Buildings -1. 文學院及行政大樓 2 181-1-52 3 Commerce & Social Science Building 商举及社會科學學院大樓 Staff/Student Amenities Building 4 師生原梅中心 5. 湯若望宿余 6 除养住家 Proposed Addition -過計非 流物 藏首宿舍 NEW ASIA COLLEGE 新 亞 書 15 現有建築物 Existing Buildings -Administration & Fine Arts Building 行政及抵御大樓 1. 剧北皖 2 文商大樓 Staff/Student Amenities Building 4 師生康興中心 5. 是生宿舍 6. 除品住宅 Proposed Additions -增設建築物 7. 推復中心 8 缺日宿余 9 學生宿舍 CHUNG CHI COLLEGE 崇 基 書 Re-现有建築物 Existing Buildings -行政樓 1 教学侠 2 3 18-1-42 7 + 4 4 5 音樂大樓 6. 7. it 11.5 8 科學樓 9. 室内评纳湯 10 墨生宿余 11. S. & (1 1). 12 机体员行车 13 教職首聯治金 14 北工宿舍 15. 减工宿余 Proposed Additions -增設建築物 16 學生宿余 17 单身截赖首宿会 18 18 L 74 6







THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

Calendar

1975-1976

Please address correspondence to ---

The Registrar, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Cable Address: SINOVERSITY

Information as in November 1975.

CONTENTS

Almanac, 1975-7	76	 	• •	 	 	 	 ••	1

Page

PART I Establishment

Officers of the University	••	••	• •	••	••	••	••		••	••	13
The Council	•••	••	••	••			••			••	14
Council Committees	••	••	•••	••	••	••	••				18
The Senate	••		• •	• •	••	•••		•••	• •	••	20
Senate Committees	••	••	• •	••	•••	••		••		••	21
Advisory Boards on Academ	nic N	Aatte	rs		••	••	••			• •	24
The Graduate Council	••				••	••	•••			• •	26
Boards of Faculties	• •				•••	••		••	••		27
Boards and Committees of	Stuc	lies			••	• •		• •		••	29
The Undergraduate Examin	atio	ns B	oard		• •	•••		••	• •		42
The Matriculation Board	••			•••	• •	•••		••	••		42
External Examiners		••		• •	••	•••		••	••		43
Deans	• •	••	• •		••		• •		•••		51
Professors, Visiting Professo	ors,	Read	ers a	and	Seni	or L	ectu	rers	• •		52
Directors of Institutes and I	Rese	arch	Cen	tres	••			•••			57
Boards and Committees		•••	••		••		••	••			58
Administrative Officers		•••	••	••	••	• •	••	• •			61

PART II General Information

Origin	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	67
University Motto, Colours and Emblem							• •	69
Caps, Gowns and Hoods	••		••		••		••	70
Land and Buildings	••	••	•••					71
Finance							••	74
Faculties, Degrees and Diplomas					• •			74
Undergraduate Teaching	••	•••		••		••		75
The University Library	••		• •		••	••	• •	76
Computer Services Terminal	••	••		••			••	78
Admission	••	••			••			79
Fees		••	••	•••	••			79

												Page
Scholarships, Bursaries	and	Fina	incial	Aid	to	Studer	nts	••	••	••	••	80
Student Hostels	••	••	• •	•••	••	••			••	••	••	88
University Health Serv	vice			••	••		••	••	••			89
Appointments Service		••			••	••		••		••	••	89
Publications Office		••	••	•••	••	••	••	••	••	••		90
Liaison with the Worl	d of	Lear	ning	•••	••		••	••	••	••	••	90
Calendar and Bulletin	••		••	••	••	••	•••	••	••		••	92

PART III Foundation Colleges

Chung Chi College	• •	••	••		••		••	••	••	••	••	93
New Asia College .	 	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	108
United College .	 	•••	••	••	••	•••	••	••	••	••	••	122

PART IV Postgraduate Schools, Institutes and University Extensions

Graduate School	••	••	••	137
School of Education	••	••	• •	150
Lingnan Institute of Business Administration	•••	••		153
Institutes and Research Centres	••	••	••	156
Department of Extramural Studies		•••		168
The New Asia - Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre	• •	••	••	170

PART V Regulations

Matriculation Regulations, 1976	••	••	••	••	••	173
Regulations for the Degree Examination, 1976	••	• •	•••			177
Regulations of the University Library System	••	• •		••	•••	185

PART VI Graduates Honoris Causa

Graduates Honoris Cau	ısa	••	••		••		• •	••	••	• •	191
-----------------------	-----	----	----	--	----	--	-----	----	----	-----	-----

		0/61-0/61		
1975 August	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
1 F	Academic Year 1975-76 begins	Academic Year 1975-76 begins	Academic Year 1975-76 begins	Academic Year 1975-76 begins
4 M	The First Monday in August — General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
5 T 8 F	AAPC meeting	College Council Meeting 5:30 p.m.	Academic Board Meeting 2:30 p.m.	
12 T 15 F	AAPC meeting		College Council Meeting 2:30 p.m.	College Council Meeting — 5:30 p.m.
19 T	AAPC meeting			
20 W		Registration of 1st year students	Registration of 1st year students	Registration of 1st year students
25 M	Liberation Day — General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
26 T	Council meeting/AAPC meeting	Orientation of new		
29 F		orientation of new students ends		
September	Т			
1 M		Registration and selection of courses for 2nd year students	Registration and selection of courses for 2nd year students	Registration and selection of courses for 2nd year students

A L M A N A C 1975-1976

1975 Septe	1975 September	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
2	T	AAPC meeting	Registration and selection of courses for 3rd year	Registration and selection of courses for 3rd year	Registration and selection of courses for 3rd year
ŝ	M		students Registration and selection of courses for 4th year	students Registration and selection of courses for 4th year	students Registration and selection of courses for 4th year
	Th		Orientation of New Staff Selection of courses for 1st year students	Selection of courses for lst year students	Selection of courses for lst year students
۲Ċ	Ц		Action of courses for 	Selection of courses for 1st year students	Selection of courses for 1st year students
×	M	First Term (Teaching) begins	First Term (Teaching) begins	First Term (Teaching) begins	First Term (Teaching) begins
9 12	T 4	AAPC meeting	College Council Meeting 5:30 p.m.	Monthly Assembly — 11:30 a.m.	2
16	T	AAPC meeting			
17	W	Senate APC meeting			
18	$\mathbf{T}\mathbf{h}$				Student Hostel
19	ц				Management Advisory Committee — 2:30 p.m. College Bulletin Committee
20	S		Last day for adding courses	Last day for adding courses	Last day for change of major/minor and adding
					courses

	ı	-			
1975 Septe	1975 September	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
22	Μ	The Day following the Chinese Mid- Autumn Festival Day — General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
23	Ч	AAPC meeting	Last day for application for change of major/minor for 3rd year students		
26	ſĽ		Cross Harbour Swimming Last day for dropping Race courses	Last day for dropping courses	Staff/Student Consultative Committee — 2:30 p.m.
27	s		Last day for dropping courses	The day before Founder's Last day for dropping Day (Classes suspended and offices dosed)	Last day for dropping courses
30	Т	Council meeting/AAPC meeting			
October	ober				

Finance Committee — 3:00 p.m. Monthly Assembly — College Council Meeting — 5:30 p.m.	Double Tenth (offices closed)	(offices closed) (offices closed)
Academic Board Meeting 	Joint Staff/Student Advisory Committee Meeting — 7:30 p.m. College Council Meeting (office — 5:30 p.m.	(offices closed)
A	AAPC meeting Senate meeting JC	Chung Yeung Festival — General Holiday (offices closed) AAPC meeting
s F Th	Т № Д п	13 M 14 T
α ω 4	7 8 9 0 1	13 14

1975 October	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
16 Th 17 F	University Foundation Day University Swimming Gala — Classes suspended	University Foundation Day University Swimming Gala Classes suspended	University Foundation Day University Swimming Gala — Classes suspended Academic Board Meeting — 2:30 p.m.	Amenities Building Management Committee - 2:30 p.m. University Foundation Day University Swimming Gala - Classes suspended
20 M				College Foundation Day
21 T 22 W 24 F	AAPC meeting University Congregation	University Congregation	University Congregation College Council Meeting — 2:30 p.m.	University Congregation Board of Faculty of Science Meeting
28 T 29 W	Council meeting/AAPC meeting			Board of Faculty of Arts Meeting — 10:30 a.m. Board of Faculty of Business Administration
30 Th			-	Meeting — 10:50 a.m. Board of Faculty of Social Science Meeting
31 F		Founders' Day		— 10:30 a.m. Library Committee — 2:30 p.m.
November				
4 T 6 Th	AAPC meeting	Academic Board Meeting		
7 F		.111.0 0 0. 2	Monthly Assembly — 11:30 a.m.	Academic Board Meeting 2:30 p.m.

i				•	
1975 November	mber	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
11 1 12 V 14 H	Туч	AAPC meeting Senate APC meeting	Board of Governors' Meeting — 5:30 p.m.		Student Welfare Committee — 2:30 p.m.
18 1 20 1	ьĘ	AAPC meeting			Student Hostel Management Advisory Committee — 2:30 p.m.
25 1 28 H 29 S	Нщ s	Council meeting/AAPC meeting	College Athletic Meet	Student Union Assembly (Classes suspended 11:30 a.m. to 1:15 p.m.)	Staff/Student Consultative Committee — 2:30 p.m.
December	nber				
2 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 2 2	T Th F	AAPC meeting	Academic Board Meeting 2:30 p.m.	Monthly Assembly & award of prizes for the first term — 11:30 a.m.	Board of Trustees 4:30 p.m.
9 10 110 112 E	S F W	AAPC meeting Senate meeting First Term (Teaching) ends	College Council Meeting — 5:30 p.m. First Term (Teaching) ends	First Term (Teaching) ends	First Term (Teaching) ends

١N

1975				V LC V AILLI V	9
December UNIVERSII I	UNIVERSII I		CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
M	3	റ്	Course Examination begins	Final Examination begins	Christmas & New Year Vacation begins
T AAPC meeting Co		Col	Course Examination ends	Final Examination ends	
T AAPC meeting Th Christmas Day — General Holiday (of (offices closed)		fo)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
lay after Christmas — ty (offices closed)		of	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
Clin		Clii	Climbing of Ma On Shan		
		Last	t day to report students' erm Grades	Last day to report students' Last day to report students' Term Grades Term Grades	Last day to report stud e nts' Term Grades
1976 January					
Th New Year's Day — General Holiday (off (offices closed)		flo)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
I Second Term (Teaching) begins	Teaching) begins	Secc	Second Term (Teaching) begins	Second Term (Teaching) begins	Second Term (Teaching) begins
T AAPC meeting Th Aca		Aca	Academic Board Meeting 		Finance Committee Meet 3.00 n m
F Col		Col	College Council Meeting 5:30 p.m.	Monthly Assembly — 11:30 a.m.	College Bulletin Committee Meeting — 10:30 a.m.
T AAPC meeting	AAPC meeting				
Th Join -		loi s	Joint Staff-Student Advi- sory Committee Meeting 7:30 p.m.		

1976					
January	ary	ONIVERSI11	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
16	Ĺщ				College Council Meeting
17	s		Last day for adding courses	Last day for adding courses Last day for adding courses	— 2:20 p.m. Last day for change of major/minor and
					adding term courses*
20 24	s T	AAPC meeting	Last day for dropping courses	Last day for dropping courses	Last day for dropping courses
27	F	Council meeting/AAPC meeting			
28	M	Senate APC meeting			Board of Faculty of Business Administration
30	٤Ŀ		Chinese New Year	Chinese New Year	Meeting — 10:30 a.m. Chinese New Year
31	s	Chinese New Year's Day — General Holiday (offices closed)	v acation begins (offices closed)	V acation begins (offices closed)	Vacation begins (offices closed)
4-6					
February	lary				
2	М	The Third Day of Chinese New Year General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
ω	H	The Fourth Day of Chinese New Year General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
5	\mathbf{Th}	· · ·	Chinese New Year Vacation ends	Chinese New Year Vacation ends	Chinese New Year Vacation ends
10	н	AAPC meeting			Board of Faculty of Arts
12	Th		Academic Board Meeting 		Meeting — 10:30 a.m. Board of Faculty of Social Science Meeting — 10:30 a.m.
°N *	applic	* No application for changing year courses accepted in 2nd term	nd term		

ł

ł

1976 Febru	1976 February	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
13	ц		Board of Governors' Meeting — 5:30 p.m.	Monthly Assembly — 11:30 a.m. Academic Board Meeting — 2:30 p.m.	Board of Faculty of Science Meeting — 10:30 a.m.
17 19	Th	AAPC meeting			Overseas Scholarships/ Fellowship Section
20	ц			College Council Meeting 2:30 p.m.	Committee—10:50 a.m. Academic Board Meeting — 2:30 p.m.
24 25	ΗM	Council meeting/AAPC meeting Senate meeting			
27	F				Staff/Student Consultative Committee — 2:30 p.m.
March	ch				
2 5	нц	AAPC meeting		Monthly Assembly — 11:30 a.m.	Student Welfare Committee — 2:30 p.m.
9 11	т п	AAPC meeting			Student Hostel
12	ц		College Council Meeting		Management Advisory Committee — 2:30 p.m.
13	s	University Sports and Field Meet	— 5:30 p.m. University Sports & Field Meet—Classes suspended	University Sports & Field MeetClasses suspended	University Sports & Field Meet—Classes suspended
16 17	ΥX	AAPC meeting Senate APC meeting			
18	Th		Academic Board Meeting 		

œ

1		- - -		
1976 March	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
23 T 26 F	AAPC meeting			Amenitics Building Management Committee — 2:30 p.m.
30 T	30 T Council meeting/AAPC meeting			
April				

2	Ъ			Monthly Assembly & award of prizes for the second term—11:30 a.m.	
6 2	м т	The Day following Ching Ming Festival 	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
r 6	ы қ	Senate meeting	College Council Mceting 5:30 p.m.		
13 15	$\mathbf{T}_{\mathbf{h}}$	AAPC meeting Second Term (Teaching) ends	Second Term (Teaching) ends	Second Term (Teaching) ends	Second Term (Teaching) ends
16	ц	Good Friday — General Holiday	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	Finance Committee 3:00 p.m. (offices closed)
17	s	The Day following Good Friday — General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
19	M	Easter Monday — General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
20	Т	AAPC meeting Matriculation Examination begins	Course Examination begins		

the Queen (offices closed) losed) Academic Board Meeting Academic Board Meeting Final Examination begins 2:30 p.m. Course Examination ends fing Final Examination begins fing Final Examination begins fing Final Examination begins fing Meeting - 7:30 p.m. ds Meeting - 7:30 p.m.	1976		LINIVERSITY	CHING CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
WThe Birthday of Her Majesty the Queen- General Holiday (offices closed)(offices closed)(offices closed)ThGeneral Holiday (offices closed)Academic Board Meeting - 2:30 p.m.Final Examination beginsM- 2:30 p.m.Council meeting/AAPC meetingFinal Examination beginsMCouncil meeting/AAPC meeting WFinal Examination endsFinal Examination cudsFMatriculation Examination endsMeeting - 7:30 p.m.Final Examination ends	Apri	=				
Th Academic Board Meeting M — 2:30 p.m. M Course Examination ends W Course Examination ends W Th W Th F Matriculation Examination ends	21	M	The Birthday of Her Majesty the Queen- General Holiday (offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
MCouncil meeting/AAPC meetingCourse Examination endsTCouncil meeting/AAPC meetingJoint Staff-StudentWJoint Staff-StudentJoint Staff-StudentFMatriculation Examination endsMeeting — 7:30 p.m.		Th			Final Examination begins	
T Council meeting/AAPC meeting W Multiple Th Joint Staff-Student Advisory Committee Meeting - 7:30 p.m. F Matriculation Examination ends	26	M		Course Examination ends		
W Th Matriculation Examination ends	27	H	Council meeting/AAPC meeting			
Th Matriculation Examination ends	28	W			Final Examination ends	
F Matriculation Examination ends	29	Th		Joint Staff-Student Advisory Committee Meeting — 7:30 p.m.		
	30	મ	Matriculation Examination ends			

May

450	Ч⊗н	AAPC meeting Degree Examination begins	Degree Examination begins	Degree Examination begins Degree Examination begins Library Committee	Degree Examination begins Library Committee — 2:30 p.m.
11	нн	AAPC meeting	College Council Meeting - 5:30 p.m.		Staff/Student consultative Committee — 2:30 p.m.
18 20	18 T 20 Th	AAPC meeting Degree Examination ends	Degree Examination ends	Degree Examination ends Degree Examination ends Beard of Faculty of Social Science Meeting 10:30 a.m.	Degree Examination ends Board of Faculty of Social Science Meeting 10:30 a.m.
25 26	25 T 26 W	Council meeting/AAPC meeting Senate APC meeting			Board of Faculty of Arts Meeting 10:30 a.m. Boards of Faculty of Business Administration Meeting 10:30 a.m.

1

į

	I NEW ASIA UNITED	Board of Faculty of ScienceMeeting — 10:30 a.m.Last day to report finalgrades		(offices closed) (offices closed)	Academic Board Meeting Academic Board Meeting — 2:30 p.m.	ion	v.m. im College Council Meeting 2:30 p.m. 5:30 p.m.	ting	Student Hostel Management Advisory	.m.	
	CHUNG CHI	Ľast day to report final grades		(offices closed)		Business Administration Faculty Meeting 0.3() o meeting	Social Science Faculty Meeting — 2:30 p.m. Science Faculty Meeting — 9:30 a.m. Arts Faculty Meeting — 2:30 p.m.	Academic Board Mecting	2:30 p.m.	Board of Governors' Meeting 5:30 p.m.	
	UNIVERSITY			AAPC meeting Higher Degree Examination begins Tuen Ng Festival — General Holiday (offices closed)		AAPC meeting		AAPC meeting		-	Higher Degree Examination ends
j.	1976 May	28 F 29 S	June	1 T 2 W	4 下	8 T 10 Th	11 F	15 T 16 W	17 Th		19 S

Π

1976 June	S	UNIVERSITY	CHUNG CHI	NEW ASIA	UNITED
20 22 23	s ty	AAPC meeting Senate meeting	Graduation Day — 5:00 p.m.	Graduation Ceremony — 10:00 a.m.	
29 30	Ч¥	Council meeting/AAPC meeting End of the University financial year			
July					
1	Th	The first week-day in July — General Holiday (offices closed) Beginning of the University financial year	(offices closed)	(offices closed)	(offices closed)
se ev	тр	AAPC meeting			Board of Trustees Meeting
6	ĻĽų		College Council Meeting - 5:30 p.m.		
13 14	ч≽	AAPC meeting			Board of Faculty of Business Administration
15	Th				Meeting — 10:30 a.m. Board of Faculty of Social Science Meeting — 10:30 a.m.
20 23	нц	AAPC meeting			Board of Faculty of Arts Meeting — 10:30 a.m. Board of Faculty of Science Meeting — 10:30 a.m.
27 29	Th	Council meeting/AAPC meeting			Finance Committee — 3:00 p.m.
30	氏				Academic Board Meeting
31	s	Academic Year 1975-76 ends	Academic Year 1975-76 ends	Academic Year 1975-76 ends	Academic Year 1975-76 ends

ľ

PART I

ESTABLISHMENT

r.

OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY

Chancellor

His Excellency Sir Murray MACLEHOSE, K.C.M.G.; M.B.E.; B.A. (Oxon.)

Vice-Chancellor

Choh-Ming LI, K.B.E. (Hon.); B.A., M.A., Ph.D. (California); LL.D. (H.K., Michigan, Marquette and W. Ontario); D.S.Sc. (Pittsburgh)

Pro-Vice-Chancellor

T.C. CHENG, O.B.E., B.A., M.A., Dip.Ed. (London); J.P.

Treasurer

The Hon. Q.W. LEE, O.B.E., LL.D. (C.U.H.K.); J.P.

Secretary

Nelson H. Young, B.A. (H.K.); Cert.Ed. (London)

the second second second

ļ

Registrar

John T.S. CHEN, LL.B., Lic.Sc.Pol. et Econ. (Aurore); Docteur d'Université ès Lettres (Paris)

Librarian

Lai-Bing KAN, Miss, B.Sc., Ph.D. (H.K.); M.A., M.L.S. (California)

Bursar

David A. GILKES, M.A. (Oxon.); F.C.A.

THE COUNCIL

Chairman

Dr. the Hon. Sir Yuet-keung KAN C.B.E., B.A., LL.D., J.P.

(term expires 23rd Oct., 1979)

Vice-Chancellor

Dr. Choh-Ming Li K.B.E. (Hon.), B.A., M.A., Ph.D., LL.D., D.S.Sc. (ex officio)

Pro-Vice-Chancellor

Mr. T.C. Cheng O.B.E., B.A., M.A., Dip.Ed., J.P.

(term expires 17th Oct., 1977)

Treasurer

Dr. the Hon. Q. W. LEE, O.B.E., LL.D., J.P. (term expires 22nd Oct., 1978)

Three Members from the College Boards of Governors

Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo C.B.E., LL.B., Ph.D., LL.D., J.P. (term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

PART I ESTABLISHMENT

The Hon. Fook-wo LI O.B.E., B.S., M.C.S., J.P.

(term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

Mr. Tsufa F. LEE Ph.B.

(term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

College Presidents or Acting Presidents and College Representative nominated by the Pro-Vice-Chancellor

Mr. R.N. RAYNE M.A. President, Chung Chi College

(ex officio)

Mr. Han-sheng Chuan B.A. President, New Asia College

(ex officio)

Four Persons from Overseas Universities or Educational Organizations

The Rt. Hon. Lord Fulton of Falmer M.A., LL.D.

(term expires 21st Oct., 1978)

Dr. Clark KERR Ph.D., LL.D.

(term expires 11th Sept., 1976)

CALENDAR

Prof. Sir Cyril H. PHILIPS M.A., Ph.D., LL.D.

(term expires 11th Sept., 1976)

Dr. Kingman Brewster, Jr. LL.B., LL.D.

(term expires 21st Oct., 1978)

Four Persons nominated by the Chancellor

Dr. R.C. LEE C.B.E., M.A., LL.D., J.P. (Vice-Chairman) (term expires 18th Oct., 1978)

Dr. Ellen L1 O.B.E., B.A., LL.D., J.P.

(term expires 18th Oct., 1978)

Dr. Rayson HUANG B.Sc., D.Phil., D.Sc., F.R.I.C., F.W.A., F.R.S.A.

(term expires 18th Oct., 1978)

(vacant)

Three Persons elected by Unofficial Members of the Legislative Council

> The Hon. P.G. WILLIAMS O.B.E., J.P.

(term expires 30th June, 1978)

The Hon. Alex S.C. WU O.B.E., M.B.I.M., J.P. (term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

PART I ESTABLISHMENT

The Hon. James Man-hon Wu O.B.E., B.Sc., M.A.S.H.R.A.E., J.P. (term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

Four Persons, Residents of Hong Kong, elected by the Council

Dr. the Hon. Sir Yuet-keung KAN C.B.E., B.A., LL.D., J.P. (term expires 30th June, 1978)

Dr. J.S. LEE O.B.E., B.A., LL.D. (term expires 17th Oct., 1978)

Prof. Y.C. Wong O.B.E., B.Sc., Ph.D., D.Sc., J.P. (term expires 17th Oct., 1978) (vacant)

Three Members of the Senate

Prof. Mo-huan Hsing B.A. (term expires 16th Jan., 1977)

Prof. Lin Ma B.Sc., Ph.D. (term expires 16th Jan., 1977) (vacant)

Secretary

Mr. Nelson H. Young B.A., Cert.Ed. (ex officio)

COUNCIL COMMITTEES

Administrative and Planning Committee

Chairman:

Dr. C.M. LI

Members:

Mr. T.C. CHENG Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN

In Attendance:

Dr. Shu-ting Chang Dr. John T.S. Chen Prof. Te-k'un Cheng Mr. D.A. Gilkes Mr. R.N. RAYNE

Prof. C.T. Hu Prof. S.S. Hsueh Prof. Hsin Suru Mr. Nelson H. Young (Secretary)

Finance Committee

Chairman:

Dr. the Hon. Q.W. LEE

Members:

Mr. T.C. CHENG Mr. Han-sheng Chuan Dr. J.S. Lee Dr. C.M. L1 Mr. R.N. RAYNE Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo

Secretary:

Mr. D.A. GILKES

Campus Planning and Building Committee

Chairman:

Dr. R.C. LEE

Members:

Mr. T.C. CHENG Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Mr. D.A. GILKES Dr. the Hon. Q.W. LEE Mr. Tsufa F. LEE

Member & Secretary: Mr. Paul Y.Y. LAM The Hon. Fook-wo Lr Mr. R.N. RAYNE Mr. J.G. Stean The Hon. W. Szeto Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo

Terms of Service Committee

Chairman:

Dr. I.S. LEE

Members:

Mr. T.C. CHENG Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Mr. D.A. GILKES Dr. the Hon. O.W. LEE

The Hon. Fook-wo Li Mr. R.N. RAYNE Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo

Member & Secretary: Mr. Nelson H. Young

Honorary Degrees Committee

Chairman:

The Chancellor

Members:

Prof. Te-k'un CHENG Mr. T.C. Cheng Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Prof. Mo-huan Hsing Dr. the Hon. Sir Yuet-keung KAN Dr. R.C. LEE Dr. C.M. LI Prof. Lin MA Mr. R.N. RAYNE

Secretary:

Mr. Nelson H. Young

Council Committee on Coordination of Administration

Chairman:

Dr. the Hon. Sir Yuet-keung KAN

Members:

Mr. T.C. CHENG Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Dr. the Hon. Q.W. LEE Mr. Tsufa F. LEE

Dr. C.M. LI The Hon. Fook-wo Li Mr. R.N. RAYNE Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo

Secretary: Mr. Nelson H. Young THE SENATE

Chairman:

The Vice-Chancellor Members: Dr. Yau-wah CHAN Mr. Chien-min CHANG Dr. Hson-mou Chang Dr. Shu-ting CHANG Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Dr. Fong-ching CHEN Prof. Cheng-siang CHEN Mr. T.C. CHENG Prof. Te-k'un CHENG Dr. C.Y. Choi Prof. Fa-kao Chou Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Dr. Y.T. Chung Mr. I.B. Gannon Mr. David Gwilt Dr. Kam-fai Ho Prof. Mo-huan Hsing Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Prof. S.S. HSUEH Prof. C.T. Hu Prof. Tsung-I JAO Observers: Dr. Robert DAN Mr. D.A. GILKES

Mr. D.A. GILKES Miss Linda Hu Mr. T.C. LAI Mr. Paul Y.Y. LAM Mr. Jun-chung LEE Mr. Lyon Y. LEE Mr. Y.B. LEUNG Dr. John W. OLLEY

Dr. Lai-bing KAN Dr. Kin-hung Kwong Dr. Yat-wah LAM Prof. Bruce D. LARKIN Dr. Tzong-biau LIN Dr. Shu-hsien Liu Mr. T.R. Liu Prof. Shiu-chang Loн Prof. Lin MA Dr. Kin-chok Mun Mr. R.N. RAYNE Dr. Kuo-tung Sun Prof. Hsin SUTU Prof. L.B. THROWER Mr. Chi WANG Mr. Teh-chao WANG Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong Mr. Shau-lam Wong Dr. Shu-chia YANG Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu

Dr. Kar-ping Shum Mr. S.H. So Dr. Phillip S.Y. Sun Mr. Stephen C. Soong Dr. S.W. TAM Mr. W.H.C. WAN Mr. Kai-chee Wong Mr. Nelson H. Young

4 representatives from C.U.H.K. Student Union 2 representatives from Chung Chi Student Union 2 representatives from New Asia Student Union 2 representatives from United Student Union *Member & Secretary:*

The Registrar

SENATE COMMITTEES

Senate Academic Planning Committee

Chairman:

The Vice-Chancellor

Ex-Officio Members: The three College Presidents University Faculty Deans The Dean of the Graduate School The Director of the School of Education

Elected Members: Two representatives from each Faculty

Member & Secretary: The Registrar

Committee on Academic Publications

Chairman:

The Vice-Chancellor

Ex-Officio Members:

Directors of University Institutes and Centres The Director of the School of Education

Elected Members:

Two representatives from each Faculty

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. T.C. LAI

Committee on Extra-Mural Studies

Chairman:

The Vice-Chancellor

Ex-Officio Member: Director of the Department of Extra-Mural Studies

Elected Members:

Two representatives from each Faculty

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. T.C. LAI

CALENDAR

Committee on General Education

Chairman:

The Pro-Vice-Chancellor

Members:

Dr. K.Y. CHAN Prof. M.H. HSING Prof. Lin MA Dr. Philip Shen Prof. Hsin Sutu Mr. T.C. Wang

Student Observers:

1 representative from the University Affairs Committee of CUHK Student Union

1 representative from Chung Chi General Education Committee

1 representative from New Asia General Education Committee

1 representative from United General Education Committee

Member and Secretary:

The Registrar

Committee on University Library System

Chairman:

The Vice-Chancellor or his representative

Members:

Chairmen of College Library Committees University Faculty Deans The Dean of the Graduate School

Member & Secretary:

The Director of the University Library System

Committee on University Scholarships

Chairman:

The Pro-Vice-Chancellor

Elected Members:

Dr. Yau-wa CHAN Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Dr. Fong-ching CHEN Dr. Ambrose Y.C. King Prof. Lin Ma Mr. Chi Wang

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. W.H.C. WAN

Committee on Staff-Student Relations

Chairman:

.....

Prof. Lin MA

Members:

Staff — nominated:	
Dr. Fong-ching CHEN	Dr. Kar-ping Shum
Dr. Ching-yan Chor	Mr. Chi Wang
Dr. Kin-hung Kwong	Mr. Shau-lam Wong

Staff — elected:Dr. Yau-wa CHANProf. Hsin SUTUDr. Kam-fai HoMr. Teh-chao WANG

Students:

Mr. Ming-ming Chan	Mr. Siu-nam Lee
Mr. Ling-sung Chung, Albert	Mr. Po-chong Leung
Mr. Siu-kwong Hui	Mr. Shing-chuen LEUNG
Mr. Yiu-fung Kwok	Mr. Man-tak Shing
Mr. Ming-wai Lau	Miss Po-hei Yeung

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. W.H.C. WAN

ADVISORY BOARDS ON ACADEMIC MATTERS

Board on Natural Sciences

Prof. Sir Frank George Young (Chairman)	Professor of Biochemistry, University of Cambridge.
Prof. Shiing-shen CHERN	Professor of Mathematics, University of California, Berkeley.
Prof. Tsung-dao Lee	Professor of Physics, Columbia University. Nobel Laureate.
Prof. Choh-hao Li	Professor of Biochemistry and Medical Science, Director of Hormone Research Laboratory, University of California, San Francisco.
Prof. Saw-pak Thong	Professor of Physics.
Prof. Chien-shiung Wu	Professor of Physics, Columbia University.
Prof. Chen-ning YANG	Professor of Physics, State University of New York. Stony Brook. Nobel Laureate.
PART I ESTABLISHMENT

.....

Board on Humanities

Prof. Yuen-ren Снло (Chairman)	Professor Emeritus, University of California, Berkeley.
Prof. Fang-kuei Lı	Professor of Chinese Linguistics, University of Hawaii.
Prof. Sir Cyril H. PHILIPS	Vice-Chancellor, University of London.
Prof. Lien-sheng YANG	Professor of Chinese History, Harvard University.

Board on Social Science and Business Administration

Prof. Simon Kuznets (Chairman)	Professor of Economics, Harvard University. Nobel Laureate.
Sir Sydney Caine	Formerly Director of the London School of Economics & Political Science, University of London.
Prof. Carlo M. CIPOLLA	Professor of Economics, Università di Pavia & University of California, Berkeley.
Prof. Kung-chuan Hsiao	Professor Emeritus of Political Science, University of Washington.
Prof. Seymour M. LIPSET	Professor of Government and Social Relations, Harvard University.
Prof. Erik Lundberg	Professor of Economics, University of Stockholm.

THE GRADUATE COUNCIL

Chairman:

Prof. C.T. Hu

Members:

Dr. Shu-ting CHANG Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Mr. T.C. CHENG Prof. Te-k'un CHENG Prof. Fa-kao CHOU Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Prof. S.S. HSUEH Dr. Lai-bing KAN Dr. Yat-wah LAM Dr. Tzong-biau LIN Dr. Shu-hsien Liu Prof. Lin Ma Dr. James Y.K. PAN Prof. Hsin Sutu Dr. Shang-wai TAM Prof. L.B. THROWER Dr. Kar-ping SHUM Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong Mr. Shau-lam Wong

Secretary:

Mr. Y.B. Leung

BOARDS OF FACULTIES

Faculty Board of Arts

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Philip Cavanaugh Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Dr. Ching-ho CHEN Dr. John T.S. CHEN Prof. Te-k'un CHENG (Chairman) Prof. Fa-kao Снои Mr. S.J.P. Ellis Mr. J.B. GANNON Mr. David Gwilt Dr. H.H. Ho Mr. Pung Ho Prof. Tsung-i JAO Dr. May-ching KAO Dr. Jürgen Klünder Dr. Kin-hung Kwong Mr. Tat-leung Lee

Dr. Shu-hsien LIU Mrs. Ngai-ha Lun Ng Dr. John W. Olley Mr. D.J. O'Shea Dr. Philip Shen Dr. Kuo-tung Sun Dr. Phillip S.Y. Sun Mr. Teh-chao WANG Dr. Adine WANG Mr. Kai-chee Wong Dr. Yuk Wong Mr. P.C. YAO Prof. Takeo YAZAKI Mr. Keng-wang Yen Mr. Kwang-chung Yu Dr. Heh-hsiang YUAN

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. Y.B. LEUNG

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Y.Y. Lo

Faculty Board of Business Administration

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Yu-to Chung Mr. Yu-to Chung Mr. J.J. Day Dr. John L. Espy Mr. Chan-hsiung Fang Mr. Pao-shu Hung Mr. Jun-chung Lee Secretary: Dr. Kam-hon Lee Mr. Po-yiu Lo Dr. Kin-chok Mun Mr. Shih-du Sun Prof. H. Sutu (*Chairman*) Dr. Kwok-chi TAM Dr. Shu-chia YANG

Faculty Board of Science

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor

The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Tze-lock CHAN Dr. H.M. CHANG Dr. Shu-ting CHANG (Chairman) Dr. Elvera K.S. LIM DHILLON Dr. Shih-yu FENG Dr. Yun-tong FUNG Dr. Ping-kee Hon Dr. Hing-sum HUNG Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Dr. Yat-wah LAM Dr. Kai-fong LEE Dr. Wai-kee Li Prof. Shiu-chang Loh Prof. Lin Ma Dr. Kai-keung Mark Dr. Kai-keung Mark Dr. Kar-ping Shum Prof. L.B. Thrower Mr. Lan-on Tse Miss Hsing-yong Wang Dr. Tak-chiu Wong Dr. Tak-chiu Wong Dr. Hin-wing Yeung Mr. Kai-wing Yip

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Y.Y. Lo

Faculty Board of Social Science

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Daniel F.K. CHAN Prof. Cheng-siang CHEN Mrs. Mo-kwan LEE FONG Dr. Kam-fai Ho Prof. Mo-huan HSING Prof. S.S. HSUEH (*Chairman*) Dr. Hsin-chi KUAN Dr. Siu-kai LAU Dr. Rance P.L. LEE Dr. C.S. LIANG Dr. Chok-king LIANG Dr. Tzong-biau LIN Dr. Victor Mok Miss Agnes Ng Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong Mr. Shau-lam Wong Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu Mr. Kuo-tao Yui

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Y.Y. Lo

28

BOARDS AND COMMITTEES OF STUDIES

FACULTY OF ARTS

Board of Studies in Chinese Language & Literature

Administrative Chairman: Mr. Kai-chee Wong Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents Members: Mr. Siu-tong Chan Prof. Fa-kao Chou Dr. Lin-sen LAM CHOW Mr. Shu-leung DANG Mr. Pung Ho Prof. Tsung-I JAO Dr. Kuang Mei Dr. Kin-hung Kwong Mr. Tat-leung LEE Dr. Yun-kuang LEE Mr. Hui-ying Li Secretary: The Registrar's representative

Mr. Ying-yun Mei Mr. Chuan-ming Meng Mr. Chung-ho Sheung Mr. Man-jock So Mr. Teh-chao Wang Mr. Ching-chang Wong Prof. Takeo Yazaki Mr. Yung Young Mr. Kwang-chung Yu Dr. Ting-cheuk Yuen

Board of Studies in English

Chairman: Mr. J.B. GANNON Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents Members: Mr. Brian C. BLOMFIELD Mrs. Gail Schaefer Fu Mrs. Penelope A. Jordan Miss Joan Barbara Boozer Mrs. M.E.R. Bridges Mrs. Esme Lyon Dr. Bruce Andrew CHAN Mr. Denis J. O'SHEA Mrs. Pao-chung FENG CHANG Dr. Adine WANG Mr. John N. DENT-YOUNG Mr. Ning WANG Mr. Simon P.J. Ellis Mr. Kwang-chang Yu Dr. A.R.B. ETHERTON Dr. Heh-hsiang YUAN Secretary: The Registrar, represented by Dr. Bruce Andrew CHAN

Board of Studies in Fine Arts

Chairman: Prof. Te-k'un Cheng

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Prof. Tsung-I Jao Mr. Kuo-sung Liu Mr. Stephen C. Soong Mr. I-pong Van Mr. Chi WANG Mr. Teh-chao WANG Mr. James C.Y. WATT Dr. May-ching KAO

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Miss Lai-yee St

Board of Studies in History

Chairman: Mr. Teh-chang CHANG

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Ching-ho CHEN Dr. Chien CHIAO Prof. Fa-kao CHOU Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Prof. Mo-huan HSING Prof. C.T. HU Mr. Kwan-san HSU Prof. Tien-yi LI Dr. Hong-chi LEE Dr. Chi-sen LIANG Mr. Chiu-ching Lo Mrs. Ngai-ha Lun Ng Mr. Hing-bun So Dr. Douglas G. Spelman Dr. Kuo-tung Sun Dr. Yue-him Tam Mr. Teh-chao Wang Dr. Tseng-tsai Wang Mr. Shau-lam Wong Mr. Keng-wang Yen

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Ngai-ha Lun NG

Board of Studies in Music

Chairman:

Mr. David Gwilt

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. A. Keith Anderson	Dr. R.E. Hillila
Mr. Brian C. Blomfield	Dr. Harrison C. Ryker
Dr. Philip Cavanaugh	Mr. Kai-chee Wong
Dr. Dale A. CRAIG	

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Philip CAVANAUGH

Board of Studies in Philosophy

Chairman:

Dr. Shu-hsien L1U

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Te CHEN Mr. Tou-hui Fok Dr. Hsiu-hwang Ho Mr. Yung-wei Lao Dr. Tien-ming LEE Dr. Tu Li Dr. Philip Shen Mr. Duen-ching Tong Dr. Yuk Wong

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Yuk Wong

Board of Studies in Religion

Administrative Chairman:

Dr. John W. Olley

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Paul CLASPER Dr. Richard R. DEUTSCH Mr. J.B. GANNON Dr. Hong-chi LEE Dr. Lee-ming NG Dr. James Y.K. PAN Dr. Philip Shen

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Richard R. DEUTSCH

Committee on French, German, Japanese and Italian Studies

Administrative Chairman:

Dr. John T.S. CHEN

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Philippe J. CERTAIN Prof. Fa-kao Chou Dr. A.R.B. Etherton Fr. Franco Gritti Mr. Tsuneo Hasegawa Dr. Jürgen Klünder Dr. Michael Nentwich Mr. Laurent Sagart Mr. Seiki Shono Dr. Adine Wang Prof. Takeo Yazaki

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Y. Lo

Committee on Physical Education

Chairman: Mr. T.C. CHENG Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents Members: Dr. H.M. CHANG Dr. Yue-him TAM Mr. William H.C. WAN Mr. Aaron Siu-lok LEE Dr. Alice S.P. MA LEUNG Mrs. Alice Wong Mr. Sze-kim Ng Mr. Andrew W.F. Wong Mr. Joachim Poon Secretary: The Registrar, represented by Mr. William H.C. WAN

Committee on Translation

Administrative Chairman: Dr. Phillip S.Y. SUN Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents Members: Dr. S.T. CHANG Mr. T.C. LAI Mr. Lamp L1 Dr. Kuang Mer Mr. Stephen C. Soong Secretary:

Dr. Adine WANG Mr. P.C. YAO Mr. Kwang-chung Yu Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu Dr. Heh-hsiang YUAN

The Registrar, represented by Miss Rebecca Mok

FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION **Committee on Accounting and Finance**

Convener: Dr. Yu-to Chung Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents Members: Mr. Pao-shu Hung Dr. Bernard J. BENNINGTON Mr. Ming-lun Chu Mr. Po-yiu Lo Mr. J.J. DAY Dr. Victor Mok Miss Nancy Sun Dr. John L. Espy Dr. K.A. Wong Dr. Philip Fu Dr. Shu-chia YANG Mr. Dan-lin Hsu Secretary: The Registrar, represented by Miss Nancy Sun

Committee on General Business Management and Personnel Management

Convener:

Mr. Jun-chung LEE

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Chien-min Chang	Dr. Y.W. Lam
Mr. Tung-ping Deng	Mr. Cecil C. Luk
Mr. Chan-hsiung FANG	Mr. Shih-du Sun

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. Shih-du SUN

Committee on Marketing and International Business

Convener:

Prof. Hsin Sutu

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Hsin-chi Kuan Dr. Kam-hon Lee Mr. Lamp Li Dr. Kin-chok Mun Dr. Charles Steilen Dr. Kwok-chi Tam Mr. Chen-hsiung Wu

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Kwok-chi TAM

FACULTY OF SCIENCE

Board of Studies in Biochemistry

Chairman:

Prof. Lin MA

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. H.M. CHANG Dr. Yuen-min CHOY Dr. Walter K.K. Ho Dr. Ping-kay HoN Dr. Sai-hang Ko Dr. Yun-cheung KoNG Dr. Oi-wah LAU Dr. Wo-pok LAY Dr. Cheuk-yu LEE Dr. Fai-ming LEUNG Dr. Thomas C.W. MAK Dr. Kai-keung MARK Dr. Shang-wai TAM Prof. L.B. THROWER Dr. Hin-wing YEUNG Dr. Kung-hing YUNG

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Cheuk-yu LEE

Board of Studies in Biology

Chairman:

Prof. L.B. THROWER

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Yun-shen Bau Dr. Kwong-yu Chan Dr. H.M. Chang Dr. Shu-ting Chang Dr. Chuan-ying Chao Dr. Wilkin W.K. Cheung Dr. Kin-pong Chik Dr. Kam-wai Chiu Dr. Elvera Lim Dhillon Prof. Lin Ma Dr. Kai-keung Mark Dr. Kar-ping Shum Dr. Ming-hung Wong Dr. David T. Yew Dr. Kung-hing Yung

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Ming-hung WONG

Board of Studies in Chemistry

Chairman: Dr. H.M. CHANG

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Prof. James Arthur CAMPBELL Dr. Tze-lock CHAN Dr. David Tao-yung CHEN Dr. Hsiu CHI Dr. Ping-kay Hon Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Dr. Kwan-yu Hui Dr. Choi-nang LAM Dr. Oi-wah LAU Dr. Wo-pok LAY Dr. Wai-kee LI Dr. James C.N. Ma Prof. Lin Ma Dr. Thomas C.W. Mak Dr. Danny Shiu-hung Mak Dr. Kai-keung Mark Dr. Suk-ping So Dr. Shang-wai Tam Dr. S.T. Tsou

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Wo-pok LAY

Board of Studies in Computer Science

Chairman:

Prof. Shiu-chang Loн

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Fong-ching CHEN Mr. J.J. DAY Dr. Hing-sum HUNG Dr. Pedro NG Dr. Ronald A. RUSSELL-CLARK Dr. D.H. SCHWARTZMANN Dr. Kwok-chi TAM Dr. Hung-tat Tsui Mr. Kai-chee Wong

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. D.H. SCHWARTZMANN

36

Board of Studies in Electronics

Chairman:

Dr. Yat-wah LAM

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Nai-ng Chan Dr. Chu-cheng Chang Mr. Thomas T.C. Choy Mr. J.S. Dahele Dr. Hin-hung Ho Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Dr. Harry H.L. Kwok Mr. James G.N. LEE Dr. Kai-fong LEE Dr. York LIAO Prof. Shiu-chang LOH Dr. Ronnie K.L. POON Dr. Suk-ping So Dr. Hung-tat Tsui

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. James G.N. LEE

Board of Studies in Mathematics

Administrative Chairman: Dr. Kar-ping Shum

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor

The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Elmer J. BRODY Dr. Nai-ng CHAN Dr. Wai-leung CHAN Mr. Ching-ju CHANG Mr. Chien-min CHANG Dr. H.M. CHANG Dr. C.H. YONG CHAO Dr. Hing-lun CHOW Mr. Ming-lun CHU Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Dr. Hing-sum HUNG Dr. Tzee-char Kuo Dr. Kai-fong Lee Dr. Kung-fu NG Dr. Ping-kwan TAM Mr. Lan-on Tse Dr. S.T. Tsou Dr. R.F. TURNER-SMITH Miss Hsing-yong WANG Dr. Yau-chuen Wong Mr. Kai-wing YIP

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Wai-leung CHAN

Board of Studies in Physics

Chairman:

Prof. Bay-sung Hsu

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Yau-wa Chan Dr. Fong-ching Chen Dr. Kin-pong Chik Dr. Chung-loong Choy Dr. Lien-sheng Chuang Dr. Shih-yu Feng Dr. Yun-tong Fung Dr. Hin-hung Ho Dr. Hin-hung Ho Dr. Wing-chuen Ho Dr. Hon-ming Lai Dr. Yat-wah LAM Dr. Martin H.S. LAU Dr. Yu-yang LEE Dr. Fai-ming LEUNG Dr. Kar-ping SHUM Dr. Suk-ping So Mr. Lin-kuan SU Dr. Tak-chiu Wong Dr. Kenneth YOUNG

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Yun-tong Fung

FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

Board of Studies in Economics

Chairman:

Dr. Tzong-biau LIN

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Dr. Tong-yung CHENG Prof. Mo-huan HsiNG Dr. Tien-tung Hsueh Mr. Hsiao-sheng Hu Dr. Yak-yeow KUEH Dr. Pak-wai LIU Mr. J.G. McClellan Dr. Victor Mok Dr. Ghulam M. RADHU Mr. Chen-hsiung WU Mr. Kuo-tao YUI

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. Koon-lam SHEA

Board of Studies in Education

Chairman:

Mr. T.C. Cheng

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Benjamin Y. CHANDr. Pedro NgMr. Kai-sun CHANDr. Ping-kee SiuMr. S.C. CHENGDr. Peter T.K. TAMDr. Arthur HINTONMr. Teh-chao WANGDr. William J.F. LewMr. Leo P.K. YAMProf. Lin MAMrs. Betty Lai-ling YAU

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Betty Lai-ling YAU

Board of Studies in Geography

Administrative Chairman: Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong

Ex-Officio Members:

The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Prof. Cheng-siang Chen Mrs. Mo-kwan Lee Fong Dr. Chi-sen Liang Dr. Hsi-lin Tschang Dr. Fu-yuen Tse Mr. Keng-wang Yen

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. Yen-tak NG

Board of Studies in Government & Public Administration

Chairman:

Prof. S.S. HSUEH

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Philip Fu Dr. Hsin-chi Kuan Dr. Peter N.S. Lee Dr. Kuang-shang Liao Dr. Robert N. SPADARO Mr. Andrew W.F. Wong Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. Jeremiah K.H. WONG

Board of Studies in Journalism & Communication

Administrative Chairman: Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Dr. Edward Y. CHENHWANG Mr. Bruce LEE Mr. John Mitchell Mr. Douglas G. Spelman Dr. Michael WEI Mr. Kwang-chung Yu Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu Mr. L.Z. YUAN

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mr. John MITCHELL

Board of Studies in Social Work

Chairman:

Dr. Kam-fai Ho

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Daniel F.K. CHAN Dr. Ching-yan CHOI Mr. Harold Ho Mrs. Te-ching TUNG HO Mrs. Eva B.C. LI Ko Mrs. Hannah Fu Lynn Miss Agnes Ng Mr. Jeremiah K.H. Wong

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Mrs. Hannah Fu LYNN

Board of Studies in Sociology

Chairman: Mr. Shau-lam Wong

Ex-Officio Members: The Vice-Chancellor The three College Presidents

Members:

Mr. Michael BOND Dr. Ying-keung CHAN Dr. Theodora TING CHAU Dr. Chien CHIAO Dr. Ching-yan CHOI Dr. Neil H. GOODMAN Mrs. Te-hing TUNG HO Prof. Francis L.K. Hsu Dr. Ambrose Y. C. KING Dr. Siu-kai LAU Dr. Pui-leung LEE Dr. Chok-king LIANG Dr. Richard A. LYCZAK Mr. John T. MYERS Dr. Pedro NG Dr. Robert M. PANKIN Dr. Fai-ming Wong

Secretary:

The Registrar, represented by Dr. Pedro NG

THE UNDERGRADUATE EXAMINATIONS BOARD

Chairman:

Mr. T.C. CHENG

Members:

Dr. H.M. Chang Mr. Teh-chang CHANG Prof. Cheng-siang CHEN Dr. John T.S. CHEN Prof. Te-k'un CHENG Prof. Fa-kao Снои Mr. Han-sheng CHUAN Dr. Yu-to Chung Mr. I.B. GANNON Mr. David Gwilt Dr. Kam-fai Ho Prof. Mo-huan Hsing Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Prof. S.S. HSUEH Prof. Tsung-i YAO Dr. Yat-wah LAM Mr. Jun-chung LEE

Mr. Lyon Y. LEE Dr. Tzong-biau LIN Dr. Shu-hsien Liu Mr. T.R. Liu Prof. Shiu-chang Loн Prof. Lin MA Dr. John W. Olley Mr. R.N. RAYNE Dr. Kar-ping Shum Dr. Phillip S.Y. SUN Prof. Hsin Suru Prof. L.B. THROWER Mr. Chi WANG Mr. Kai-chee Wong Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong Mr. Shau-lam Wong Prof. Timothy L.M. Yu

Secretary:

Mr. S.H. So

THE MATRICULATION BOARD

Chairman:

Dr. John T.S. CHEN Members: Mr. Teh-chang CHANG

Mr. T.C. CHENG Prof. Te-k'un CHENG Mr. J.B. GANNON Mr. David GWILT Mr. N.M. Ho Rev. S.M. Ho Prof. Bay-sung Hsu Prof. S.S. HSUEH Dr. B.M. KOTEWALL Mr. T.L. LAM

Member and Secretary: Mr. S.H. So Mr. Lyon Y. LEE Dr. K.T. LEUNG Dr. Tzong-biau LIN Mr. T.R. LIU Dr. Thomas C.W. Mak Dr. Kar-ping Shum Dr. C.J. SU Prof. L.B. THROWER Mr. Chi WANG Mr. Kai-chee WONG Dr. Kwan-yiu Wong

EXTERNAL EXAMINERS

Undergraduate Examinations

Biochemistry

Biology Botany

Zoology

Business Administration

Chemistry

Chinese Literature

Computer Science

Economics

Electronics

Prof. R.D. COLE University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.

Dr. Hsuan KENG University of Singapore, Singapore.

Prof. M.C. NIU Temple University, U.S.A.

Prof. David L1 University of Washington, U.S.A.

Prof. B.L. YANG National Cheng Chi University, Taiwan.

Prof. Yuan-tseh LEE University of Chicago, U.S.A.

Prof. Ching-nung TAI National Taiwan University, Taiwan.

Prof. John M. BENNETT University of Sydney, Australia.

Prof. John C.H. FEI Yale University, U.S.A.

Prof. Eric AsH University of London, U.K.

44	CALENDAR
English	Prof. A.W.T. GREEN University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong.
Fine Arts History of Arts	Prof. Chu-tsing L1 University of Kansas, U.S.A.
Practice of Arts	Mr. T'ao Ho Hong Kong Art Centre, Hong Kong.
French	Mme. Thu-ba G1A Alliance Francaise, Hong Kong.
Geography	Prof. Sen-dou Chang University of Hawaii, U.S.A.
German	Professor Dr. Karl Otto Conrady Institut für Deutsche Sprache und Literatur, Köln, Germany.
Government & Public Administration	Prof. Tang Tsou University of Chicago, U.S.A.
History	Prof. Chung-hung Lưu National Taiwan University, Taiwan.
]apanese	Prof. Noboru Үамамото Keio University, Japan.
Journalism	Prof. Hsien-tse Chen Nanyang University, Singapore.

PART I	ESTABLISHMENT 4
Mathematics	Prof. Hsien-chung WANG Cornell University, U.S.A.
Music	
Chinese Music	Prof. Pen-li Снианд National Taiwan Academy of Arts, Taiwan.
Western Music	Prof. Ivor Keys University of Birmingham, U.K.
Philosophy	Prof. Thomé H. FANG National Taiwan University, Taiwan.
Physics	Prof. Eugene Y. Wong University of California, Los Angeles U.S.A.
Psychology	Prof. Robert CHIN University of Boston, U.S.A.
Religious Knowledge & Theology	y Dr. C.S. Song World Council of Churches, Switzerland.
Social Work	Prof. John F. Jones University of Minnesota, U.S.A.
Sociology	Prof. Francis L.K. Hsu Northwestern University, U.S.A.
Translation	Miss Tai-yi Līn Reader's Digest (Chinese Edition), Hong Kong.

Postgraduate Examinations

Master's Degree	e Examination
-----------------	---------------

Biochemistry

- Prof. R.D. COLE University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
- Prof. Tung-bin Lo National Taiwan University, Taiwan.
- Prof. Waclow Szybalski University of Wisconsin, U.S.A.
- Prof. S.F. YANG University of California, U.S.A.
- Prof. A. GORBMAN University of Washington, U.S.A.
- Prof. Malcolm S. GORDON University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A.
- Mrs. Vera LEE Agriculture & Fisheries Department, Hong Kong Government.

Prof. Wayne S. BOUTELL University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.

- Prof. An-min CHUNG Drexel University, U.S.A.
- Prof. Maurice MOONITZ University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
- Prof. Alexander L. SRBICH California State University, U.S.A.

Biology

Business Administration

Chemistry

- Dr. T.F. LAI University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong.
- Prof. Hirotaro KAMBE University of Tokyo, Japan.
- Prof. Yuen T. LEE University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
- Prof. T.S. Ma City University of New York, U.S.A.
- Dr. K. MACKENZIE University of Bristol, England.
- Prof. J.N. MURRELL University of Sussex, U.K.
- Chinese Language & Literature Prof. Chien CHENG National Taiwan University, Taiwan.
 - Prof. Hsiao-ting L1 Nanyang University, Singapore.
 - Prof. Ts'un-yan L1U Australian National University, Canberra, Australia.
 - Prof. Robert CHIN University of Boston, U.S.A.
 - Prof. C.K. LEONG University of Saskatchewan, Canada.
 - Prof. Joseph KATZ University of British Columbia, Canada.

Education

	Prof. Albert H. YEE California State University, U.S.A.
	Prof. C.K. YANG University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A.
Electronics	Prof. L.W. DAVIES University of New South Wales, Australia.
	Prof. A.E. KARBOWIAK University of New South Wales, Australia.
	Prof. Francis Lee Massachusetts Institute of Technology, U.S.A.
Geography	Prof. Sen-dou CHANG University of Hawaii, U.S.A.
History	Prof. Kan Lao University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A.
	Prof. Tien-yi L1 Ohio State University, U.S.A.
Mathematics	Prof. Michael Duнoux Université Catholique de Louvain, Belgium.
	Dr. A.J. Ellis University College of Swansea, U.K.
	Prof. P.N. Stewart Dalhousie University, Canada.

Philosophy

Physics

Prof. Thomé H. FANG National Taiwan University, Taiwan.

Dr. G.D. Jones University of Canterbury, New Zealand.

Prof. W.D. HUMPAGE University of Western Australia, Australia.

Prof. S.Y. KING University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong.

- Dr. J.G. RIDER University of Surrey, U.K.
- Prof. I.M. WARD University of Leeds, U.K.
- Prof. Michael Scadron University of Arizona, U.S.A.
- Prof. Helmut Schwarz Universidade de Brasília, Brazil.
- Prof. W.N. WANG Academic Sinica, Taiwan.

Prof. Francis L.K. Hsu Northwestern University, U.S.A.

Miss Barbara WARD Newnham College, England.

Sociology

- Prof. Peter Worsley University of Manchester, U.K.
- Prof. C.K. YANG University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A.
- Dr. T.S. CHANG Tainan Theological College, Taiwan.
- Dr. Kosuke Koyama University of Otago, New Zealand.
- Dr. C.S. Song World Council of Churches, Switzerland.
- Dr. Ching-fan Hs1A0 Tainan Theological College, Taiwan.
- Dr. Martin C.C. WANG American Bible Society, U.S.A.

Diploma in Education Examination

(Theory)

Prof. C.K. LEONG University of Saskatchewan, Canada.

(Practical Teaching)

Mr. Tat-lau LAM Education Department, Hong Kong Government.

Diploma in Systems Analysis Examination

(Theory)

Prof. John M. BENNETT The London School of Economics & Political Science, University of London, U.K.

Theology

DEANS

Faculty of Arts

Te-k'un CHENG, B.A., M.A. (Yenching); M.A. (Cambridge); Ph.D. (Harvard)

Faculty of Business Administration

Hsin Sutu, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Faculty of Science

Shu-ting CHANG, B.S. (National Taiwan); M.S., Ph.D. (Wisconsin)

Faculty of Social Science

Shou-sheng Hsueh, B.A. (Yenching); M.A., Ph.D. (Geneva)

PROFESSORS, VISITING PROFESSORS, READERS AND SENIOR LECTURERS

Anthropology

Visiting Professor

Francis L.K. Hsu, B.A. (Shanghai); Ph.D. (London)

Biochemistry

Professor

Lin MA, B.Sc. (W. China Union); Ph.D. (Leeds)

Senior Lecturer

Yun-cheung Kong, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Bruxelles)

Biology

Professor

Lyle B. THROWER, M.Sc., Ph.D. (Melbourne); F.L.S.; J.P.

Reader

Shu-ting CHANG, B.S. (National Taiwan); M.S., Ph.D. (Wisconsin) Senior Lecturers

Chuan-ying CHAO, B.S. (Shanghai); M.S. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Illinois)

Kai-keung MARK, Dip. (H.K. Baptist); M.A. (California); Ph.D. (Oregon)

Business Administration

Professor

Hsin SUTU, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania) Reader

Shu-chia YANG, B.A., M.S., Ph.D. (Minnesota)

Visiting Associate Professor

Charles F. STEILEN, B.S. (Bradley); M.B.A. (California State); Ph.D. (Oregon)

Senior Lecturers

Chien-min CHANG, LL.B. (*Tsinghua*); M.A., M.S. (*Wyoming*) Yu-to CHUNG, B.Comm. (*Edinburgh*); M.B.A., D.B.A. (*Indiana*); A.C.A. John L. Espy, B.S. (*Georgia Inst. of Tech.*); M.S. (*M.I.T.*); D.B.A. (*Harvard*)

Philip Fu, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S. (Brigham Young); Ph.D. (Illinois) Lamp Li, B.A. (National Central); M.A. (Oregon); M.B.A. (Michigan) Po-yiu Lo, B.A. (Lingnan); M.B.A. (Wisconsin); I.T.P.Cert. (Harvard) Peter Kin-chok Mun, Dip. (New Asia); M.A., Ph.D. (Freiburg)

PART I ESTABLISHMENT

Chemistry

Honorary Visiting Professor

James Arthur CAMPBELL, A.B. (Oberlin Coll.); M.S. (Purdue); Ph.D. (California)

Reader

HSOn-mou CHANG, B.Sc. (Shanghai); M.Sc., Ph.D. (lowa State)

Senior Lecturers

Thomas C.W. MAK, B.S., Ph.D. (British Columbia) Shang-wai TAM, B.Sc., M.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Nottingham); F.R.I.C.

Chinese Language & Literature

Professors

Fa-kao Chou, B.A. (National Central); M.A. (National Peking) Tsung-I JAO

Reader

Kwang-chung Yu, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.F.A. (Iowa State)

Senior Lecturer

Ching-chang Wong, B.A. (Kwanghua); M.A. (Nanking)

Computer Science

Professor

Shiu-chang Lon, B.Sc., Ph.D. (Leeds)

Economics

Professor

Mo-huan HSING, B.A. (National Central)

Senior Lecturer

Tzong-biau LIN, B.A. (National Taiwan); Diploma-Volkswirt, Ph.D. (Freiburg)

Electronics

Senior Lecturer Yat-wah LAM, B.Sc. (London); M.Sc. (Birmingham); Ph.D. (Manchester); M.I.E.E.; A.Inst.P.

English

Senior Lecturers

A.R.B. ETHERTON, B.A., M.A., Ph.D. (London) John B. GANNON, B.A. (N.U.I.); M.A. (Columbia)

Fine Arts

Visiting Professor Te-k'un CHENG, B.A., M.A. (Yenching); M.A. (Cambridge); Ph.D. (Harvard)

Senior Lecturer James Chi-yan WATT, B.A., M.A. (Oxon.)

Geography

Professor

Cheng-siang CHEN, B.Sc. (National Central); D.Sc. (Tohuku)

Senior Lecturer

Hsi-lin Tschang, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Tokyo U. of Ed.); F.R.G.S.

Government & Public Administration

Professor

Shou-sheng Hsueh, B.A. (Yenching); M.A., Ph.D. (Geneva)

History

Visiting Professor Tien-yi Li, B.A. (Nankai); M.A., Ph.D. (Yale)

Readers

Ching-ho CHEN, B.A., Litt.D. (Keio) Teh-chang CHANG, B.A., M.A. (Tsinghua) Han-sheng CHUAN, B.A. (National Peking) Teh-chao WANG, B.A. (National Peking); M.A.(Harvard) Keng-wang YEN, B.A. (National Wuhan)

Senior Lecturer

Kuo-tung SUN, B.A. (National Chengchi); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); Ph.D. (H.K.)

Journalism and Communication Studies

Professor

Timothy L.M. Yu, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (Stanford)

Mathematics

Senior Lecturers

Elmer J. BRODY, B.S. (*California Inst. of Tech*); Ph.D. (*Princeton*) Nai-ng CHAN, B.Sc. (*National Peking*); Ph.D. (*Liverpool*) Tzee-char Kuo, B.S. (*National Taiwan*); M.S., Ph.D. (*Chicago*) Shou-town Tsou, B.Sc. (*National Sun Yat-sen*); Ph.D. (*Liverpool*) R.F. TURNER-SMITH, B.Sc. (*Birmingham*); Ph.D. (*London*)

Music

Senior Lecturer

David Gwilt, B.Mus. (Cantab.)

Philosophy

Senior Lecturer Shu-hsien LIU, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (S. Illinois)

Physics

Professor

Bay-sung Hsu, B.Sc., Ph.D. (Manchester); F.Inst.P.; F.I.O.P.; F.R.S.A.

Senior Lecturers

Yau-wa CHAN, B.S., M.S. (Lingnan); Ph.D. (U.C., Berkeley)
Lien-sheng CHUANG, B.Sc. (National Taiwan Normal);
Ph.D. (Tokyo U. of Ed.); F.Inst.P.
Hin-hung Ho, Ph.D. (Southampton)
Lin-kuan Su, B.Sc. (National Central)

Religion

Senior Lecturers
Philip SHEN, B.A. (Philippine Christ. Coll.); M.A. (Oberlin Coll.);
B.D., Ph.D. (Chicago)
Paul CLASPER, A.B. (Taylor); B.D. (S. Baptist Theol. Seminary);
S.T.M., Th.D. (Union Theol. Seminary)

Social Work

Senior Lecturer

Kam-fai Ho, B.A. (National Taiwan); Dip.Soc.St. (H.K.); M.S.W., D.S.W. (Columbia)

Sociology

Senior Lecturers

Shau-lam Wong, B.A. (Lingnan); M.A. (S. California)
Ambrose Yeo-chi King, B.A. (National Taiwan);
M.A. (National Chengchi); M.A., Ph.D. (Pittsburgh)
Rance Pui-leung, LEE, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Pittsburgh)

Translation

Senior Lecturer

Phillip S.Y. Sun, M.A., Ph.D. (Yale)

DIRECTORS OF INSTITUTES AND RESEARCH CENTRES

Institute of Chinese Studies

Chang-tu Hu, B.A. (National Fu-tan); M.A., Ph.D. (Washington)

Institute of Science and Technology Hson-mou CHANG, B.Sc. (Shanghai); M.Sc., Ph.D. (lowa State)

Institute of Social Studies and the Humanities Mo-huan Hsing, B.A. (*National Central*)

Lingnan Institute of Business Administration Hsin Sutu, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Centre for Communication Studies Timothy L.M. Yu, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (Stanford).

Centre for East Asian Studies Chingho A. CHEN, B.A., Litt.D. (Keio)

Chinese Linguistics Research Centre Fa-kao Chou, B.A. (National Central); M.A. (National Peking)

Economic Research Centre Mo-huan Hsing, B.A. (National Central)

Geographical Research Centre Cheng-siang CHEN, B.S. (National Central); D.Sc. (Tohuku)

Marine Science Laboratory Lyle B. Thrower, M.Sc., Ph.D. (*Melbourne*); F.L.S.; J.P.

Social Research Centre Rance P.L. LEE, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Pittsburgh)

Translation Centre

Stephen C. SOONG, B.A. (Yenching)

BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

Advisory Board on Extramural Studies

Chairman:	Mr. K.S. Lo	
Member & Secretary:	Mr. T.C. Lai	
Advisory Board to the Institute of Chinese Studies		
Chairman: Dr. the Hon. Sir Kenneth Ping-fan Fung		
Secretary:	Mr. Stephen C. Soong	

Advisory Board to the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration

Chairman:	The Hon. G.R. Ross
Secretary:	Mr. D.A. GILKES

Advisory Board to the School of Education

Chairman:	Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo
Secretary:	Dr. Benjamin Y. CHAN

Advisory Committee on Electronics

Chairman:	Mr. C.J. Seelen
Secretary:	Mr. J.S. DAHELE

Advisory Committee on Instructional Television

Chai	rma	n:		Mr.	T.C.	Cheng
	,		~		-	*

M	emb	er	\mathcal{C}	Secr	etary	:	M	r.	Τ.	C.	LAI	
---	-----	----	---------------	------	-------	---	---	----	----	----	-----	--

Appointments Board

Chai	rma	n:		Mr. T.C. Cheng		
		~	~			

Member & Secretary: Mr. Nelson H. Young

Committee for the Institute of Chinese Studies

Chairman:	Dr. C.T.	Ηu

Member & Secretary: Mr. Teh-chao WANG

PART I ESTABLISHMENT

Committee on International Programmes

Convener:	Dr. John T.S. Chen
Member & Secretary:	Dr. Y.Y. KUEH

Editorial Committee of the University Publications Office

Chairman:	Dr. C.T. Hu
Secretary:	Mr. Adrian TENG

Management Committee for the Art Gallery

Chairman:	Dr. J.S. Lee
Member & Secretary:	Mr. James C.Y. WATT

Management Committee for the Computer Services Terminal

Chairman:	Dr. H.M. Chang
Member & Secretary:	Mr. J.J. Day

New Asia Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre Management Committee

Chairman:	Dr.	John	T.S.	Chen
-----------	-----	------	------	------

Member & Secretary: Mr. Ming Liu

Senior Staff Housing Committee

Chairman:	Mr. T.C. Cheng
Member & Secretary:	Mr. D.A. Gilkes

Temporary Hostels Committee

Chairman:	Mr. Nelson H. Young
Secretary:	Miss Janet LAI

University Bulletin Editorial Board

Chairman:	Mr. Stephen C. Soong
Member & Secretary:	Miss Yin-ling Chan

University Buildings & Grounds Committee

Chairman:	Mr. T.C. CHENG
Secretary:	Mr. K.K. Lı

University Calendar (Almanac) Committee

Convener:	Dr. John T.S. CHEN
Secretary:	Mrs. Y.Y. Lo

University Calendar Editorial Committee

Chairman:	Dr. John T.S. CHEN
Secretary:	Mrs. Y.Y. Lo

University Health Service Committee

Chairman:	Mr. T.C. Cheng
Secretary:	Mrs. C. Wong

University Journal Editorial Board

Chairman:	Dr. C.M. Li
Member & Secretary:	Mr. T.C. Lai

University Science Centre Management Committee

Chairman:	Prof. Bay-sung Hsu
Secretary:	Miss Julia Ning Woo

University Sports Field Management Committee

Chairman:	Mr. W.H.C. Wan
Secretary:	Mr. Yuen-wah Kwoк

University Tender Board

Chairman:	Dr. R.C. Lee
Member & Secretary:	Mr. Paul Y.Y. LAM

Working Party on External & Part-time Internal Degree Programmes

Convener: Dr. John T.S. CHEN Member & Secretary: Mr. S.H. So

Yali Guest House Management Committee

Chairman:	Mr. Nelson H. Young
Secretary:	Mrs. Amy Moк
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

Vice-Chancellor's Office

Special Assistant to the Vice-Chancellor Stephen C. SOONG, B.A. (Yenching)

Executive Assistant to the Vice-Chancellor Lilian C. LEE, Mrs., B.A. (Ginling)

Administrative Assistant Yin-ling CHAN, Miss, B.A., M.Phil. (H.K.)

Registry

Academic Affairs Assistant Registrar Linda Hu, Miss, B.A. (Duchesne Coll.); M.F.A. (Pratt Inst.)

Examinations

Assistant Registrar Siu-hing So, B.A., M.A. (H.K.); B.A. Hons. (London); M.A. (Columbia)

Administrative Assistants Kwok-chiu CHoy, LL.B. (National S.W. Assoc.) Wai-lun CHEUNG, B.A. (H.K.)

Faculty Boards & Admission Administrative Assistant Y.Y. Lo, Mrs., B.A. (H.K.); B.Ed. (Ottawa)

Graduate Studies Administrative Assistant Y.B. LEUNG, B.A. (H.K.)

Secretary's Office

General Affairs Assistant Secretary Lai-hung Kwan, B.A. Hons., M.A., Ph.D. (London)

Personnel

Assistant Secretary C. Wong, Mrs., B.A. (Lingnan); Dip.Ed. (London); M.A.(Ed.) (H.K.) Public Relations and Information Assistant Secretary Ату Мок, Mrs., B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Student Affairs Assistant Secretary William H.C. WAN, M.A. (Columbia); A.I.H.M.

Administrative Assistant Janet LAI, Miss, B.A. (H.K.)

Fire Prevention/Security Officer Kelly K.W. LEUNG

Transportation Officer Ronald Chow

Bursar's Office

Assistant Bursars K.K. LI, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) Paul P.C. Wong, A.A.S.A.; Dip. M.S. (H.K.) Paul Y.B. YEN, F.A.S.A.; F.H.K.S.A. K.C. YOUNG, B.A. (Lingnan)

Buildings Office

Director Paul Y.Y. LAM, B.Arch. (Kung Shang); A.R.I.B.A.

Deputy Buildings Officer Vincent W.S. CHEN, B.Sc. (H.K.) Assistant Buildings Officers Y.C. LIU, B.Sc. (Nanking) Ka-chai Wong, B.Arch. (H.K.)

Architect

Winston Y.S. KAN, B.Arch (Melbourne); A.R.A.I.A., A.R.I.B.A.

Graduate School

Dean

Chang-tu Hu, B.A. (National Fu-tan); M.A., Ph.D. (Washington)

Associate Dean

Shang-wai TAM, B.Sc., M.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Nottingham); F.R.I.C.

62

PART I ESTABLISHMENT

School of Education

Director

T.C. CHENG, O.B.E.; B.A. (H.K.); M.A., Dip.Ed. (London); J.P.

Administrative Assistant Yan-san HSIA, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Lingnan Institute of Business Administration

Director

Hsin SUTU, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Associate Director

John Espy, B.S. (Georgia Inst. of Tech.); M.S. (M.I.T.); D.B.A. (Harvard)

Department of Extramural Studies

Director

T.C. LAI, B.A., M.A. (H.K.); Dip.Ad.Ed. (Manchester); J.P.

Senior Staff Tutor

Perry SIU, B.A., Dip.Ed., M.A. (Sydney)

Staff Tutors

Ewo CHANG, B.A. (National Taiwan); B.Sc. (Cornell)
Chih-tai CHU, B.A. (National Fu-tan); M.A. (Michigan)
C.L. KING, B.A. (Taiwan Normal); M.F.A. (Art Inst. of Chicago)
Spencer C.K. WONG, B.S.Ed., M.Ed. (Oklahoma);
B.A. Hons. (New Brunswick); Dip.Ed., Ph.D. (Edinburgh)

Administrative Assistant

Kit-hung Wong, B.Sc. (London); Dip. (Lond. Coll. of Printing)

New Asia Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre

Director

Ming LIU, B.S. (Chinese Naval Academy); M.A. (Hawaii)

University Library

Sub-Librarian Frederick CHANG, B.L.S., M.Ed. (Ottawa); M.L.S. (Kansas State Teachers Coll.) Assistant Librarians Evangeline L. CHAN, Mrs., B.A. (U. of the East); M.A.(Lib.Sc.) (Minnesota) Nancy L. CHAN, Mrs., B.A. (Queen's); M.L.S. (McGill) Yu-mei CHOI, Miss, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.L.S. (S. Connecticut State) Tso-huai Chow, B.S. (National Chung Hsing); M.S. (Kansas); M.L.S. (George Peabody) *Ruth B. Espy, Mrs., B.S. (Simmons Coll.) Chik-fong LEE, B.A., M.A. (H.K.); M.L.S. (Columbia) Jeanne Man-shun MAK, B.A. (H.K.); M.L.S. (Texas Woman's) Mabel Yeuk-ho WANG, Mrs., B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.L.S. (Indiana State) Pauline YIH, Miss, B.S. (California); M.L.S. (Pittsburgh) Kwoon-choh YUE, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); B.A. (Tokyo U. of Foreign Studies) Probationary Assistant Librarian Chiu-chung Wong, B.A. (H.K.)

Cataloguers

Patty LEUNG, Mrs., B.A. (H.K.) Kin-keung Liu, B.A. (National Taiwan) John Heng-yu Wu, B.A. (National Taiwan)

University Health Service

Director

Robert DAN, M.B., B.S. (H.K.); Dip.Soc.Med. (Edinburgh); F.R.S.H.

Resident Physicians

Koon Wong, M.B., B.S. (H.K.) Alice Shau-ping MA LEUNG, Mrs., M.B., B.S. (H.K.)

Dental Surgeons

Sai-tat Wong, D.M.D. (*Philippines*) Yan-chi Tung Liang, Mrs., B.D.S. (*Peking Medical Coll.*)

Art Gallery

Curator

James Chi-yan WATT, B.A., M.A. (Oxon.)

Administrative Assistant Philip Yiu-cheung MAK, B.A. (London)

* Honorary and Part-time

Translation Centre

Director & Executive Editor

Stephen C. Soong, B.A. (Yenching)

Editor-At-Large

George KAO, B.A. (Yenching); M.A. (Columbia); M.A. (Missouri)

Managing Editor

Diana Yue, Miss, B.A. (H.K.)

Assistant Fellow

Sui-cheong CHAU, B.A. (H.K.)

Appointments Service

Director

Nelson H. Young, B.A. (H.K.); Cert. Ed. (London)

Deputy Director

Elizabeth W. Ko, Mrs., B.A. (California); M.A. (San Francisco State)

Administrative Assistant

Rosemary LEUNG, Miss, B.A. (H.K.); M.Ed. (Boston)

Computer Services Terminal

Software Consultants

Chi-shun Hui, B.A. (London) Doris Wai-chong Tang Watt, Mrs., B.A., Dip.Ed. (H.K.); Cert. of Systems Analysis (National Computer Centre)

Programmers I

Nelson Wai CHAN, B.Sc. (Wisconsin); M.Sc. (Michigan) Chun-chak Ho, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp. (H.K.); M.Sc. (Birmingham) Paul Chun-ming NG, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.S. (Utah); M.S., M.A. (Hawaii)

Publications Office

Director

T.C. LAI, B.A., M.A. (H.K.); Dip.Ad.Ed. (Manchester); J.P.

Assistant

Adrian TENG, B.A. (National Hunan)

Production Assistant

Chun-chung Ho, B.Comm. (C.U.H.K.)

Administrative Assistant

Pansy Pok-fai Ng Wong, Mrs., B.F.A. (Maryland Inst.)

University of California Study Centre

Director

Bruce D. LARKIN, B.A. (Chicago); M.A., Ph.D. (Harvard)

Associate Director

Elijah P. Lovejoy, A.B. (Princeton); Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Office of International Programmes

Coordinator

Yak-yeow KUEH, Jt.Dip. (New Asia); Ph.D. (Marburg)

University Science Centre

Administrative Assistant

Julia Ning Woo, Miss, B.A., M.Ed. (Ohio)

PART II

GENERAL INFORMATION

r.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Chinese University of Hong Kong was incorporated in October 1963 under a Hong Kong Ordinance 'to establish a university with a federal constitution in which the principal language of instruction shall be Chinese'.

It is a self-governing corporation drawing its income mainly from grants made by the Hong Kong Government.

Origin

The University has its origin in three Post-Secondary Colleges: New Asia College, Chung Chi College, and United College, which drew, in their early days, most of their teachers and students from the mainland of China. New Asia College was founded in 1949 by a group of "refugee" professors and students, and in the early period used rented flats in a poor district in Kowloon. Chung Chi College was founded in 1951 by educationists and representatives of various Protestant Churches and Missions in Hong Kong. It had only sixty-three students at its founding. The United College of Hong Kong, founded in 1956, was a combination of five colleges established earlier. In spite of adversity, the College developed steadily with the help of friends and the community at large and by their own persistent efforts.

In 1957, these three Colleges came together to form the Chinese Colleges Joint Council. The objectives of the Council were to raise standards in Chinese higher education, to develop joint policies where possible, to work for the achievement of objects of common interest, and to represent Member Colleges in joint negotiations with Government where common policy was concerned.

In June 1959, Government, satisfied with the progress being made, announced that financial aid would be given to the three Colleges to help them improve their standards, and that in due course, provided the required standards were met, a commission would be appointed to review the readiness of the Colleges for university status.

In the same year, Mr. John S. Fulton (now Lord Fulton of Falmer, former Vice-Chancellor of the University of Sussex) was invited to visit Hong Kong to advise on the general lines of development which the Colleges should pursue.

In 1960, Government introduced the Post-Secondary Colleges Ordinance and Regulations, which were designed to provide financial support to the three Colleges and to ensure that such support would be related to the measures taken to raise standards to a higher level.

Under the Grant Regulations, students were selected for admission to first-year courses from among those attaining an approved standard in a Joint Entry Examination and to participate in a Joint Diploma Examination. A Joint Establishment Board was formed for the selection of staff.

In 1961, a University Preparatory Committee, chaired by the late Dr. the Hon. Sir Cho-yiu Kwan, was appointed to advise on sites and buildings and matters connected with the establishment of the University.

In the same year, advisers from Britain and the United States visited Hong Kong to advise the Colleges on development to university level of their courses in arts, science, commerce and social science. Reports of these advisers were encouraging, and in 1962, Government, in view of the progress made on all fronts, announced the appointment of a commission to make recommendations on the establishment of the University. The Commission was chaired by Mr. John S. Fulton and had as members Dr. Choh-Ming Li (now Vice-Chancellor of the University), then Professor of Business Administration and Director of the Centre for Chinese Studies at the University of California, Berkeley, Dr. J.V. Loach, Registrar of the University of Leeds, Professor Thong Saw-pak, Professor of Physics at the University of Cambridge. Mr. I.C.M. Maxwell, Secretary of the Inter-University Council for Higher Education Overseas, served as the Commission's Secretary.

The Commission came to Hong Kong that summer, and, before its departure, publicly announced that in their view the three Post-Secondary Grant Colleges were ready for university status. It undertook the task of recommending the university organization and constitution. In April 1963, their eagerly awaited report, known as the *Fulton Report*, was published and received with general enthusiasm. The painstaking care and profundity which characterize it has won the gratitude of the University towards Lord John Fulton and the other learned members of the Commission.

In June 1963, Government announced that it approved the Commission's recommendations in principle, as did the Colleges. Then the formation of a Provisional Council was announced. On 2nd July, 1963, the necessary preliminary work having been completed, preparation for the University began. The Chinese University Ordinance and Statutes were enacted in September 1963. After Government had made a promise to grant the University a plot of land at Shatin, New Territories, the University Architect was appointed to draw up a master plan of development. Temporary headquarters for the University was established in Mongkok, Kowloon.

On 17th October, 1963, the University was formally inaugurated. A Selection Committee was appointed to find a Vice-Chancellor for the University. Meanwhile, the University administration was entrusted to the first Pro-Vice-Chancellor, Dr. C.T. Yung, President of Chung Chi College.

The appointment of Professor Choh-Ming Li as the first Vice-Chancellor was announced in December the same year, and he assumed office in January 1964.

University Motto, Colours and Emblem

The motto of the University is '博文約禮' (po-wen yueh-li):

'By extensively studying all learning, and keeping himself under the restraint of the rules of propriety, one may thus likewise not err from what is right.' (Legge's version of the *Four Books*)

It is recorded in the Analects of Confucius that Yen Yuan, a disciple of Confucius, in praising the education he received from the Master, quoted '博文 約禮' as its characteristics. The great Sung Confucianists, the Ch'eng brothers and Chu Hsi, also mentioned '博文約禮' as an important educational principle of Confucius.

To interpret it in modern terms, '文' covers all kinds of knowledge or learning. Thus, the terms '天文' (the learning of Heaven), '地文' (the learning of the Earth) and '人文' (the learning of Man) are broadly used. Together they include the humanities, social sciences and natural sciences.

'禮' covers all rules of propriety required of an individual, a society or a government.

A man's intellectual horizon must constantly be broadened — this is '博 文'; his personality may only be developed within the bounds of the rules of propriety — this is '約禮'. The University motto therefore lays equal emphasis on the intellectual and moral aspects of education.

The University colours are purple and gold, symbolizing devotion and loyalty (purple) and perseverance and resolution (gold).

The emblem of the University is the mythical Chinese bird *feng*, which is chosen because of its association in Han and later times with the South, as well as with nobility, beauty, loyalty, majesty, and many other virtues.

Caps, Gowns and Hoods

The Chancellor's official gown is a black robe of silk taffeta with gold trimmings of $5\frac{1}{2}$ " from yoke tapering down to $2\frac{1}{2}$ " in front. Sleeves with two gold bands of $3\frac{1}{2}$ " and 1" respectively are turned up to show purple lining. The cap is black, trimmed and edged gold with gold tassel.

The Vice-Chancellor's official gown is a black robe of silk taffeta with gold trimmings of $5\frac{1}{2}$ " from yoke tapering down to 1" in front. Sleeves with one gold band of 1" are turned up to show purple lining. The cap is black and edged gold with gold tassel.

The Pro-Vice-Chancellor's official gown is a black robe of silk taffeta with gold trimmings of 1'' and purple trimmings of 3''. The sleeves are edged purple. The cap is black and edged gold with black tassel.

The Treasurer's official gown is a grey robe edged gold with a Mandarin collar. The cap is black with black tassel.

The Secretary's official gown is a grey robe with a Mandarin collar and edged with purple and gold stripes. The cap is black with black tassel.

The Registrar's official gown is a grey robe edged purple with a Mandarin collar. The cap is black with black tassel.

The Librarian's official gown is a grey robe with a Mandarin collar and edged with double purple stripes. The cap is black with black tassel.

The Bursar's official gown is a grey robe edged dark grey with a Mandarin collar. The cap is black with black tassel.

The Chairman of the Convocation wears a mauve robe edged purple with a Mandarin collar. The cap is black with black tassel.

The academic gown of an LL.D. Degree holder is a red woollen robe with gold trimmings on the sleeves and from the yoke down in front and a Mandarin collar. The cap is black in a "Pork-pie" style. The hood is red and edged gold.

The academic gown of a Master's Degree holder is a black robe with black velvet trimmings on the front of the robe and the sleeves, and a Mandarin collar. On the upper edge of the velvet trimmings of the sleeves, there is a $\frac{1}{2}''$ deep purple line. The cap is black with black tassel. The hood is lined with the relevant faculty colour, and has a $\frac{1}{2}''$ edge of the same colour. The faculty colours are:

ARTS:	pale yellow
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION:	grey
SCIENCE:	mauve
SOCIAL SCIENCE:	sage green

The academic gown of a Bachelor's Degree holder is black with black velvet trimmings on the front of the robe and the sleeves, and a Mandarin collar. The cap is black with black tassel. The hood is black on both sides and a $2\frac{1}{2}$ " edge in the relevant faculty colour.

Land and Buildings

The University's spectacular 331-acre campus is located near the town of Shatin which is now under development as a major urban centre in the New Territories. The site overlooks beautiful Tolo Harbour to the north and Tide Cove to the east. Majestic mountains ranging over 3,000 feet are in view from any direction.

The campus itself varies in elevation from 14 to 460 feet and has been formed essentially into four plateaus to provide necessary building sites. The Headquarters and Central Activities of the University are located on the mid-level plateau (330 feet) in the approximate centre of the campus around which the three Constituent Colleges have been placed. Chung Chi College occupies a 57-acre tract on the lower plateau (14-90 feet) in the southern sector of the campus. New Asia and United Colleges share the 38-acre upper plateau (450 feet) in the northern sector. Five blocks of staff flats are located further north on the reverse slope of this ridge with a beautiful view of the harbour and the mountains on the far shore.

The campus at present constitutes a day-time community of several thousand academic and administrative staff and students. Resident accommodations now exist for almost 255 married staff and their dependents, 75 single staff and over 1,600 students (51% of the student body). The University is striving diligently to increase the number of accommodations on campus for both staff and students. A number of projects are in progress toward this end which will be funded from both Government and private sources.

The University has integrated telephone, water, electrical, sewage, road and street lighting systems. The major buildings now in use include:

University Buildings:

Administrative Headquarters Benjamin Franklin Staff/Student Amenities Building University Library Health Centre Institute of Chinese Studies Minor Staff Quarters (Joint) (38 married — 16 single) Marine Science Laboratory Staff Residences (5 apartment blocks — 90 flats) Science Centre Vice-Chancellor's Residence Yali Guest House (5 single and 2 double rooms)

University facilities also include a Sports Field and a Olympic-sized swimming pool. Chung Chi College:

Administration Building Chapel Library/Teaching Building Minor Staff Quarters (12 married quarters and 1 single dormitory) Music Centre President's House Staff Centre Staff Quarters (48 flats plus 3 single rooms in the Old Clinic) Student Dining Hall/Amenities Building Student Hostels (4 units — rooms for 392 students) Seminary (includes 6 staff flats and rooms for 40 students) Teaching Block

New Asia College:

Administration, Fine Arts and Journalism Building Arts and Commerce Building Library Staff/Student Amenities Building Student Hostels (2 units — rooms for 250 students) President's House

United College:

Administration and Arts Building Commerce and Social Science Building Library/Teaching Building Staff/Student Amenities Building Student Hostels (2 units — rooms for 250 students) President's House

Each College has an indoor gymnasium and Chung Chi College also has a Sports Field.

Building projects which are or will be completed in 1975/76 include:---

University Buildings:

Science Centre Extension Staff Housing (36 flats including 12 for visiting scholars) Sir Cho-Yiu Hall and Lady Ho Tung Hall (student hostel) Post-Graduate Hall Minor Staff Quarters (48 married quarters)

College Buildings:

Junior Staff Quarters (New Asia – 15 flats; United College – 20 flats; Chung Chi College – 18 single, 7 double rooms and 1 flat)

72

The University regrets that Government, because of its present financial stringency, has decided to defer for at least one year until Government's financial situation is improved the following approved projects:—

University Buildings:

Business Administration, Economic Research & Public Administration Building

Central Activities Building

Lecture Hall Complex

Multi-Purpose Auditorium

Sports Centre

Lift Tower

Estates & Maintenance Office

Transportation & Security Depot

Nurses' Quarters & Extension to Health Centre

Extension to Marine Science Laboratory

Additional Staff Quarters (58 units)

Additional Minor Staff Quarters (for 100 single persons)

Alteration to Science Centre

College Buildings:

Student Hostels (3 units - 220 student spaces per College)

Alteration to Chung Chi College

The University, in spite of the present financial difficulties which Hong Kong now encounters, believes with great confidence that the University as well as Hong Kong will continue to develope. In order to remain viable and be responsive to the changing needs and requirements of Hong Kong, it is incumbent on the University to plan ahead to ensure that sufficient land is reserved for its use to preserve a proper academic environment and provide suitable sites for future expansion. The University has presented to Government for consideration a proposal of the long range land requirement of the University which it is hoped can be incorporated in the Government scheme for development of the area between Shatin and Tai Po. Otherwise, the Chinese University, like so many other institutions in urban areas, may find its campus hemmed in by peripheral commercial development which would inhibit any further academic as well as physical growth of the University.

Finance

The University and its Foundation Colleges have small endowment funds and receive grants from private donors and interested associations for scholarships, research and other restricted purposes. Apart from fees which are comparatively low, the main source of income for salaries, operating expenses and equipment is the Hong Kong Government.

Negotiations between the University and the Government are conducted by the University and Polytechnic Grants Committee, established in 1965, composed of eleven overseas academic members and six local business or professional members. This Committee advises the Government on the financial requirements of the University.

The capital cost of buildings in the new campus will amount to some HK\$160 million and the cost of the site formation and external works has been about HK\$37 million. The Hong Kong Government has assumed responsibility for several basic buildings in addition to site formation and external works: private funds have been paid for the Student Centre, Library, Chinese Studies Building, University Health Centre and Yali Guest House. It is hoped that building funds may be obtained from overseas friends and associations for other buildings.

Faculties, Degrees and Diplomas

Admission to all Faculties and Colleges is conditional upon passing the Matriculation Examination of the University or obtaining exemption therefrom.

The University has at present four Faculties, namely, Arts, Business Administration, Science and Social Science.

Students entering any one of the above Faculties follow a four-year undergraduate course. They will be required to pass the Degree Examination consisting of two parts before they will be conferred a degree. Part I of the Examination will be taken at the end of the third and Part II at the end of the fourth year of their studies. Altogether they will take seven to nine papers. The degree of Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Science, Bachelor of Business Administration, or Bachelor of Social Science will be conferred on those who pass all the requisite papers in a major and a minor subject.

The degree of Master of Philosophy, Master of Business Administration or Master of Divinity will be conferred on graduate students who successfully complete a two-year course in the Graduate School. The degree of Master of Science and Master of Arts in Education will be conferred on graduate students who successfully complete a one-year course in the same school. Students having successfully completed a one-year postgraduate full-time course or a two-year postgraduate part-time course in the School of Education receive a Diploma in Education.

Students having successfully completed a one-year post-graduate full-time course in Systems Analysis receive a Diploma in Systems Analysis.

With the increase of faculties and staff further degree programmes will be initiated.

Undergraduate Teaching

On the whole, each of the University's Foundation Colleges conducts its own undergraduate teaching. The various Departments of the Colleges are presented in the College entries of this Calendar.

The curricula and their standards are set by the University's Boards of Studies and approved by the Faculty Boards and the Senate. There are now twenty-one Boards of Studies and six Committees under four Faculties:

Faculty of Arts

Board of Studies in Chinese Language & Literature Board of Studies in English Board of Studies in Fine Arts Board of Studies in History Board of Studies in Music Board of Studies in Philosophy Board of Studies in Religion (Theology Division) Committee on French, German, Japanese & Italian Studies Committee on Physical Education Committee on Translation

Faculty of Business Administration

Committee on Accounting and Finance Committee on General Business Management and Personnel Management Committee on Marketing and International Business

Faculty of Science

Board of Studies in Biochemistry Board of Studies in Biology Board of Studies in Chemistry Board of Studies in Computer Science Board of Studies in Electronics Board of Studies in Mathematics Board of Studies in Physics Faculty of Social Science

Board of Studies in Economics Board of Studies in Education Board of Studies in Geography Board of Studies in Government & Public Administration Board of Studies in Journalism Board of Studies in Social Work Board of Studies in Sociology (Anthropology Section, Psychology Section)

Beginning from the second year, intercollegiate teaching is the aim, although a number of first year courses are also being offered on an intercollegiate basis. Such teaching has been expanded since its introduction in 1964 by leaps and bounds.

A major change has been effected through the introduction of small-class teaching and the establishment of "core" programmes. The latter represents a reduction of required courses in each subject field to a minimum, thus freeing the teachers for tutorial work and research, and also giving the students greater freedom to exercise their intellectual curiosity.

The programmes of studies of the four Faculties are obtainable from the Registry of the University on request.

The University Library

The University Library had its unpretentious beginnings in 1965 in the On Lee Building in Kowloon where it stayed until August 1969, when it came to take up temporary quarters in the Benjamin Franklin Centre on the Shatin Campus. In September 1970, Sir David Trench, Governor of Hong Kong, laid the foundation stone of the new building, and on 15th December, 1972, the new University Library was officially opened by Mrs. Kin May W. Tang in memory of her late husband, Dr. Tang Ping-Yuan. This spacious five-storied edifice can house over 400,000 volumes and accommodate 500 readers on its 86,000 square feet of floor space. Its faculty study rooms and carrels for readers, its conference and seminar rooms, an audio-visual room, a photographic laboratory, its microfilm facilities, rare book room, proposed book bindery, and its free-standing steel shelving, all go to make the Library one of the most modern academic libraries in the Far East.

The University Library is primarily a reference and research library for the use of the faculty, staff, visiting research scholars, and students of the University. In neither duplicating nor usurping the role and function of the three Foundation College Libraries, the University Library and these libraries now comprise one coordinated University Library System. Since the University is a federal-type university, this coordinated University Library System is most desirable. At

76

present coordination is being carried out in three main ways: (1) the centralized acquisition of all books and periodicals in both Oriental and Western languages, (2) the centralized cataloguing of all books and periodicals in both Oriental and Western languages and (3) the maintenance of a union card catalogue of all the holdings in the libraries of the three Foundation Colleges and the University Library. Furthermore, inter-collegiate borrowing privileges are available to all faculty members and students of the University. With the pooling of personnel and resources from both the College and University Libraries for centralized ordering and processing, unnecessary duplication of work in cataloguing and purchasing is greatly minimized.

Further coordination of the University Library System is effected by the Library System Working Party, consisting of the University Librarian (Chairman) and the three College Librarians. This committee has been established to facilitate the day-to-day functioning of the libraries and to discuss mutual technical problems. There is also a Senate Committee on University Library System which advises the Senate on the policy and administration of the University Library System. This Committee has the following membership:

Chairman: The Vice-Chancellor or his representativeMembers: Chairmen of College Library CommitteesUniversity Faculty DeansThe Dean of the Graduate School

Member & Secretary: The Director of the University Library System

Since October 1969, the Library of Congress Classification has been used for Western language materials. During this time, the Western language collection of the University Library has also been reclassified from the Dewey Decimal Classification System to that of the Library of Congress. The Oriental language collection was classified and catalogued according to the *Classification Scheme for Chinese and Japanese Books*, edited by Yenching and Havard Universities, and *Ch'iu's Cataloguing Rules for Chinese Books*. In August 1971, however, the Library of Congress Classification System was also adopted for the Library's Oriental language collections.

In May 1969, a union catalogue of serials in the University Library System was published in book form. This catalogue lists 2,281 scholarly and collegiate journals with complete holdings in the various libraries. A supplement to this came out in December 1970. The University Library System also publishes monthly acquisitions lists for both Oriental and Western language materials.

Large sets of Chinese classical books in the traditional format of silk-stitched fascicles have been acquired for the research of the faculty and graduate students in Chinese Studies. Many important journals in the field of Chinese Studies, in

both Oriental and Western languages, have been obtained. The Western language collection is also growing steadily stronger, particularly in bibliographic and reference materials.

THE UNIVERSITY	LIBRARY	BOOK HOLDINGS	AT 30TH	JUNE, 1975
Language		Titles		Volumes
Chinese		43,946		88,339
Japanese		5,985		10,636
Western		42,876		51,964
	Total:	92,807		150,939

THE UNIVERSITY LIBRARY JOURNAL HOLDINGS AT 30TH JUNE, 1975

Language		Titles
Oriental		632
Western		2,508
	Total:	3,140

Of this total, 1,766 titles are currently received: 130 journals in Chinese, 28 in Japanese and Korean, and 1,608 in Western languages.

With more than ample space in the new building, many books and journals formerly shelved in departmental libraries and research centres are now in the University Library for easy access of all users. The School of Education still has educational materials at its temporary centre in Chung Chi College.

In addition to the above, the three College Libraries have a total collection of over 300,000 volumes. Details concerning these three libraries are presented in the College entries of this *Calendar*.

Computer Services Terminal

The Chinese University Computer Services Terminal (CUCST) is in operation on the lower ground floor of the Benjamin Franklin Centre. This terminal is designed to serve the needs of the University community. It affords high speed remote job entry to the ICL 1904A computer of the Universities and Polytechnic Computer Centre (UPCC) which is located in the Tung Ying Building, Tsim Sha Tsui.

The central ICL computer consists of 128 thousand words of 24-bit core memory and 240 million characters of on-line disk storage.

The Computer Services Terminal provides the following services to university student users, faculty researchers, and university administration users:

- (a) Over-the-counter remote job entry services.
- (b) Computer software consultation services for users having difficulty in debugging programmes or unfamiliar with the various software packages available.
- (c) Data preparation services.

A Management Committee has been established to:

- (a) Oversee the operation of the CUCST.
- (b) Advise the Vice-Chancellor on all matters relating to computer services requirements of the University community.

Admission

Before a candidate may be considered for admission to the University, he or she must first pass the prescribed Matriculation Examination or obtain exemption therefrom. The minimum requirement for matriculation by examination is to obtain a passing grade in Chinese Language & Literature, English Language and three other subjects. Further information concerning entry into the Matriculation Examination are included in Part V of this publication. In special circumstances, a candidate who possesses qualifications equivalent to the matriculation requirements and has proven proficiency in Chinese may be exempted from taking the Matriculation Examination. Mature persons who are aged 29 or over on 1st September in the year when admission is sought and who cannot meet the normal matriculation requirements may apply for matriculation exemption.

To be eligible for admission to one of the three Foundation Colleges of the University, an applicant must, in addition to fulfilling the matriculation requirements, satisfy any special requirements that may from time to time be prescribed by the Faculty Boards and the College.

Fees

In the academic year 1975-76, the following fees are charged: 1. FEES PAYABLE EACH ACADEMIC YEAR

								HK\$
Composition Fee								1,750.00
Annual Student Union Subscription		•		•	•	·	•	60.00
FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE								
								HK\$
Caution money*								100.00
FEE DAVABLE ON CRADILATION								
THE TATABLE ON GRADONITON								HK\$
Graduation Fee								100.00
MISCELLANEOUS								HK\$
								5.00
Transcript Fee (Ist copy) .	·	٠	•	•	·	•	·	
(additional copy) .	•	•	•	٠	•	•		1.00
Matriculation Examination Fee .	•							80.00
Re-examination Fee (per paper) .			•				•	20.00
	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money* FEE PAYABLE ON GRADUATION Graduation Fee MISCELLANEOUS Transcript Fee (1st copy) (additional copy) . Matriculation Examination Fee .	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money* FEE PAYABLE ON GRADUATION Graduation Fee MISCELLANEOUS Transcript Fee (1st copy) (additional copy) Matriculation Examination Fee	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money* . FEE PAYABLE ON GRADUATION Graduation Fee . MISCELLANEOUS Transcript Fee (1st copy) . (additional copy) . Matriculation Examination Fee .	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money* . FEE PAYABLE ON GRADUATION Graduation Fee . MISCELLANEOUS Transcript Fee (1st copy) . (additional copy) . Matriculation Examination Fee .	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money*	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money* . FEE PAYABLE ON GRADUATION Graduation Fee . MISCELLANEOUS Transcript Fee (1st copy) . (additional copy) . Matriculation Examination Fee .	FEE PAYABLE AT ENTRANCE Caution money*	Caution money*

Fees payable by graduate students are listed in Part IV Graduate School of this *Calendar*.

^{*} The sum is returnable on withdrawal from the University, subject to no claim being outstanding; the balance of this deposit is normally used towards payments of the Graduation fee.

Scholarships, Bursaries and Financial Aid to Students

There are available at this University a number of scholarships and bursaries, as listed below, for both undergraduate and post-graduate students, and the Senate Committee on University Scholarships is responsible for "fixing, subject to any conditions made by the donor and accepted by the Council, the times, the mode and the conditions of competition for University scholarships, bursaries, and prizes, and loan funds, and awarding the same".

Except in the case of single awards which exceed HK\$5,000, no undergraduate is normally given scholarships or bursaries above a total of HK\$5,000 per year.

The following table shows an analysis of awards given out to undergraduates in the academic year 1974-75:

	ENROL- MENT		OVERN- MENT WARDS	UNIVER- SITY AWARDS	COLLEGE AWARDS		OTHER AWARDS No. Amount		OTAL NO. OF AWARDS	TOTAL NO. OF RECIPIENTS	
			No.	No.	No.				No.		
			Amount	Amount	Amount				Amount		
Chung Chi	1,057	\$	574 662,720	75 \$167,150	137 \$ 64,907		37 5 10,900	\$	823 905,677	700	
New Asia	1,006	\$	584 689,820	46 \$ 83,211	94 \$ 60,600	• •	29 5 46,920	\$	753 880,551	703	
United	1,081	\$	594 677,590	68 \$147,431	135 \$127,900	4	17 5 19 , 570	\$	814 972,491	662	
Total	3,144		1,752 2,030,130	189 \$397,792	366 \$253,407	' 4	83 5 77,390	2,390 \$2,758,719		2,065	
% of total awards		73.31%		7.91%	15.31%		3.47%		100%		
% of total stu	dents									65.68%	

Details of University-wide scholarships and bursaries are given below, and details of College awards may be found in the College *Calendars*. There are limited opportunities for part-time employment, and the Joint Universities' Committee on Student Finance and some Colleges have student loan funds for emergencies.

American University Club of Hong Kong Scholarship

The American University Club of Hong Kong has donated a scholarship of HK\$3,000 for a student of the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration.

Anonymous Scholarships

An anonymous donation of HK\$100,000 has been made to establish a scholarship fund to provide two "Anonymous Scholarships" of HK\$4,000 each for students of the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration.

Bank of America Debating Scholarships and Scholarships for Research Projects

The Bank of America Debating Scholarships are awarded to four undergraduates, two each from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the University of Hong Kong, on the basis of an annual debating contest organized jointly by the Students' Unions of the two Universities early in the second term of each academic year. The debating contest is between two teams each comprising four undergraduate students, two from each University, and each member of the winning team is awarded a scholarship of the value of HK\$500 in respect of the current academic year.

The Bank of America Scholarships for Research Projects are awarded on the result of a debating contest between the two Universities. A scholarship of HK\$4,600 and a trophy are available for award to the University whose team of four undergraduates wins the contest, and a scholarship of HK\$3,000 is awarded to the other University. The sum is awarded to students for the best research projects to be conducted in the summer vacation or in the following academic year.

The Bank of East Asia Golden Jubilee Scholarships

In commemoration of its Golden Jubilee, the Bank of East Asia has since 1972-73 donated six scholarships of HK\$3,500 each year, to two students of each College.

The Chartered Bank Scholarships

The Chartered Bank Ltd. has donated three scholarships of HK\$4,000, for one student of Business Administration at each College.

Chinese Engineers & Scientists Association of Southern California Scholarship

The Chinese Engineers & Scientists Association of Southern California has donated a scholarship of US\$100 to be awarded to an undergraduate in the Science Faculty, as encouragement for scientific and engineering development among the Chinese in Hong Kong. Award is made on the basis of need, leadership, scholastic record and contribution in undergraduate summer research.

The Chinese Manufacturers' Association Scholarships

The Chinese Manufacturers' Association of Hong Kong has donated six scholarships of HK\$500 for two students of each College, and each College can fix its own mode and conditions of award.

Chinese Temples Committee Scholarships

A sum of HK\$6,000 each year is donated by the Chinese Temples Committee to the University to set up six scholarships for the advancement of Chinese studies. Three scholarships are awarded to students in the School of Education working towards a Diploma in Education and specialising in the teaching of

Chinese studies. The other three scholarships are awarded at each of the three Foundation Colleges of the University to a 2nd- or 3rd-year student of the Department of Chinese, History or Philosophy according to the results of the College's Chinese Language Examination.

Chiu Fuksan Scholarships

A scholarship fund of HK\$30,000 has been donated by Mr. Chiu Fuksan. The income therefrom is used to provide scholarship(s) for 4th-year students, allocated to the Colleges by turn.

Dow Chemical Scholarships

Dow Chemical has donated two scholarships of HK\$5,500 for students of the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration.

Duty Free Shoppers Scholarships

To promote higher education, Duty Free Shoppers Limited has since 1974 donated a sum of HK\$35,000 annually to set up a scholarship programme at this University. Four scholarships, one for each Faculty, shall be awarded to four 2nd-year students on the basis of their first year assessment. Character, personality and potential leadership are also taken into consideration. These scholarships, each in the amount of HK\$5,000 per annum, are renewable for another two years subject to satisfactory academic progress and conduct, and the availability of funds.

First National City Bank Scholarships

Two scholarships have been donated by the First National City Bank, one of HK\$5,500 to a student of the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration and the other of HK\$5,000 to an undergraduate of Business Administration, Economics or related fields. The scholarships are awarded on the basis of academic merit and the candidates' potential contribution as members of the business community in Hong Kong. These scholarships may not be held concurrently with any other scholarship, bursary or loan.

Alfred A. Gilman Medical Scholarship

A scholarship of US\$500 per annum, for a period of five year w.e.f. 1970-71, has been donated by Dr. Francis S. Hutchins, former Representative of the Yale-China Association in Hong Kong, and Mrs. (Dr.) Hutchins, in memory of Mr. Alfred A. Gilman, for a student of this University to study medicine at the University of Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Scholarships

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce has donated three scholarships of HK\$2,000, awarded to the best 4th-year student of Business Administration at each College on the basis of performance in the third year.

82

Hong Kong Government Grants and Loans

The Hong Kong Government approved a scheme in May 1969, under which public funds are made available for grants and interest-free loans to needy students so that no student who is offered a place in this University should be unable to accept it because of lack of means. The scheme is administered by the Joint Universities' Committee on Student Finance, and the allocation of grants and loans is based solely on financial need. Over 22 million dollars will be available for this scheme in the academic year 1975-76 for this University and the University of Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Government Social Work Bursaries

Public funds are made available for the award of bursaries to 3rd- and 4thyear students of Social Work. Maximum value of each bursary is HK\$3,500 per annum for a maximum period of two years, subject to annual review. Successful candidates must take up a career in social work in Hong Kong for at least two years after graduation.

Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank Social Work Scholarships

In commemoration of its Centenary in 1965 and to attract some of the best undergraduates to careers in social work, The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation has donated certain investments to the University and the annual income is used for the award of scholarships to 3rd- and 4th-year students in the Department of Social Work. The scholarships are each of the value of HK \$5,000 per annum for a maximum period of two years, and may not be held concurrently with any other scholarships. Tenure is subject to satisfactory academic progress and evidence of continued interest in social work. Successful applicants must work for at least two years after graduation for social welfare agencies in Hong Kong.

International Computers Ltd. (ICL) Scholarships

International Computers Ltd. (ICL) has donated six scholarships of HK \$1,000 each, to be awarded to full-time undergraduates or postgraduates studying computer science or its applications as part or all of their curriculum.

Kong E Suen Memorial Scholarships

A sum of HK\$435,000 has been donated by four sons of the late Mr. Kong E Suen for the establishment of the "Kong E Suen Memorial Scholarship Fund". The income therefrom is utilised to provide a number of scholarships for promising and needy students.

Kwok Ching Tong Scholarships

A scholarship fund of HK\$100,000 has been donated in memory of the late Mr. Kwok Ching Tong, the income of which is used to provide a scholarship of HK\$3,000 per annum for a student of each College, awarded on the basis of academic ability and financial need. These awards are renewable to enable the recipients to complete their studies.

B.Y. Lam Foundation Scholarships

The B.Y. Lam Foundation Limited donates a sum of HK\$6,000 each year for three scholarships for students majoring in Economics or Business Administration, one for each College.

Lam Oi Tong Scholarships

A sum of HK\$50,000 has been donated to this University to set up a "Lam Oi Tong Scholarship Fund". The interest accruing annually from the fund is used for two scholarships tenable at the School of Education.

C.K. Law Memorial Scholarships

A scholarship fund of approximately HK\$100,000 has been established by the late Mr. C.K. Law's friends in his memory, the income from which provides four scholarships of HK\$1,500 each, awarded to three needy 4th-year students in the Department of Chinese on the basis of Part I Degree Examination results and one postgraduate needy student of Chinese with outstanding performance in the first year.

Li Po Chun Scholarships

The Li Po Chun Charitable Trust Fund Committee donates each year a number of scholarships of HK\$2,000 per annum each, tenable for four years. Consideration is given to both academic merit and financial conditions, and renewal is subject to satisfactory progress.

Li Tsoo-yiu Memorial Scholarship

The Y's Men's Club of Hong Kong, in memory of Dr. T.Y. Li for his service to the community, has donated a sum of HK\$17,000 to establish a scholarship fund, the annual income from which provides a scholarship of HK\$1,000 to be awarded to a 4th-year student in the Chinese Department on the basis of Part I Degree Examination results and on the recommendation of the Board of Studies in Chinese.

G.E. Marden Memorial Scholarships

A scholarship fund of HK\$30,000 has been established by Rotary Club of Hong Kong in memory of the late Mr. G.E. Marden, the income from which is awarded to two 4th-year students of Business Administration, on the basis of Part I Degree Examination results and on the recommendation of the Faculty of Business Administration.

McDouall Scholarships

Nine scholarships, three for each College, are awarded to students majoring in Chinese Literature or History with the interest from a fund of HK\$160,000 established in recognition of the excellent service of Mr. J.C. McDouall, former Secretary for Chinese Affairs.

84

Mong Man Wai Scholarships

The Shun Hing Electronic Trading Co. Ltd. has donated a scholarship fund of HK\$100,000, the income from which is utilized to provide two scholarships of HK\$4,000 for promising and needy students of the Lingman Institute of Business Administration.

Reader's Digest Scholarship

A scholarship of HK\$6,000 has been donated by the Reader's Digest, to be awarded each year to the academically most distinguished student of the Faculties by rotation, on the basis of Part I Degree Examination results and the candidate's personality and potential leadership.

Rho Psi Service-Leadership Scholarship

The Rho Psi Brothers Foundation, Inc. has donated a scholarship of US\$200 for a third- or fourth-year student with outstanding leadership in student activities, superior scholarship, and financial needs.

Jackie Ruxton Memorial Scholarships

The American University Club of Hong Kong has donated since the academic year 1973-74, two scholarships of HK\$2,500 per annum each, for a period of four years, in memory of the late Mrs. Jackie Ruxton. These scholarships are awarded to a 3rd-year student and a 4th-year student on the basis of financial need, academic merit and contribution to student welfare.

San Miguel Scholarships

The San Miguel Brewery Ltd. donates each year three scholarships of HK\$6,000 each, to be awarded to final-year students on the basis of Part I Degree Examination results and the candidates' financial conditions, character, academic ability, and capacity for work.

Shell Scholarship for Post-Graduate Studies in the United Kingdom

A sum of HK\$200,000 was donated by the Shell Company of Hong Kong Ltd. to establish a Shell Scholarship Endowment Fund in 1965. The fund is administered by the University, and the interest accruing annually is used exclusively to finance from time to time a scholarship for an outstanding graduate of this University to pursue post-graduate studies leading to a degree in the United Kingdom. The value of the scholarship awarded in any year is related to the cost of the course undertaken, and includes passage and living expenses. The scholarship is not awarded every year, but only once every two or three years, depending on the duration of studies of the preceding scholarship winner. Selection is based on the student's personality, variety of interests, academic standing, and potential contribution to the development of Hong Kong, and particular attention is paid to his qualities of leadership. The student must be Chinese and is expected to take up a career in Hong Kong.

Sing Tao Newspapers Ltd. Scholarships

Four scholarships of HK\$1,500 per annum each are donated by Sing Tao Newspapers Ltd. annually for outstanding students in the Department of Journalism.

South China Morning Post Journalism Scholarships

Four scholarships of HK\$1,500 per annum each are donated by South China Morning Post annually for outstanding students in the Department of Journalism.

Swire Scholarships

John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Ltd. has donated six scholarships of HK\$5,000 per annum each, tenable for three years. The first two scholarships were awarded in the academic year 1973-74; the next two are to be awarded in 74-75 and the next two in 75-76. These scholarships are awarded to 2nd-year students on the basis of their first-year assessment, but character and qualities of leader-ship are also taken into consideration. Swire scholars may not hold any other scholarships or bursaries.

Tsang Hung Tim Scholarships

Ten scholarships valued at HK\$1,000 each have been donated by Mr. Winston W.S. Tsang to outstanding undergraduates and postgraduates in memory of his late father Mr. Tsang Hung Tim. Two awards shall be made to each of the three Foundation Colleges, the Graduate School and the School of Education.

University Lodge Masonic Bursary

To mark its Diamond Jubilee in 1973, the University Lodge of Hong Kong No. 3666 E.C. has donated a bursary of HK\$1,500 to assist an undergraduate or postgraduate who is in financial need. Preference may be given to the children of Masons living or deceased, and academic merit is also taken into consideration.

Wah Kiu Yat Po Journalism Scholarships

Four scholarships of HK\$1,500 per annum each are donated by Wah Kiu Yat Po annually for outstanding students in the Department of Journalism.

Yee Sui Cheong Memorial Scholarships

A sum of HK\$200,000 has been donated by the sons of the late Mr. Yee Sui Cheong to establish the "Yee Sui Cheong Memorial Scholarship Fund". The income therefrom is to be utilised to provide a number of scholarships of HK\$2,000 per annum each for 1st-year students on the basis of Matriculation Examination results and financial circumstances. The scholarships are tenable for a maximum of four years, subject to financial need and satisfactory academic progress.

86

Distribution of scholarships & bursaries is as follows:

I. General

- (1) The Bank of East Asia Golden Jubilee Scholarships
- (2) Chinese Manufacturers' Association Scholarships
- (3) Chiu Fuksan Scholarships
- (4) Duty Free Shoppers Scholarships
- (5) Hong Kong Government Grants & Loans
- (6) Kong E Suen Memorial Scholarships
- (7) Kwok Ching Tong Scholarships
- (8) Li Po Chun Scholarships
- (9) Reader's Digest Scholarship
- (10) Rho Psi Service-Leadership Scholarship
- (11) Jackie Ruxton Memorial Scholarships
- (12) San Miguel Scholarships
- (13) Swire Scholarships
- (14) University Lodge Masonic Bursary
- (15) Yee Sui Cheong Memorial Scholarships
- (16) Tsang Hung Tim Scholarships

II. Business Administration

- (1) The Chartered Bank Scholarships
- (2) The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Scholarships
- (3) G.E. Marden Memorial Scholarships

III. Business Administration or Economics

- (1) B.Y. Lam Foundation Scholarships
- (2) First National City Bank Scholarship

IV. Chinese Language & Literature

- (1) Chinese Temples Committee Scholarships
- (2) C.K. Law Memorial Scholarships
- (3) Li Tsoo-yiu Scholarship
- (4) McDouall Scholarships

V. Computer Science

International Computers Ltd. (ICL) Scholarships

VI. Journalism

- (1) Sing Tao Newspapers Ltd. Scholarships
- (2) South China Morning Post Journalism Scholarships
- (3) Wah Kiu Yat Po Journalism Scholarships

VII. Science

Chinese Engineers & Scientists Association of Southern California Scholarship

- VIII. Social Work
 - (1) Hong Kong Government Social Work Bursaries
 - (2) Hong Kong & Shanghai Bank Social Work Scholarships
 - IX. Graduate School
 - (1) C.K. Law Memorial Scholarship
 - (2) Tsang Hung Tim Scholarships
 - X. Lingnan Institute of Business Administration
 - (1) American University Club of Hong Kong Scholarship
 - (2) Anonymous Scholarships
 - (3) Dow Chemical Scholarships
 - (4) First National City Bank Scholarship
 - (5) Mong Man Wai Scholarships
 - XI. School of Education
 - (1) Chinese Temples Committee Scholarships
 - (2) Lam Oi Tong Scholarships
 - (3) Tsang Hung Tim Scholarships
- XII. Overseas Studies

Shell Scholarship for Post-Graduate Studies in the United Kingdom

- XIII. Others
 - (1) Alfred A. Gilman Medical Scholarship
 - (2) Bank of America Debating Scholarships and Scholarships for Research Projects

Student Hostels

There are student hostels at the three Foundation Colleges with a total capacity of about 1,200. With the exception of Ying Lin Tang (for men only) and Hua Lien Tang (for women only) at Chung Chi College, all the hostels provide accommodation for both male and female students — Ming Hua Tang, Wen Lin Tang and the hostel of the Theology Building of Chung Chi College, the hostel of New Asia College, and Adam Schall Residence of United College.

In addition, there are Temporary Hostels for about 450 male and female students.

Hostel fees range from \$150 to \$300 per term.

University Health Service

The University Health Service is charged with the responsibility of meeting the health needs of students, staff and their dependents. Special emphasis is being placed in developing a comprehensive primary care service to handle the many medical, dental, psychological and social needs and problems of students.

The University Health Centre, serving as the physical basis for the operation of the health programme, is a gift of the Yale-China Association. Officially opened on 30th September, 1971, it has been specially designed and built as a student health centre with adequate premises for the practice of preventive care, health education and personal medical services.

The Health Centre is open from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Mondays through Fridays and from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Saturdays. Services include:

- Health consultations for diagnosis, counselling and treatment including drugs, dressings, immunisations and diagnostic tests
- 24 hour service with nurse on duty and doctor "on call" Monday through Saturday morning throughout the year
- Infirmary care for students in need of observation, isolation, diagnosis and treatment of minor to intermediate illness of short duration
- · Dental consultation, restorative, preventive and emergency treatment
- Periodic physical examination for certification purposes
- Co-ordination of access to diagnostic laboratory and x-ray services, referral to appropriate specialists and treatment centres when necessary, admission to hospitals

No charges are made for any of the services provided directly by the University Health Service with the exception of house visit and dental service.

It is hoped that through the unique educational opportunities generally available in the University and its constituent Colleges, and the numerous contacts students may have with the Health Service, they will have ample chance to replenish themselves with adequate knowledge of good health attitudes and habits and will be well oriented to accept appropriate responsibilities to look after their most valuable personal asset in life — HEALTH.

Appointments Service

The University Appointments Service, organized in May 1968, operates under the advice of an Appointments Board, which recommends to the Vice-Chancellor broad policies concerning the operation of the Appointments Service and measures of coordination within the University in matters of student appointment and career placement.

Besides serving as a centre and clearing house of employment information, the Service assists in initiating and developing job opportunities, in organizing training courses with orientation to the furtherance of career interests as well as in helping employers in their needs for recruitment and executive development.

Publications Office

The University Publications Office was set up in January 1968, under the advice of the Senate Committee on Academic Publications, to publish and distribute academic works approved by the Committee as well as a number of administrative publications of the University. Its operating services are also available to individual Colleges and Schools within the University. By June 1975, one hundred twenty four titles have been published including research papers, journals and texts in the field of Chinese studies, history, linguistics, physics, bio-chemistry, economics, English literature, etc.

The Office maintained an office in the town area in Kowloon until 30th June, 1975, and moved to University Campus on 1st July, 1975.

Liaison with the World of Learning

The Chinese University is playing a special role in the world of learning in keeping with the unique international status of Hong Kong. Relations with overseas institutions of higher education have been close, and their interest in the University has been keen and genuine. These ties prove to be of incalculable value in keeping the Chinese University "not just a Chinese institution with British affiliation, but a Chinese institution of international character", as the Vice-Chancellor said in his installation address.

Three Advisory Boards, consisting of prominent scholars from many parts of the world, are consulted by the University from time to time on academic matters. Serving on the University Council are such distinguished educationists from overseas institutions as the former Vice-Chancellor of the University of Sussex, the Director of the School of Oriental and African Studies of the University of London, the President of Yale University and the former President of the University of California.

Besides holding the membership of the Association of Commonwealth Universities (ACU), the Association of Southeast Asia Institutions of Higher Learning (ASAIHL), and the Eastern Regional Organization for Public Administration (EROPA), the University is closely associated with the Inter-University Council for Higher Education Overseas (IUC) in the United Kingdom. Through a grant from the Ford Foundation, forty-nine of the University's staff have gone to the United States, the senior men to engage in research and refresher courses and to get acquainted with the work of their American colleagues, the younger staff to study for higher degree. Also, through the generosity of the Leverhulme Trust Fund, the Shell Oil Company and the Sino-British Fellowship Trust, several of our staff and graduates are studying in the United Kingdom.

Minor degree courses in French, German and Japanese have been introduced at the University and an interdisciplinary machinery has been set up to promote studies in these fields. The University has received assistance in the form of the services of two lecturers in French, two in German and a team of three from Japan, besides a number of scholarships for graduates. Elective courses in Italian has also been introduced on an intercollegiate basis.

From time to time the University invites prominent scholars from abroad for short periods of visits to give advice and assistance.

The University has an exchange agreement with the University of California which provides a number of tuition scholarships and fellowship grants for recent graduates and junior faculty members to pursue higher degree studies at various University of California campuses. In return, California sends each year two prominent professors and a number of graduates and undergraduates to the Chinese University. The University has also exchange programmes with Soka University in Tokyo and the school of Journalism of the University of Missouri-Columbia.

At the College level New Asia has close relations with the Yale-China Association, Chung Chi with the Wellesley-Yenching Committee and the Princeton-in-Asia Committee, and United with Williams College and Indiana University, for the contribution of recent graduate-tutors from the United States. For undergraduate student exchange Chung Chi has special arrangements with Redlands University and Washington and Lee University, and New Asia with Asia University (Tokyo) and Connecticut College.

Following the pilot experience of the California Programme the College Centre for Education Abroad (CCEA) at Beaver College and Franklin and Marshall College has established a Hong Kong Programme at New Asia. Since 1972, students representing forty-three different universities and colleges across the United States have come under this Programme for Asian and Chinese Studies at the University — an environment illustrative of the Chinese Culture and supportive of Chinese language training. Recently the Great Lakes Colleges Association and the Associated Colleges of the Midwest, each with a membership of twelve renowned higher education institutions, decided

to participate, en bloc, in the CCEA — Programme, further enhancing international recognition of the academic standard of the University. The University is now planning to open, with the cooperation of the Yale-China Association, a full-fledged International Asian Studies Programme in which all similar programmes will be incorporated in the future.

The New Asia — Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre, which has become part of the University, services as the linchpin of all the internal programmes by providing Chinese language courses for studies from adroad.

Calendar and Bulletin

Apart from this annual *Calendar*, the University also publishes a *University Bulletin* in which the University announces its important developments. The *Bulletin*, published quarterly, is distributed free among the University faculty and staff as well as to its friends and supporters in Hong Kong and overseas.

PART III

FOUNDATION COLLEGES

r.
CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel. No.: NT-612211

Cable Address: CHUNGCHI-COLKL

Chairman, Board of Governors The Hon. Fook-wo LI, O.B.E.; B.S. (Boston); M.C.S. (N.Y.U.); J.P.

Vice-Chairman, Board of Governors Wilfred Sienbing Wong, C.B.E.; B.Sc.; J.P.

President Emeritus

Chi-tung YUNG, O.B.E.; B.Sc. (*Tsinghua*); Ph.D. (*Chicago*); LL.D. (*H.K. & C.U.H.K.*); J.P.

President

Robert N. RAYNE, M.A. (Oxon)

Treasurer

John L. SOONG, B.Sc. (Notre Dame); M.B.A. (Chicago)

Chaplain

The Rev. Franklin Woo, B.S. (California); B.D., Th.M. (San Francisco Theol. Sem.); Ed.D. (Columbia)

Dean of the Faculty of Arts Teh-chang CHANG, B.A., M.A. (Tsinghua)

Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration Po-yiu Lo, B.A. (Lingnan); M.B.A. (Wisconsin); I.T.P. Cert. (Harvard)

Dean of the Faculty of Social Science Shau-lam Wong, B.A. (Lingnan); M.A. (S. California)

Dean of the Faculty of Science Yau-wa CHAN, B.S., M.S. (Lingnan); Ph.D. (California)

Registrar

Lyon Y. LEE, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.A. (George Peabody); Prof. Dip. (Columbia)

Acting Bursar

Kwok-keung YUE, B.A. (Lingnan); M.A. (Columbia)

Librarian

Sylvia Lo SHEN, Mrs., B.Sc. (National Teachers Coll., Manila); M.S., Lib.Sc. (Columbia)

Dean of Students

Alice Wong, Mrs., B.A. (St. John's); M.A. (Columbia)

Secretary

Hsin-hou FANG, B.A. (Yenching)

Assistant Registrars

Tak-sun Foo, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.P.A. (The Philippines) Alice Wong, Mrs., B.A. (St. John's); M.A. (Columbia)

Assistant Librarian Meliza Yu Ng, Mrs., B.A. (H.K.); M.L.S. (Simmons)

Assistant Bursar Siu-yee LAM, Jt. Dip. (Chung Chi)

Administrative Assistants Shu-an CHAN, Mrs., B.A. (Yenching) Wai-ming CHAN, Miss, B.A. (Bethel); M.Ed. (Ottawa) Hudson Y.Y. Soo, B.A. (Hope); M.R.E. (W. Theol); M.A. (W. Michigan)

ACADEMIC STAFF

FACULTY OF ARTS

Department of Chinese Language and Literature

Professor

Fa-kao CHOU, B.A. (National Central); M.A. (Peking)

Lecturers

Lin-sen LAM CHOW, Mrs., B.A. (National Sun Yat-sen); M.A., Ph.D. (H.K.) Chairman of the Department
Shu-leung DANG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Pung Ho, Dip. (Chung Chi); Research Associate (Kyoto); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)
Kai-chee Wong, B.A., M.A., Dip.Ed. (H.K.) Assistant Lecturers

Sheung-chee NG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Ming-sun Poon, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.L.S. (California); Cert. of adv. study in L.S. (Chicago)

Language Instructors

Wing-sat CHAN, B.A., M.Phil. (C.U.H.K.) Pok Hung, B.A. (Fu Jen, Peiping)

Department of English

Senior Lecturer

A.R.B. ETHERTON, B.A. Hons., M.A., Ph.D. (London)

Lecturers

Brian C. BLOMFIELD, B.A. Hons. (Cantab); Dip.Ed. (Leicester);
M.A. (Newcastle-upon-Tyre)
Simon P.J. ELLIS, B.A. Hons., M.A. (Oxon); Dip.Ed. (Leeds) Chairman of the Department
Esme LYON, Mrs., M.A., Dip.Ed. (Oxon); Academic Dip.Ed. (London)
John N. DENT-YOUNG, M.A. (Clare, Cambridge);
P.G.C.E. (London Inst. of Ed.); B.A. (London)

Assistant Lecturers

Gail Schaefer, Fu, Mrs., B.A. (*Wellesley*); M.A., Ph.D. (*Michigan*) Wai-chun Lee LAU, Mrs., B.A. (*H.K.*); M.A. (*California*) Herbert D. PIERSON, B.A. (*Maryknoll*); B.D., M.A. (*N.Y. State*) (on leave)

Language Instructor

Carlene CAVANAUGH, Mrs., B.Sc. (Indiana)

Junior Fellow

Carolyn CURTIS, Miss, B.A. (Wellesley)

Tutors

Joyce Chee-oi LEE, Kwok, Mrs., B.A. (*Queen's*) Lena Young, Mrs., B.A. (*H.K.*)

Department of History

Reader

Teh-Chang CHANG, B.A., M.A. (Tsinghua) Chairman of the Department

Lecturers

Chiu-ching Lo, M.A. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (Harvard)
Kwan-san Hsu, B.A., M.A. (National Northeastern)
Tseng-tsai WANG, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); M.Litt., Ph.D. (Cantab.)

Junior Fellow

Gladys J. EPTING, Ms., A.B. (Princeton)

Tutor

Hong-ming YIP, Miss, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Japanese Studies

Visiting Professor Takeo YAZAKI, Ph.D. (Chicago) Chairman of the Department

Visiting Lecturers Seiki Shono, B.A., M.A. (Keio) Tsuneo Hasegawa, B.A., M.A. (Keio)

Assistant Lecturer Kwan-cheuk YUE, B.A., Dip.Ed. (C.U.H.K.); B.A. (Tokyo U. of Foreign Studies)

Tutor

*Kin-yip Lui, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Music

Senior Lecturer David Gwilt, B.Mus. (Cantab.)

Lecturers

A. Keith ANDERSON, B.A., M.A. (Oxon); B.A. (London) Chairman of the Department
Philip CAVANAUGH, B.S. (Indiana); M.A. (Columbia); Ph.D. (Pittsburgh) Dale A. CRAIG, B.M. (Millikin); M.A. (Cornell); D.M.A. (Stanford) Ruth-Esther HILLILA, Miss, B.S. in Music (N. Michigan); M.A., Ph.D. (Boston)
Harrison C. RYKER, B.A. (California); M.M., Ph.D. (Washington)

Part-time Lecturer

Sai-bung CHEUNG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Piano Instructor

Tien-tak KING, Miss, Dip. (*HK Music Inst.*); B.M. (*Oberlin*); M.M. (*Texas*)

* Part-time.

Archives of Chinese Music

Director: Dale A. CRAIG, B.M. (Millikin); M.A. (Cornell); D.M.A. (Stanford) Curator: Sai-bung CHEUNG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Assistant: Kin-woon Tong, B.A. (National Taiwan Normal) Part-time Instructors John CHENG, A.R.C.M., F.T.C.L. Bing LEE, Mrs., L.R.S.M., L.R.A.M., A.R.C.M. John KOLTONEN (clarinet) Kyung-sook LEE, Miss, Artist Dip. (Curtis Inst. of Music) (piano) Wing-fai LAW, B.A. (National Taiwan Normal) (guitar) Fannie CRAIG, Mrs., B.S. (Ithaca) (piano) Iu-rhen HwANG, Dip. (Sydney Conservatorium of Music); F.T.C.M. (voice) Pamela B. RYKER, Mrs. B.A. (Washington) (flute) Christine MURRAY, Miss, Cert. Ed. (Notre Dame Coll. U.K.) (oboe) Kwok-choi Ng (pipa) Sek-cheong Siu (sheng) Chun Bo So, Graduate (Swatow Art Centre) (cheng) Wah-nam Tsui (er-hu)

Seung TSANG (yang-ch'in)

Kuen Wong (di & hsiao)

Nancy ZI, Miss, B.Mus. (Milliken) (voice)

Tutors

Kin-woon Tong, B.A. (*National Taiwan Normal*) Donald S. MacDonald, A.R.C.M.

Department of Philosophy and Religion

Senior Lecturers

Philip SHEN, B.A. (Philippine Christ. Coll.); M.A. (Oberlin);
B.D., Ph.D. (Chicago)
Chairman of the Department and Head of Rel. Knowledge Section
Paul CLASPER, A.M. (Taylor); B.D. (S. Bapt. Theol. Sem.);
Th.D. (Union Theol. Sem.)

Lecturers

Te CHEN, Dip. (Chu Hai); Graduate (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); Ph.D. (S. Illinois)

Richard R. DEUTSCH, Th.D. (Basel) (on leave)

Hsiu-hwang Ho, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Michigan) Head of Philosophy Section

Yung-wei LAO, B.A. (National Taiwan) (on leave)

Lee-ming NG, B.A. (I.C.U. Tokyo); B.D., Th.M., Th.D. (Princeton Sem.) (on leave)

John W. Olley, B.Sc., Ph.D. (Sydney); B.D. (Melbourne) Head of Theology Division

James Y.K. PAN, B.Th. (*Trinity Singapore*); B.Div. (Hon.) (London); Ph.D. (Edinburgh)

Assistant Lecturers

The Rev. Peter K.K. Kwong, Dip. (Chung Chi); B.D. (Kenyon Coll.); M.Th. (Colgate Rochester Divinity School)

The Rev. Alan C.C. CHAN, Dip. (Chung Chi); Licentiate (Union Theol. Coll.); M.Div. (Church Div. Sch. of The Pacific)

Bartholomew P.M. Tsui, A.B. (Ateneo, Manila); M.Div. (St. Mary's)

Part-time Lecturers

Joe DUNN, B.Sc. (Cheng Kung); Dip. (Lutheran Theol. Sem.); M.Th. (Hamburg)
The Rev. Carl T. SMITH, A.B. (De Pauw); B.D. (Union Theol. Sem.)
The Rev. Raymond L. WHITEHEAD, B.A. (Elmhurst); B.D. (Union Theol. Sem.)
Sister Therese LEBLANC, B.Sc. (St. Therea's Coll., Manila); M.A. (Ateneo, Manila); Dip. of Sacred Sciences, (Sister Sch. of Theol. Baguio);

Dip. in R.E. (E. Asian Pastoral Inst., Manila)

Tutors

*Tze-wan Kwan, B.A. (*C.U.H.K.*) *Yee-shun Luĸ, B.A. (*C.U.H.K.*) *Kwok-keung Lai, B.A. (*C.U.H.K.*)

FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Chairman of Accounting & Finance Group Philip Fu

Chairman of Marketing & International Business Group Kam-hon Lee

Chairman of General Business Management and Personnel Management Group Chan-hsiung FANG

Professor

Hsin Suru, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Senior Lecturers

Po-yiu Lo, B.A. (Lingnan); M.B.A. (Wisconsin); I.T.P. Cert. (Harvard) Philip Fu, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S. (Brigham Young); Ph.D. (Illinois)

Lecturers

Chan-hsiung FANG, LL.B. (National Taiwan); B.A., M.A. (S. Carolina); Radio & TV Cert. (R.C.A.); Production Management Cert. (Stanford) Kam-hon LEE, B.Comm., M.Comm. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Northwestern)

Assistant Lecturers

Patrick T. McGuire, B.A. (Sacred Heart Coll.); B.D., M.R.E. (Maryknoll, N.Y.) Tsang-sing CHAN, B.B.A., M.B.A. (Wisconsin)

Demonstrators

Kam-sar PANG LEE, Mrs., B.Comm. (C.U.H.K.) Yuk-yin CHAN, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

FACULTY OF SCIENCE Department of Biology

Professor

Lyle B. THROWER, M.Sc., Ph.D. (Melbourne); F.L.S.; J.P.

Reader

Shu-ting CHANG, B.Sc. (National Taiwan); M.S., Ph.D. (Wisconsin) Chairman of the Department

Lecturers

Kam-wai CHIU, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp., Ph.D. (H.K.)

Elvera K.S. LIM DHILLON, Mrs., B.Sc., Dip.Ed. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Hawaii) Kung-hing Yung, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S., Ph.D. (California) Wilkin W.K. CHANG, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp., Ph.D. (H.K.)

Demonstrators

*Shui-fong LI, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Tat-ming Tong, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Chun-cheung Wong, B.Sc. (National Taiwan Normal)

*Sau-wah YIP, Miss, B.Sc. (Fu Jen, Taiwan)

*Lee-hwa CHANG, Miss, B.Sc. (Sri Lanka)

*Hin-cheong, CHAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Hoi-shan KwAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Yum-shing Wong, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Hin-chung Wong, B.Sc. (National Chung Hsing)

Department of Chemistry

Reader

Hson-mou CHANG, B.Sc. (Shanghai); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Iowa State)

Senior Lecturer

Shang-wai TAM, B.Sc., M.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Nottingham); F.R.I.C.

Lecturers

Oi-wah LAU HON, Mrs., B.Sc., Ph.D. (H.K.)
Wo-pok LAY, B.A., M.Sc. (British Columbia); Ph.D. (Bristol)
Wai-kee LI, B.S. (Illinois); M.S., Ph.D. (Michigan)
Suk-ping So, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp. (H.K.); Ph.D. (McMaster);
A.R.I.C., M.C.I.C.
Chairman of the Department

Demonstrators

*Mei-kuen Au, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Kai-kwong LAW, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Chow-kong LEE, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Wing-fung Sun, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Ping-yan CHOI, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Kai-wing LEE, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Mathematics

Senior Lecturers

Elmer J. BRODY, B.S. (California Inst. of Tech.); Ph.D. (Princeton) (on leave)

Ronald F. TURNER-SMITH, B.Sc. (Birmingham); Ph.D. (London) (on leave)

Lecturers

Wai-leung CHAN, B.Sc. (H.K.); M.Sc. (W. Ontario); Ph.D. (Toledo)
Chi-hsing YONG CHAO, Mrs., B.Eng. (National S.W. Assoc.);
D.I.C., Ph.D. (London)
Chairman of the Department
Hing-lun CHOW, Jt.Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S. (N.Y.U.); Ph.D. (Liverpool)
Kar-ping SHUM, Dip (Baptist); M.Sc. (Leeds); Ph.D. (Alberta)
Lan-on Tse, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen)

Tutors

*Hing-chuan Cheung, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Hung-kit CHOW, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen) *David C.Y. HUNG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Si-yue KWAN, Dip. (Nan Kai)

Department of Physics

Senior Lecturers

Yau-wa CHAN, B.S., M.S. (Lingnan); Ph.D. (California) Lien-sheng CHUANG, B.Sc. (National Taiwan Normal); Ph.D. (Tokyo U. of Ed.); F.Inst.P. Chairman of the Department

Lecturers

Chung-loon CHOY, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Rensselaer) (on leave) Shih-yu FENG, S.M., Ph.D. (Harvard) Alfred F. LEUNG, B.A., M.S., Ph.D. (U.C. Los Angeles) (on leave) Hon-ming LAI, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Dartmouth)

* Part-time.

Demonstrators

*Chuen-lab LEUNG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Kwong-hon LAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Ying-ming Poon, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Kin-wah KwAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

Department of Economics

Professor

Mo-huan Hsing, B.A. (National Central)

Lecturers

Hsiao-sheng Hu, B.A. (Amoy); M.A., G.P.E.D. (Vanderbilt) Chairman of the Department Oi Mok, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.A., Ph.D. (Michigan State) Joel G. McClellan, A.B. (Princeton); Lic. es Sci. Pol. (Geneve); M.A. (Wisconsin) Ghulam M. RADHU, B.A., M.A. (Karachi); M.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania) Demonstrator

Yau-fun YUEN, Miss, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Geography

Senior Lecturer

Hsi-lin TSCHANG, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Tokyo U. of Ed.); F.R.G.S.

Chairman of the Department

Lecturers

Chi-sen LIANG, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); M.A. (National Chekiang); M.A. (Calif.); Ph.D. (London); F.R.G.S.

Fu-yuen TSE, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.Sc., Ph.D. (London) (on leave) Assistant Lecturer

Hok-yu CHEUNG, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (Minnesota)

Tutors

Siu-ngan LAM, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Kam-biu LIU, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Social Work

Lecturers

Harold Ho, Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S.W. (Chicago) (on leave) Agnes Mung-chan NG, Miss, Soc. Studies Cert. (H.K.); B.A., B.S.W., M.S.W. (British Columbia) Chairman of the Department Hannah Fu Lynn, Mrs., B.A. (Seattle Pacific); M.S.W. (Washington)

Field Work Supervisors

*Mary BOLDRICK, Mrs., B.A. (Maryville); M.S.W. (Pittsburgh)
*Mong-chow LAM, Miss, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.S.W. (Minnesota) Monica Mo-hung YU, B.S.Sc. (H.K.)

Department of Sociology

Senior Lecturers

Shau-lam Wong, B.A. (*Lingnan*); M.A. (S. California) Rance Pui-leung LEE, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (*Pittsburgh*)

Lecturers

Pedro NG, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Harvard) Chairman of the Department Fai-ming WONG, B.A. (Redlands); M.A. (U.C. Los Angeles); Ph.D. (U.C. Santa Barbara) (on leave)

Tutors

*Tso-sang Wong, Dip. (Chih Nam) *Chiung-ying Lee, Miss, B.A. (Tunghai)

Section of Psychology

Lecturers

Theodora Pu-san TING CHAU, Mrs. B.S. (National Taiwan); M.S.E., Ph.D. (Wisconsin) Head of the Section Michael BOND, B.A. (Toronto); Ph.D. (Stanford) Richard A. LYCZAK, A.B., Ph.D. (Dartmouth) Neil H. GOODMAN, B.A. (Queen's); M.A. (Princeton); Ph.D. (California)

Junior Fellow

Nicola Seibert, Miss, B.A. (Wellesley)

Tutor

Kit-hing SHUM, B.S.Sc. (H.K.)

Physical Education

Director

Aaron Siu-lok LEE, B.A. (Lingnan); M.S. (Springfield)

Instructors

Kwai-yu HAN, Miss, Dip. (Wah Nam Normal); Cert. in Phy.Ed. (Idraetshojskolrn I Sonderberg & Paul-Petterson's Inst.) Yuen-wah Kwok, B.Phy.Ed. (National Taiwan Normal) Jing Wong, B.Phy.Ed. (National Taiwan Normal)

* Part-time.

GENERAL INFORMATION

History

Chung Chi College was founded in October 1951 by representatives of Protestant Churches in Hong Kong. In 1955 it was formally incorporated under an ordinance of the Hong Kong Government with a Board of Governors as its supreme governing body, the College Council as its executive committee and the Academic Board and Faculty Boards to deal with academic affairs, a structure which has remained unchanged in substance since then.

The College had a very modest beginning with 63 students enrolled the first year. It used borrowed and rented premises, first in the Cathedral Hall and St. Paul's Co-educational College, and later on in Caine Road and in the newly-completed Bishop Hoare Memorial Building on Lower Albert Road. Expansion was made possible by financial help received from North America through the United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia and the Trustees of Lingnan University and from Britain through the Asia Christian Colleges Association. Local churches, individuals and firms also gave considerable support. The College was thus able to move in 1956 to its permanent site in the New Territories, in the beautiful Ma Liu Shui Valley where a railway station, now known as University Station, was built. Between 1959 and 1963 the College received the bulk of its funds from the Hong Kong Government, as a result of its registration as a post-secondary college, under an Ordinance bearing the same title.

In 1963 the College was incorporated as one of the three foundation colleges of The Chinese University of Hong Kong which was formally inaugurated on 17th October of the same year.

There are now four faculties in the College — Arts, Business Administration, Science and Social Science. The departments of the Faculty of Arts are Chinese Language and Literature, English, History, Japanese Studies, Music, and Philosophy and Religion (Theology Division included); of the Faculty of Business Administration: Accounting & Finance Group, Marketing & International Business Group, and General Business Management & Personnel Management Group; of the Faculty of Science: Biology, Chemistry, Mathematics, and Physics; and of the Faculty of Social Science; Economics, Geography, Sociology (Section of Psychology attached), and Social Work.

Buildings and Grounds

The College campus lies to the north and east of the Taipo Road near the $11\frac{1}{2}$ milestone from the Star Ferry in Kowloon, overlooking Sandy Cove and Tolo Harbour.

By June, 1975, the major buildings included:

Classrooms, and offices for teaching staff — eight inter-connected blocks with interior courtyards

Chapel with offices etc.

Staff Residences - six buildings with 36 apartments

- a small building (the old clinic) with single rooms and small apartments
- a building containing rooms for single staff and an apartment for a member of the Theology staff

Bamboo and Pine Lodges — with living quarters for 24 families and 4 single members of the minor staff

President's House

Elisabeth Luce Moore Library

Administration Building

Chung Chi Centre - student refectory, offices etc.

Music Building (the old library)

Staff Club and Dining Room

Stadium and Athletic Field

Theology Building — containing 6 staff flats, a hostel for 48 students and an administrative and teaching section.

Student Hostels — four hostels accommodating about 400 students

Recreation Centre (the old student canteen)

Admission and Academic Programme

The College selects students for its four-year course of study from among those who have passed the Matriculation Examination of The Chinese University of Hong Kong or who have been specifically exempted from it.

The teaching and examination programmes for students' major, minor and elective courses are organized by the University's board of studies for each subject (which includes the members of the College departments). They are under continual review. In 1973-74 for the first time incoming students were enrolled in a faculty for their first year and in a department only after the successful completion of the first year. In addition to the subjects required for the degree examination students in Chung Chi are required to complete:—

- 1) four years of the Integrative Basic Studies Programme
- 2) one year of General Chinese
- 3) one or two years of General English unless exempted
- 4) one year of Physical Education

The language of instruction may be Cantonese, Mandarin or English according to the choice of the teacher.

Students who have satisfactorily completed the course, fulfilled the requirements of the College and are recommended by the Academic Board are eligible to sit for the Part I and Part II Degree Examinations of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. The successful candidates will be awarded the bachelor's degree.

Staff and Student

Chung Chi College in the academic year 1974-75 had a student enrolment of 1,055, of whom 655 were men and 400 were women. Most of the students were either born in Hong Kong or entered it in childhood or as migrants since 1949, but a few overseas Chinese were from Macau and Taiwan. Five American students, one British student and one Japanese student were admitted as special students. 33.01% of the students reported that they were Christians.

The teaching staff numbered 183, of whom 105 were full-time, 30 part-time, and 48 full time and part-time tutors and demonstrators.

Scholarships and Bursaries

In 1974-75 over 66% of the students received scholarships or bursaries of some kind. The College also has a loan fund.

Library

The Library now has a total 127,085 volumes, of which 69,885 (17,273 titles) are in Asian languages, and 57,200 (45,636 titles) are in European languages. It has over 304 Asian and European language periodicals and 5,180 bound volumes of past numbers. It has also 117 reels of microfilms in Asian languages and 264 reels in Western languages.

The Library provides free access to books and periodicals. Students are permitted to borrow for reading or study outside the Library.

Extra-Curricular Activities

The Student Union exists to promote the general interests of the students, to organize their corporate activities, and to act as a recognized channel of communication between them and the College authorities and other student bodies. It is responsible for cultural, athletic and extra-curricular activities, working through various societies, in particular the departmental societies, which play an active role in the life of the College.

In addition to the departmental societies, class houses and self-governing bodies of the hostels, there are other societies and clubs, e.g. the Student Christian Union, the Roman Catholic St. Ignatius Fellowship, the Sports Clubs, the College Choir, the Music Club, the Photographic Club, the Dramatic Club, the Oratorical and Debating Society, the World University Service (Hong Kong Committee, Chung Chi Chapter), etc.

The teaching and administrative staff have their own club run by an elected committee.

Chung Chi aims at a close relationship between staff and students. It is hoped that, as more staff and students are housed within the College precincts, there will be increased participation in extra-curricular activities.

Theological Training

From 1957 until the establishment of The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1963, religious education and theological training were a part of the academic programme of Chung Chi College. With the establishment of the University and the securing of government funds for teachers' salaries, the Board of Governors put the training of Christian ministers, as distinct from training in religious knowledge, on an affiliated basis supported entirely by gifts from interested churches. The Seminary functioned in this affiliated relationship from 1963 to 1968, and a class of students completed their five-year programme for B.Th. degree conferred by the Seminary Council. The Seminary was interdenominational and ecumenical, with provision for individual participating churches to provide for special training of their own students.

In 1968, the Seminary as such ceased to exist and its function was transferred to a new Division of Theology in the recognized Department of Philosophy and Religion. The new Division, under a Theological Council, is financed independently by Church gifts, but academically is a recognized part of the College and University. Students enter through the same matriculation examination as all other university students, and university degrees are available for those who qualify. A small number of selected non-degrees students are also trained, but with a separate curriculum.

Publications

In addition to the *College Calendar*, the College publishes the following:

- 1. The Chung Chi Journal, issued twice a year, with scholarly articles in Chinese or English.
- 2. The Chung Chi Bulletin, issued twice a year, reporting College activities and news and views in general in Chinese and English.

- 3. Chung Chi Campus Newsletter, issued weekly on Mondays in Chinese and English.
- 4. The Chinese Literary Review (華國), published by the Chinese Literary Society, reporting the results of research work done by the Department of Chinese Language and Literature in Chinese.
- 5. Wen Hsin (文訊), containing literary articles, published jointly by the Chinese Literary Society and the Chinese Language and Literature Society in Chinese.
- 6. Business Administration published once a year by the Business Administration Society in Chinese and English.
- 7. The Student Press, Chung Chi College, published by the Student Union in Chinese and English.
- 8. Chemistry Society Annual, published by the Chemistry Society in Chinese and English.
- 9. Science Student Annual, published jointly by the Biology, Chemistry, Mathematics and Physics Societies, the articles being mainly contributed by students, in Chinese and English.
- 10. The English Society Magazine and Echo, published by the English Society in English.
- 11. The Societal Observer, published by the Societies of Sociology and Social Work in Chinese.
- 12. Chung Chi Historical Journal, published by the History Society in Chinese and English.
- 13. Beagle, published by the Biology Society in Chinese and English.

NEW ASIA COLLEGE

Cable Address: NASCOL

President

Han-sheng CHUAN, B.A. (National Peking)

Dean of Studies and Registrar Chi WANG, LL.B. (Soochow); LL.M. (Yale)

Dean of the Faculty of Arts

Kuo-tung Sun, B.A. (National Chengchi); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); Ph.D. (H.K.)

Dean of the Faculty of Science James Chien-nan MA, B.Sc. (E. China Normal); D.Sc. (Strasbourg)

Dean of the Faculty of Social Science Chen-hsiung Wu, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (California)

Dean of Faculty of Business Administration

Jun-chung LEE, B.E. (National Central), Dip., Research Institute of Business Administration (Illinois)

Deputy Registrar/Secretary

Stephen T.Y. TIONG, Jt.Dip. (New Asia); M.A. (Columbia)

Comptroller

Chen-hsiung Wu, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (California)

Business Manager

Tsai-hsien CHIANG, Grad. (Tientsin)

Accountant

Yan-sun Lin, B.Com. (C.U.H.K.)

Dean of Students

Yue-him TAM, Dip. (New Asia); M.A. (Indiana); A.M., Ph.D. (Princeton)

Director of Physical Education

Sze-kim NG, B.Ed. (Taiwan Normal)

Wardens

Ding-fai Lee Chow, Mrs., Dip. (Chung Chi); M.A. (Mt. Holyoke Coll.) Wan-man Yu, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Librarian

Wah-tung Poon, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); Grad. (Coll. of Librarianship, Wales); A.L.A.

Assistant Librarian

Chien-wei Hu, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.L.S. (George Peabody)

Director of Student Exchange Programme Yak-yeow KUEH, Jt.Dip. (New Asia); Ph.D. (Marburg)

Administrative Assistants

Yu-chen WEI, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) Shih-chong Hu, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

ACADEMIC STAFF

FACULTY OF ARTS

Department of Chinese Literature

Professor

T.I. Jao

Senior Lecturer

Ching-chang Wong, B.A. (Kwanghua); M.A. (Nanking U. Research Inst.)

Lecturers

Siu-tong CHAN, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Kin-hung Kwong, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); Ph.D. (Athens) Head of the Department

Kuang MEI, B.A. (Tunghai); M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Harvard) Ying-yun MEI, B.A. (National Central) Chuan-ming MENG, B.A., M.A. (Taiwan Normal) Yung YouNG, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (H.K.) (on leave)

Instructors

- Kai-hua HUANG, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)
- Chun-ju WANG, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of English

Lecturers

Ning WANG, B.A. (St. John's, Shanghai); M.A. (Louisiana) Heh-hsiang YUAN, B.A. (Soochow); M.A., Ph.D. (Occidental Coll.) Head of the Department

Assistant Lecturers

Gerald W. BERKLEY, B.A. (Oklahoma City); M.A. (Hawaii) (on leave) Louise Ho, Miss, B.A. (H.K.); M.A. (E. Anglia) (on leave) Rolance Sau-kwan LEE, Miss, B.A., M.A. (H.K.)

Instructor

Carolyn Ruth ORTMEYER, Mrs., B.S. (Chicago)

Tutors

John MacLaughlin CAMPBELL, B.A. (Yale) Thomas J. Doyle, Jr., B.A. (Yale) Mary Sue GINSBERG, Miss, B.A. (Yale) Wanda Woon-yee LAU, Miss, B.A. (H.K.) Robinson D. PIKE, B.A. (Yale) Kok-bun Wong, B.A. (H.K.)

Department of Fine Arts

Visiting Professor Te-k'un CHENG, B.A., M.A. (Yenching); M.A. (Cantab.); Ph.D. (Harvard) Senior Lecturer James Chi-yan WATT, B.A., M.A. (Oxon.) Lecturers †Wen-tsung HUANG CHENG, Mrs., B.A. (Yenching) May-ching KAO, Mrs., B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (New Mexico); Ph.D. (Stanford) Head of the Department Kuo-sung Liu, B.A. (Taiwan Normal) *L.S. Shaw *Yin-yung TING, B.A. (Nibon) I-pong VAN Assistant Lecturer John Tung-keung LI, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.A., M.F.A. (lowa) Demonstrator Lai-yee SI, Miss, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of French Studies

Lecturer Adine WANG, Ph.D. (Brussels) Head of the Department

Visiting Lecturers Philippe CERTAIN, Dip. (National Sch. of Oriental Languages, Paris); M.A. (Sorbonne) Laurent SAGART, B.A., M.A. (Paris)

Department of History

Visiting Professor Tien-yi LI, B.A. (Nankai); M.A., Ph.D. (Yale) Readers Ching-ho CHEN, B.A., Litt.D. (Keio) Han-sheng CHUAN, B.A. (National Peking) Keng-wang YEN, B.A. (National Wuhan) Senior Lecturer

Kuo-tung SUN, B.A. (National Chengchi); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); Ph.D. (H.K.) (on leave)

+ Honorary.

^{*} Part-time.

Lecturers

Thomas Hong-chi LEE, B.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Yale)
Hing-bun So, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)
Head of the Department
Douglas G. SPELMAN, B.A. (Oberlin); M.A., Ph.D. (Harvard)

Yue-him TAM, Dip. (New Asia); M.A. (Indiana); A.M., Ph.D. (Princeton)

Department of Philosophy

Senior Lecturer

Shu-hsien Liu, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (S. Illinois) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Tou-hui For, Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research)

Tien-ming Lee, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Chicago)

Tu Li, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (S. Illinois)

Duen-ching Tong, Dip. (New Asia); Dip. (New Asia Inst. of Advanced Chinese Studies and Research); M.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Yuk Wong, B.A., M.A., Ph.D. (H.K.)

Tutors

*Wing-cheuk CHAN, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) *Shui-chuen LEE, B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Translation

Senior Lecturer

Phillip S.Y. Sun, Dip. (New Asia); M.A., Ph.D. (Yale)

Lecturer

P.C. YAO, B.A. (H.K.) Head of the Department

Assistant Lecturers

Serena Jin FUNG, Mrs., Jt.Dip. (Chung Chi); M.A. (Washington) Rebecca Wing-yin Mok, Miss, B.A., M.Phil. (H.K.)

^{*} Part-time.

⁺ Honorary.

FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Accounting and Finance Group

Lecturers

Dan-lin Hsu, Jt.Dip. (Chung Chi); M.S. (San Diego State) Pao-shu Hung, Dip. (Finance Sch., U.S.A.); M.A. (National Chengchi) Chairman of the Group Kie-ann Wong, B.Comm., M.Comm. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Liverpool) Demonstrator

Ting-fong LEE, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

General Business Management and Personnel Management Group

Lecturers

Tung-ping DENG, B.A. (Soochow); M.Ec. (Sydney)
Jun-chung LEE, B.E. (National Central)
Shih-du SUN, Dip. (Ordnance Sch., U.S.A.); Dip. (Ordnance Engineering Coll., China); M.B.A. (Syracuse)
Chairman of the Group

Demonstrator Wai-keung Kung, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

Marketing and International Business Group

Senior Lecturer Kin-chok Mun, M.A., Ph.D. (Freiburg) Chairman of the Group

Assistant Lecturer

Suk-ching Ho, Miss, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.B.A. (Indiana)

Demonstrator

Hon-ming YAU, B.B.A., M.B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

FACULTY OF SCIENCE

Department of Biology

Senior Lecturers

Chuan-ying CHAO, B.Sc. (Shanghai); M.Sc. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Illinois) Kai-keung MARK, Dip. (Baptist); M.A. (California); Ph.D. (Oregon) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Yun-shen BAU, B.Sc. (National Taiwan); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Wisconsin) Kwong-yu CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Connecticut) (on leave)

Ming-hung Wong, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Durham) David T. YEW, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Ph.D. (Wayne State)

Demonstrators

*Kam-ching CHAN, B.Sc. (H.K.)

*Miu-kuen Kong, Miss, B.Sc. (National Taiwan)

*Oi-chiu Leung, Miss, B.Sc. (National Taiwan)

*Wing-keung Liu, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Wai-yee Poon, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Yee-lee WAI, Miss, B.Sc. (Nebraska)

*Sau-hing Yu, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Victoria Yin-ping Yu, Miss, B.Sc. (California)

Department of Chemistry

Senior Lecturer

Thomas Chung-wai MAK, B.Sc., Ph.D. (British Columbia) Lecturers

Tse-lock CHAN, B.Sc. (St. Francis Xavier); M.Sc. (Missouri); Ph.D. (Tulane)

Head of the Department

David Tao-yung CHEN, B.E. (Chekiang); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Ottawa) Hsiu CHI, B.Sc. (Tokyo); D.Sc. (Tokyo Kyoiku)

James Chien-nan MA, B.Sc. (E. China Normal); D.Sc. (Strasbourg)

Demonstrators

*Shi-fai Снам, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Yiu-sing LAM, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Sing-wang SIT, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Wing-chung YEUNG, B.Sc. (H.K.)

*Agnes Pui-yee Yu, Miss, B.Sc. (National Cheng Kung)

Department of Mathematics

Senior Lecturer

Tzee-char Kuo, B.Sc. (National Taiwan); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Chicago) (on leave)

Lecturers

Ching-ju CHANG, B.Sc. (Peiping Normal); M.A. (California) Ming-lun CHU, B.Sc. (Chungking) Head of the Department

* Part-time.

Ping-kwan TAM, B.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (British Columbia) (on leave) Hsing-young WANG, Miss, B.Sc. (National Taiwan); M.Sc. (Texas Tech. Coll.)

Demonstrators

*Yuen-han CHUNG, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Kam-chan Lo, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

*Joseph Wai-hung So, B.A.(Math.) (H.K.)

*Chi-hung TAI, B.Sc. (Peking)

Department of Physics

Professor

Bay-sung Hsu, B.Sc., Ph.D. (Manchester); F.Inst.P.; F.I.O.P.

Senior Lecturers

Hin-hung Ho, Ph.D. (Southampton) Lin-kuan Su, B.Sc. (National Central)

Lecturers

Kin-pong Снік, B.Sc. (H.K.); Dr.rer.nat. (Stuttgart) Yu-yang Lee, B.Sc. (British Columbia); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Toronto) Tak-chiu Wong, B.Sc. (H.K.); M.Sc. (Chicago); Ph.D. (Oxon) Head of the Department

Demonstrators

*On-kwok CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)
*Nai-ho CHEUNG, B.A.(Physics) (Chicago)
*Kwok-leung LAM, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)
*To-choi LAU, B.Sc. (National Cheng Kung)
*Hong-kuen Wong, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

Department of Economics

Senior Lecturer

Tzong-biau Lin, B.A. (National Taiwan); Diploma-Volkswirt, Ph.D. (Freiburg) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Tong-yung CHENG, LL.B., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Köln) Yak-yeow KUEH, Jt.Dip. (New Asia); Ph.D. (Marburg) Chen-hsiung WU, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (California)

Demonstrator

Shee-wu Sung, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Journalism

Professor

Timothy L.M. Yu, B.A. (National Chengchi); M.A. (Stanford)

Lecturers

Bruce Yi-pei Lee, B.A. (Yenching)

Michael Ta-kung WEI, B.J., M.A., Ph.D. (Missouri)

Visiting Lecturers

Edward Y. CHENHWANG, B.S. (National Taiwan); B.D. (Tainan Theol. Coll.); Cert. Theol. (Westminster Coll.); M.A. (Stanford); Ph.D. (Michigan State)
John Leroy MITCHELL, B.A., M.A. (St. Louis); M.A. (Michigan) Head of the Department

Department of Sociology

Senior Lecturer

Ambrose Yeo-chi KING, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.A. (National Chengchi); M.A., Ph.D. (Pittsburgh) (on leave)

Lecturers

Te-hing TUNG Ho, Mrs., B.A. (National S.W. Assoc.);
M.A. (Michigan); M.S.W. (Smith)
Chok-king LIANG, B.A. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Pittsburgh) Head of the Department

Assistant Lecturer

Chong-chor LAU, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (Pittsburgh)

Section of Anthropology

Visiting Professor

Francis L.K. Hsu, B.A. (Shanghai); Ph.D. (London)

Lecturers

Chien CHIAO, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Cornell) John T. MEYERS, Jr., B.A., M.A. (Notre Dame Seminary)

Physical Education

Director

Sze-kim NG, B.Ed. (Taiwan Normal)

Instructors

Lai-chee CHAN, Miss, B.Phy.Ed. (*Taiwan Normal*) Yee-churn LEE, B.Phy.Ed. (*Taiwan Normal*) Mau-hing Lo, B.Ed. (*Taiwan Normal*)

GENERAL INFORMATION

History

New Asia College was founded in 1949 by its former President, Dr. Ch'ien Mu, and a small group of scholars from China. Their purpose was to preserve traditional Chinese culture and to balance it with Western learning so that students might at once have a thorough knowledge of their cultural heritage and be prepared to cope with the modern world.

The College began humbly in improverished surroundings, but soon attracted support both locally and from overseas. Since 1954, it has had the cooperation and support of the Yale-in-China Association which had been active in educational development in China for many years. It has also received support from other educational institutions and foundations, notably the Harvard-Yenching Institute, The Asia Foundation, the Rockefeller Foundation, the British Council, the Mencius Foundation and the Ford Foundation. As a Grant College from 1959 to 1963, and now as a University College, it has received generous financial support from the Hong Kong Government since 1959.

Grounds and Buildings

The College is situated in Ma Liu Shui, Shatin, New Territories, adjacent to United and Chung Chi Colleges. On a promotory 480 feet above Tolo Harbour the 19-acre campus has a vista of this harbour, the Plover Cove Reservoir, and the Pat Sin Mountain Range.

The College campus at present consists of the following six buildings:

1. Administration Building

The Dean of Students' Office and the Dean of Studies' Office are located on the ground floor and the President's Office, the Comptroller's Office and a board room on the first floor. Classrooms for the Departments of Fine Arts and Journalism, seminar rooms and faculty offices occupy the second floor, while painting studios extend throughout the third floor. The total area of the building is 27,000 sq. ft.

2. Humanities Hall

More than 40,000 sq. ft., this complex may be divided into three parts.

- i. To the West, offices of the various departments in the faculties of arts and commerce occupy the first, second and third floors, with accounting and statistics laboratories on the fourth floor.
- ii. The middle section of this building is used as classrooms, seminar rooms and business administration laboratories. On the ground floor are sculpture rooms and storage.

iii. Tiered lecture theatres and a language laboratory comprise the east wing.

3. Ch'ien Mu Library

The Library building occupies a total area of about 24,000 sq. ft. Books and magazines are kept in open stacks in four reading bays which take up approximately one-third and seat 300 students. A late reading room is open for student use after normal library hours. There are also a microfilm reading room, newspaper reading area and faculty reading rooms.

4. Staff Student Centre

The total area of this building is 39,000 sq. ft.

The gymnasium occupies the first and second floors with a mezzanine used as the physical education office. A student common room, Student Union's Office, conference rooms and student societies' offices, alumni office, music room, television room, recreation room, ping-pong room and gymnastic room take up space on the first floor. On the ground floor, facing to the South are a faculty lounge, a recreation room, a canteen and an office for the Staff Association. Facing to the North is the student canteen with a capacity of 350.

5. New Asia Hostel No. 1

At the eastern promotory of the campus is the student hostel which accommodates 359 students. In order to develop a spirit of selfgovernment and mutual assistance among the students, the hostel is divided into several living units instead of assigning students to the usual train-style corridors. Each living unit accommodates more than 20 students and has its own common room, reading room, wash rooms and other facilities. Each room is shared by two/three students.

6. Friendship Lodge

The Friendship Lodge was built in 1975 with donations from the late Board Chairman Dr. P.Y. Tang and others and from the Yale-China Association. It is a six-storey building consisting of 15 flats with a total floor area of 15,700 square feet and located at a very scenic part in the College campus.

Faculties and Department

The College offers a four-year undergraduate programme in Arts, Business Administration, Science and Social Science which are divided into the following faculties, departments and groups:

Faculty of Arts: Department of Chinese Literature, Department of English, Department of Fine Arts, Department of French Studies, Department of History, Department of Philosophy and Department of Translation.

- Faculty of Business Administration: Accounting & Finance Group, General Business Management & Personnel Management Group and Marketing & International Business Group.
- Faculty of Science: Department of Biology, Department of Chemistry, Department of Mathematics and Department of Physics.
- Faculty of Social Science: Department of Economics, Department of Journalism and Department of Sociology.
- Faculty of Business Administration: Accounting & Finance Group, Marketing & International Business Group and Personnel Management & Production Group.

Admission

Admission to the College is very competitive. Students seeking admission must, in addition to passing the Matriculation Examination, satisfy the College that they have shown good competence at the Matriculation Examination in the courses related to their fields of specialization.

Programme of Study

The four-year programme is divided into two parts. The first two years are devoted to languages, general education and basic courses in the student's major and minor fields; the third and fourth years are for advanced courses for which some groundwork has been laid during the first and second years.

Major and Minor

Students must, with the advice of the Dean of Studies and the Head/Chairman of their Department/Group, choose one of the following as their major field of study: Chinese Literature, History, Philosophy, English, Fine Arts, Mathematics, Physics, Chemistry, Botany, Zoology, Economics, Journalism, Sociology, Accounting, Finance, Marketing, International Business, General Business Management, or Personnel Management. Besides, students should choose a suitable subject as their minor.

Degree

A student must meet the following requirements in order to be entitled to the Degree issued by the University:

- 1. Fulfil a four-year attendance requirement. For transfer students this requirement may be partially waived.
- Complete a total of at least 120 units including all the required courses prescribed by the College. For transfer students credits earned at other schools may be accepted in partial fulfilment of this requirement.
- 3. Pass the Degree Examination.

Expenses

The following fees are charged:

1. Composition fee — HK\$1,750 per academic year.

2. Caution money — \$100.

3. Student Union membership fee - \$60 per year.

4. Student Union Entrance fee - \$20.

Scholarships and Bursaries

The New Asia College scholarship/bursary programme is designed both to provide education for students who would otherwise not be able to afford it, and to reward high academic achievement. For these two purposes, New Asia has a variety of bursaries and scholarships. The former include partial tuition aid, or full tuition aid in return for some work. The latter include special scholarships ranging from \$300 to \$5,000 per year. They are donated by the College, the Hong Kong Government, foundations and charitable organizations, both local and overseas, as well as by interested individuals.

Health Service

The College offers free medical service to its students and staff.

A medical examination by the University Physician and a chest X-ray are required of all students.

Extra-Curricular Activities

Extra-curricular activities form an important part of student life in the College. These fall into the following categories:

1. Student organizations — The College has a Student Union which represents the total student body. Besides, there are independent clubs of two types: those formed on a departmental basis, of which all students of a department are *ipso factor* members, and those on an entirely voluntary basis. The latter include Drama Club, Chess Club, Music Club, Chinese Music Club, Catholic Students Association, Christian Fellowship, New Asia Committee of World University Service, Photography Club, Judo Club, Forensic Society, and New Asia Students Social Service Group.

2. Athletic and other activities — Other extra-curricular activities include public speaking, debating, student publications, drama and music performance, ball games, and track and field contests.

Publications

The New Asia College Calendar, published annually giving comprehensive information on the College.

The New Asia Academic Annual contains academic articles and monographs written by faculty members and students. The Annual began in 1959 and has had its sixteenth issue.

The New Asia Life is a monthly carrying articles and speeches as well as news and reports concerning life in the College.

The New Asia Newsletter issued weekly on Mondays, reporting briefly news about the College.

In addition, departmental bulletins are published by the Departments of Chinese Literature, History, Fine Arts, English, Philosophy, Sociology, Economics, Journalism and Business Administration.

Exchange Programmes

The College has exchange agreements with Asia University of Japan, Connecticut College and College Center for Education Abroad of the United States. In addition a part of the students coming under the Chinese University/ University of California Exchange Programme is assigned to the College.

UNITED COLLEGE

President

T.C. CHENG, O.B.E.; B.A. (H.K.); M.A., Dip.Ed. (London); J.P.

Treasurer

P.C. WONG, M.A. (Cantab.); F.C.A., F.R.Econ.S.; J.P.

Academic Registrar Tsu-ru L1U, LL.B. (National Fuhtan)

- Dean of the Faculty of Arts Teh-chao WANG, B.A. (National Peking); M.A. (Harvard)
- Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration Shu-chia YANG, B.A., M.S., Ph.D. (Minnesota)
- Dean of the Faculty of Social Science Kwan-yiu Wong, B.A. (H.K.); M.A., Ph.D. (Melbourne)
- Dean of the Faculty of Science S.T. Tsou, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Liverpool)

Librarian

Ching Liu, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.A. (Taiwan Provincial Normal)

Bursar

S.T. WONG, A.I.I.A. (Australia)

- Dean of Students
 - Andrew W.F. Wong, B.A. (H.K.); M.P.A. (Syracuse)
- Deputy Registrar

Andrew CHAN, B.A. (H.K.); Cert.Ed.Mgt. (Harvard)

Director, Men's Section (Adam Schall Residence) Fr. Ciaran F. KANE, S.J., B.A. (N.U.I.); Lic Phil., B.D., S.T.L. (Gregorian)

Directress, Women's Section (Adam Schall Residence) Sr. Agnes CAZALE, B.A. (Rogers Coll., N.Y.) Director of Physical Education

Joachim POON, B.B.A. (Armstrong); M.Sc. (Springfield)

Instructors of Physical Education

Yiu-mo CHAN, Dip. in Phy. Ed. (*Taiwan Phy. Ed. Coll.*) Mary L. FUNG, Miss, Cert.Ed. (*Chelsea Coll.*); B.Ed. (*Sussex*) Tak-kai Lo, B.Ed. (*Taiwan Normal*)

Assistant Bursar

Denny Y.L. WUN, A.A.S.A., F.H.K.S.A.

Assistant Librarian

Rita Wong, Mrs., B.A. (H.K.), A.L.A.

Administrative Assistants

Grace M.Y. Chow, Mrs., B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Katherine P. Wong, Mrs., B.Ec. (W. Aust.)

ACADEMIC STAFF

FACULTY OF ARTS

Department of Chinese Language and Literature

Reader

Kwang-chung Yu, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.F.A. (Iowa State) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Tat-leung LEE, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Yun-kuang LEE, B.A., M.A., Litt.D. (Taiwan Normal) Hui-ying LI, Dip.Ch.Litt. (China Inst. of Woosung, Shanghai) Chung-ho SHEUNG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Man-jock So, Dip.Ch.Litt. (Wusih Coll. of Classical Chinese Studies) Ting-cheuk YUEN, B.A., M.A., Litt.D. (Taiwan Normal)

Assistant Lecturers

Shing-cheong CHAN, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Song-hing CHANG, B.A., M.A. (C.U.H.K.) Chung-key YEUNG, B.A. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (Kyoto)

Department of English

Senior Lecturer

J.B. GANNON, B.A. (N.U.I.); M.A. (Columbia) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Joan Barbara Boozer, Miss, B.A. (U.C. Los Angeles); M.A. (New York)
Margaret E.R. BRIDGES, Mrs., M.A. (Glasgow)
Bruce Andrew CHAN, B.A. (Leeds); Cert.Ed., Ph.D. (London)
Pao-chung FENG CHANG, Mrs., B.A. (Yenching); M.A. (H.K.)
Penelope A. JORDAN, Mrs., M.A. (Oxon.)
Denis J. O'SHEA, B.A. (Queensland); Dip.Gen.Linguistics, Dip.Phonetics (Edinburgh)

Assistant Lecturer

Lillian YEE, Miss, A.B., A.M. (Michigan)

Language Instructor

Joyce Pong, Mrs., B.A., Dip. Ed. (Monash)

Tutors

*Susan Elizabeth MURLEY, B.A. (Williams) *Gary Tang Wong, B.A. (Williams)

Department of German Studies

Visiting Lecturers

Jürgen Klünder, Ph.D. (Vienna) Head of the Department Michael Nentwich, Ph.D. (Heidelberg)

Lecturers

*Josef D. HILLENBRAND, Philosophicum (Passau), Dip. in Soc. Sc. (Florence) *Hsi-hua Lo KUAN, Mrs., LL.B. (Soochow, Taiwan); Deutschlehrerdiplom (Goethe Inst., Munich)

Department of History

Reader

Teh-chao WANG, B.A. (National Peking); M.A. (Harvard) Head of the Department

Lecturer

Ngai-ha Lun NG, Mrs., B.A., Dip.Ed., M.A. (H.K.)

Assistant Lecturer

Yuk-tong Wong, B.A., Dip.Ed. (C.U.H.K.); M.A. (H.K.)

Tutors

*Chi-keung CHUNG, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) *Siu-hing Foo, Miss, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) *Chiu-keung LAM, B.A. (C.U.H.K.) *Chi-hung WAN, B.A. (National Taiwan)

FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Reader

Shu-chia YANG, B.A., M.S., Ph.D. (Minnesota)

Senior Lecturers

Chien-min CHANG, LL.B. (Tsing Hua); M.A., M.S. (Wyoming) Head of Concentration Group on General Business Management & Personnel Management

Yu-to CHUNG, B.Comm. (Edinburgh); M.B.A., B.D.A. (Indiana); A.C.A. Head of Concentration Group on Accounting & Finance

Lecturers

Cecil C. Luk, B.A. (*Tsing Hua*); M.B.A. (*New York*); Cert.Ed. (*H.K.*); A.M.B.I.M.; M.I.S.M.

Nan Sun, Miss, M.B.A. (Michigan)

Kwok-chi TAM, B.A. (International Christian);
 M.B.A., Ph.D. (Georgia State)
 Head of Concentration Group on Marketing & International Business

Assistant Lecturer

Benjamin Yuk-kwong TAI, B.S., M.S. (Illinois State)

Tutors

Lai-ming CHI, Miss, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.) Ko-lum LAU, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.) Yee-wah Lo, Miss, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.) Sui-cheung POON, B.B.A. (C.U.H.K.)

FACULTY OF SCIENCE

Department of Biochemistry

Professor

Lin MA, B.Sc. (W. China Union); Ph.D. (Leeds) Head of the Department

Senior Lecturer

Yun-cheung Kong, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Bruxelles)

Lecturers

Yuen-min CHOV, B.Sc. (H.K.); M.Sc. (Simon Fraser); Ph.D. (British Columbia)
Walter Kwok-keung Ho, A.B., Ph.D. (U.C. Berkeley)
Cheuk-yu LEE, B.Sc., M.Sc., Ph.D. (British Columbia)
Hin-wing YEUNG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); B.Sc.Sp., M.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Toronto)

Hon. Research Fellow

Donald Sai-hang Ko, B.Sc. (London); Ph.D. (Chicago)

Teaching Assistants

Kwong-keung Au, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Yu-tak LEE, B.Sc., M.Phil. (C.U.H.K.)

Student Demonstrators

Kin-fu CHAK, B.Sc. (National Taiwan) Chung-shun CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Chun-tao CHE, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Shin-cheung CHIU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Kit-man LAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Kwan-chi LEUNG, B.Sc. (National Taiwan) Huck-kwong WONG, B.Sc. (National Chung Hsing, Taiwan) Shirley She-lai WONG, Miss, B.Sc. (H.K.)

Department of Chemistry

Lecturers

Anthony Sung-lit CHIU, B.Sc., Ph.D. (H.K.) Ping-kay HON, Ph.D. (Illinois) Kwan-yu HUI, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); B.Sc.Sp., Ph.D. (H.K.) Choi-nang LAM, B.Sc.Sp., M.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Southampton) Danny S.H. MAK, B.Sc. (McGill); M.Sc., Ph.D. (British Columbia) Head of the Department Teaching Assistants

Chuen-tim CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Kwok-kuen LEUNG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Student Demonstrators Suk-yee CHAN, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Tat-ting KAM, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Chung-wing YIP, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Computer Science

Professor

Shiu-chang LoH, B.Sc., Ph.D. (Leeds) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Hing-sum Hung, B.S. (Stanford); M.S. (Illinois); M.S., Ph.D. (Wisconsin)
Ronald A. Russell-Clark, B.Sc. (Liverpool); M.A. (Cantab);
Cert.Ed., Ph.D. (London)
Didier H. Schwartzmann, B.A. (Lycce Turgot, Paris);

M.S., Ph.D. (U.C. Los Angeles)

Assistant Lecturers

Douglas Shu-lung TUNG, B.S. (Oregon State); M.B.A. (Sasketchewan) **Luen Kong, B.Sc. (London)

Demonstrators

Evelyn Chi-suk CHEUNG, Miss, B.Soc.Sc. (H.K.) Dennis K.K. LI, B.Sc.(Eng.) (H.K.) *Kin-chung So, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) *Chak-wah MAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Electronics

Senior Lecturer

Yat-wah LAM, B.Sc. (London); M.Sc. (Birmingham); Ph.D. (Manchester); M.I.E.E., A.Inst.P. Head of the Department

Lecturers

Chu-cheng CHANG, M.Sc., Ph.D. (Manchester);
Thomas Tak-cheung CHOY, B.Sc., B.E. (Sydney); M.Tech. (N.S.W.); M.I.E.E.
Jashwant Singh DAHELE, Grad.I.E.R.E. (Harlow Tech. Coll.); Post Grad. Dip. (Surrey); C.Eng., M.I.E.R.E., M.I.E.E.
Harry H.L. KWOK, B.Sc. (U.C. Los Angeles); M.S., Ph.D. (Stanford)
James G.N. LEE, B.Sc., B.E. (Sydney); M.Eng.Sc. (N.S.W.)
Kai-fong LEE, B.Sc., M.Sc. (Queen's), Ph.D. (Cornell)
York LIAO, B.Sc. (Caltech); M.A., Ph.D. (Harvard)
Ronnie K.L. POON, B.Sc., M.Sc., D.Sc. (M.I.T.)
Hung-tat TSUI, B.Sc. (H.K.); M.Sc. (Manchester); Ph.D. (Birmingham)

** Temporary.

Student Demonstrators

Chok-leung CHAN, B.Sc.(Eng.) (H.K.) Hing-hung CHAN, B.Sc. (H.K.) Kat-fu CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Youn-wah CHAN, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Tze-chiang CHENG, Dip. (Peking) Hon-keung KwAN, A.P. (H.K.); Grad.I.E.R.E. Siu-kwan Kwok, B.Sc. (H.K.) Kei-pui LAM, B.Sc.(Eng.) (H.K.) Chi-sang Poon, B.Sc.(Eng.) (H.K.)

Department of Mathematics

Senior Lecturers

N.N. CHAN, B.Sc. (National Peking); Ph.D. (Liverpool); F.S.S. S.T. Tsou, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); Ph.D. (Liverpool) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Kung-fu NG, Dip.Math. (Chu Hai); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Wales) Yau-chuen Wong, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); M.Sc., Ph.D. (Wales) Kai-wing YIP, B.Sc. (National Sun Yat-sen); M.Sc. (Newcastle-upon-Tyne)

Student Demonstrators

Hon-wing CHENG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Lap-fat Ho, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Kai-hing LAM, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Chi-ping LAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Tai-shing LAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Physics

Lecturers

Fong-ching CHEN, B.A. (Harvard); M.A., Ph.D. (Brandeis) Yun-tong Fung, A.B., M.A., Ph.D. (U.C. Berkeley) Head of the Department Wing-chuen Ho, M.Sc., Dr.Techn. (Tech. U., Vienna) Martin Hon-shang LAU, B.Sc.Sp. (H.K.); Dip. Adv. Studies in Physics, Ph.D. (Manchester) Kenneth Young, B.S., Ph.D. (Calif. Inst. of Tech.) Student Demonstrators

Kwok-lam CHAU, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Shek-hung FUNG, Grad. (Sun Yat-sen) Wang-yue LEUNG, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Chun-pong Lo, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Yin-mui NG, Miss, B.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Miao-kee Young, Grad. (Wu Han)
FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

Department of Economics

Lecturers

Tien-tung Hsueh, B.A., M.A. (National Taiwan); Ph.D. (Colorado) Head of the Department Kuo-tao Yui, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.A. (National Chengchi);

M.Sc. (Cantab.)

Assistant Lecturer

Koon-lam SHEA, B.Soc.Sc. (H.K.); M.A. (Washington)

Tutor

Leung Ho, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Geography

Professor

Cheng-siang CHEN, B.Sc. (National Central); D.Sc. (Tohuku)

Lecturers

Mo-kwan LEE FONG, Mrs., B.A., Dip.Ed. (H.K.); M.A. (Wisconsin) Kwan-yiu Wong, B.A. (H.K.); M.A., Ph.D. (Melbourne) Head of the Department

Assistant Lecturer

Norman Yen-tak NG, B.A. (H.K.); M.A. (Minnesota)

Demonstrators

Pui-chun PANG, Miss, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.) Tung-kei WONG, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

Department of Government and Public Administration

Professor

Shou-sheng HsuEH, B.A. (Yenching); M.A., Ph.D. (Geneva) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Hsin-chi KUAN, LL.B. (Chengchi); M.A. (Free U. of Berlin); Ph.D. (Munich)

Kuang-sheng Liao, B.A. (National Taiwan); M.A. (Utah State); Ph.D. (Michigan)

*Stanley Rosen, B.A., M.A. (U.C. Berkeley)

Robert N. SPADARO, M.A. (Pennsylvania), Ph.D. (Georgia) Andrew W.F. WONG, B.A. (H.K.); M.P.A. (Syracuse)

Assistant Lecturer

Kui-hung Wong, B.A., M.A. (International Christian) Tutor

Chu-ho Ng, B.A. (H.K.)

* Part-time.

Department of Social Work

Senior Lecturer

Kam-fai Ho, B.A. (National Taiwan); Dip.Soc.St. (H.K.); M.S.W., D.S.W. (Columbia) Head of the Department

Lecturers

Daniel Fook-kwan CHAN, B.Sc. (H.K.); M.S.W. (Fordham)
Eva B.C. LI Ko, Mrs., B.A. (H.K.); B.S.W., M.S.W. (Toronto);
Dip. Soc. Welfare Policy (Inst. of Soc. Studies, The Hague);
Cert. Soc. Science and Administration (London)

Field Instructors

Betsy Lo CHAU, Mrs., B.A., Dip.Soc.St. (H.K.) *Shiv Pal GREWAL, Mrs., B.A. (Toronto); M.S.W. (Wilfred Laurier) *Mela LEUNG, Mrs., Dip. (H.K. Baptist), Dip.Soc.St. (Wales)

Department of Sociology

Lecturers

Ying-keung CHAN, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.); Docteur d'Université (Bordeaux)
Ching-yan CHOI, B.A. (International Christian); M.A. (W. Reserve);
Ph.D. (A.N.U.)
Head of the Department
Siu-kai LAU, B.Soc.Sc. (H.K.); Ph.D. (Minnesota)
Robert M. PANKIN, A.B., M.A. (Wayne State); Ph.D. (Purdue)

Tutor

Chi-keung FUNG, B.S.Sc. (C.U.H.K.)

EXCHANGE PERSONNEL FROM OTHER ACADEMIC INSTITUTIONS

Williams-in-Hong Kong Programme

Representatives

Susan Elizabeth MURLEY, Miss, B.A. (Williams) Gary Tang Wong, B.A. (Williams)

Chinese University of Hong Kong/University of **California** Exchange Programme

Graduate Fellow

Diane WALKER, Miss, A.B. (U.C. Berkeley); M.A. (U.C. Davis)

* Part-time.

GENERAL INFORMATION

History

United College was founded in 1956 by the amalgamation of five "refugee" post-secondary colleges (namely, Canton Overseas College, Kwang Hsia College, Wah Kiu College, Wen Hua College, and Ping Jing College of Accountancy) which decided to pool their resources so as to provide more efficiently for the higher education for both refugee and local students. It was incorporated under an Ordinance of the Hong Kong Government in 1957 with a Board of Trustees as its supreme governing body.

In the first three years of its existence, there were seven teaching departments — four in the Faculty of Arts and three in the Faculty of Commerce. In 1959, a Faculty of Science was started.

In February 1960, when the day section of the College became a Governmentaided institution, a clear separation was made between the grant Day College and the private Evening School. From then on until the founding of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, the College passed through a period of important changes. Notable emong these were the reorganization of its administration and revision of its curricula and syllabuses in the light of the reports by Sir James Duff, Dr. K. Mellanby, and Dr. F.E. Folts, which did much to put its administrative and teaching organization on a sound and firm footing. Through the improvements made in those years, the College's role in fulfilling the community's need for higher education was soon recognized, thus paving the way for it to attain the status of a Foundation College when The Chinese University of Hong Kong was founded on 17th October, 1963, as a result of the Fulton Commission's recommendations.

In 1962, the College Board of Trustees was re-constituted to widen representation from the local community, and on 10th July, 1962, Dr. the Hon. Fung Ping-fan, C.B.E., K.St.J., LL.D., D.Soc.Sc., J.P., was elected its Chairman. In the same month, Mr. T.C. Cheng, O.B.E., M.A., Dip.Ed., J.P., then Chief Assistant Secretary for Chinese Affairs, accepted the Board of Trustees' offer of appointment as President, and assumed office in January 1963.

Since then, the College has made rapid progress which was reflected by the large increase in enrolment, improved quality of the staff and the students, as well as a general enlivening in all aspects of College life.

In March 1971, foundation stones were laid for the five new buildings for the College in Shatin. Late in December the same year, the process of relocation began, and the College was able to begin Second Term of 1971-72 on the new campus.

Further change occurred in May 1972, when Dr. the Hon. P.C. Woo, C.B.E., Ph.D., J.P. succeeded Dr. the Hon. Sir Kenneth Ping-fan Fung in becoming Chairman of the College Board of Trustees. Sir Kenneth has resigned in order to take up his appointment as a member of the University and Polytechnic Grants Committee.

Academic Policy

The College provides a four-year course of study leading to the Bachelor's degree. Beginning in 1973/74, a new Academic Programme has been introduced whereby first year students are admitted on a Faculty basis. Under this programme, students are able to choose from a much wider range of subjects and to achieve a fairly broad foundation before they select areas of specialization in their later years of study.

In brief, the four-year programme is organized as follows:---

- 1. In the first year, students are required to take:
 - (a) compulsory course in Chinese, with a view to enabling all students to learn something of the Literature, History, Culture and Civilization of China;
 - (b) compulsory course in English (unless exempted), with emphasis on practical usage;
 - (c) 2-3 courses in the potential major subject;
 - (d) at least one term course each in two other subjects;
 - (e) general education, physical education and kuo-yu courses.
- 2. In the second year, students will select their major and minor subjects, and will be assigned to departments accordingly.
- 3. In the third and fourth years, students will undergo a more intensive study of a limited range of subjects for which some groundwork has been laid in the first and second years.

The principal medium of instruction is Chinese, but English reference and textbooks are used to a great extent.

Faculties

There are four Faculties in the College — Arts, Business Administration, Science and Social Science — with fifteen teaching Departments and three Concentration Groups in all:

- Faculty of Arts: Department of Chinese Language & Literature, Department of English, Department of German Studies and Department of History.
- Faculty of Business Administration: Group on Accounting & Finance, Group on General Business Management & Personnel Management and Group on Marketing & International Business.
- Faculty of Science: Department of Biochemistry, Department of Chemistry, Department of Computer Science, Department of Electronics, Department of Mathematics and Department of Physics.
- Faculty of Social Science: Department of Economics, Department of Geography, Department of Government & Public Administration, Department of Social Work and Department of Sociology.

Publications

The publications of the College are as follows:

- (1) Calendar published annually in Chinese and English, giving, comprehensive information on the College.
- (2) United Bulletin published twice a year (December and June), giving information of documentary and general interest, with contributions from staff and students.
- (3) United Students, the official fortnightly publication of the Student Union;
- (4) United Newsletter, the official weekly newsletter of the Student Union;
- (5) Wah Fung, a publication of the Chinese Society;
- (6) United English Review, a publication of the English Society;
- (7) Shih Ch'ao and (8) History Journal, publications of the History Society;
- (9) Geography Journal, a publication of the Geography Society;
- (10) GPA Review and (11) GPA Newsletter, publications of the Government & Public Administration Society;
- (12) Science Journal, a publication of the Science Society;
- (13) SSS, a publication of the Sociology and Social Work Society;
- (14) Chiu House Quarterly;
- (15) Dawn House Bulletin, and
- (16) Resonance, a publication of the Electronics Society.

College Premises

The College was accommodated in a rented tenement building on Caine Road when it was founded in 1956. After 1961, it was housed in various buildings, rented from the Government, on Bonham Road, High Street and Caine Lane on the mid-level of the Island of Hong Kong.

At the beginning of 1972, the College moved to its new campus at Shatin in the New Territories. The new buildings provide a total usable area of some 132,000 sq. ft. and a brief description of them follows:

1. Tsang Shiu Tim Building (Arts and Administration) — This 4-storey structure provides a total usable area of 18,000 sq. ft. Its design provides for lecture rooms on the ground floor, administrative offices on the first floor; and faculty offices and language laboratories on the second and third floors.

2. Business Administration and Social Science Building and Lecture Theatre Complex — This 5-storey building has a total usable area of 26,000 sq. ft. The ground and first floors consist of lecture rooms with three lecture theatres in an adjacent complex. The remaining three floors include faculty offices, a commerce laboratory, cartography laboratory and ancillary facilities.

3. Wu Chung Library — The Library consists of three storeys and a basement with a total usable area of 16,500 sq. ft. The entire building is centrally air-conditioned.

4. Cheung Chuk Shan Building for Student / Staff Amenities — One section of this building has four storeys and the other two storeys. An 8,000 sq. ft. gymnasium is built on top of the Dining Hall and Kitchen. The remaining part of the building has a usable floor area of 22,500 sq. ft. Part of the first floor and all of the second floor are devoted to student amenities. The remainder of the first floor provides offices for the physical education staff and facilities for instruction in physical education. The third floor accommodates staff amenities, including staff common rooms, and recreation rooms. Student amenities include common rooms, general offices, committee and conference rooms, a "co-operative" counter and rooms for television, music, games and photography.

5. Adam Schall Residence — This 4-storey structure, with a usable area of 41,000 sq. ft., is divided into a male and a female wing, each designed to accommodate 125 students. The Maryknoll and Jesuit Orders have jointly contributed half of the costs of construction and furnishings for this hostel which is managed by them under arrangements agreed to between the College and the Orders concerned. In addition to the 124 double and 2 single rooms provided for students, the wardens and the tutors have accommodation at the far ends of the building on the 2nd and 3rd floors. Included in the design is space for an oratory as well as tea kitchens, laundry and ironing rooms, music and game rooms, committee rooms, reading and study areas and communal common rooms.

PART III FOUNDATION COLLEGES

6. United College Staff Residence — This is a five-storey building and consists of ten three-room flats of about 1,000 sq. ft. each, and ten two-room flats of about 650 sq. ft. each. The Residence is overlooking the beautiful Tolo Harbour and the Plover Cove Reservoir.

In addition to the above, the College is pursuing the following new project:

Student Hostel — A new student hostel, now at its final planning stage, will provide 220 additional places for resident students. Phase I of its construction plan will be financed by private donations. It is expected that construction work will begin in early 1976. It will provide over 90 places.

Library

In recent years the Wu Chung Library has undergone considerable expansion. Books and periodicals have been acquired through Government grants supplemented by generous donations from the British Council, U.S.I.S., The Asia Foundation and the College Endowment Fund Committee. Among other individual donors, Mr. Fung Kui-fai contributed a large collection of Chinese classics which forms the nucleus of the Chinese collection. Worthy of mention are three recent acquisitions. The first is a collection of modern Chinese plays published during 1921-45; the second is the Hong Kong collection; the third is a rare collection, and the largest in Hong Kong, of 56 pieces of oracle bones donated by Mrs. T.F.Y. Tang, widow of the late calligraphist and seal engraver.

The total collection in the library holding now amounts to over 101,661 volumes, plus 300 titles of periodicals and journals, acquired either by subscription or through donation and exchange. The classification scheme adopted for all new acquisitions is the Library of Congress System. The total seating capacity in the library is 325, and the entire library building is centrally airconditioned.

Students

For the academic year 1974-75, a total of 1,083 students enrolled at United College, of whom 808 were men and 275 were women. All students of the College are automatically members of the United Colege Student Union which was inaugurated in 1963. Through the Union and other student societies, extra-curricular activities are promoted, including academic, athletic and other social functions. Student societies include the Faculty and departmental societies, class associations, alumni associations, the Adam Schall Residence Association and other miscellaneous societies such as: ABE Soccer Club, Art Club, Astronomy Club, Athletic Club, Catholic Society, Chess Club, Debating Society, Drama Society, Foreign Languages Society, Guitar Club, Judo Club,

Karate Association, Life Guard Club, Music Society, Photographic Society, Rambling Club, Student Christian Fellowship, Table-tennis Club, Tennis Club, Union Choir, Volleyball Club, and World University Service, United College Branch.

Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes

In the 1974-75 academic year, over 64% of the student population of the College received scholarships or bursaries granted by the College, the University, the Government, organizations concerned with education, and individual donors, totalling 846 awards.

In commemoration of the Tenth Anniversary of the College in 1966, prizes were donated by individuals and organizations interested in the promotion of higher education in Hong Kong for award to students of distinction. Although such prizes have a token cash value of only HK\$500, they are a rare honour and are awarded in recognition of outstanding academic performance in the previous year.

PART IV

POSTGRADUATE SCHOOLS, INSTITUTES AND UNIVERSITY EXTENSIONS

r.

GRADUATE SCHOOL

The Graduate School was established in the summer of 1966. It is operated directly by the University.

Graduate Council

The Graduate Council is the policy-making body of the Graduate School and its membership consists of: Dean of the Graduate School (Chairman) University Faculty Deans, University Librarian, Director of the School of Education and Heads of the various Divisions of the Graduate School. Major decisions of the Graduate Council are subject to the approval of the Senate.

Divisions

The Graduate School has altogether 15 Divisions offering instructions leading to the Master's degrees: Biochemistry, Biology, Business Administration, Chemistry, Chinese Language & Literature, Economics, Education, Electronics, Geography, History, Mathematics, Philosophy, Physics, Sociology and Theology. The Division of Chinese Language & Literature is sub-divided into two departments: Chinese Linguistics and Chinese Literature.

Admission Requirements

Graduates of this University or other recognized universities possessing a Bachelor's degree with honours not lower than Second Class Lower Division may apply for admission to the Graduate School. Undergraduates who expect to receive their Bachelor's degrees in the current academic year or candidates who have completed a course of study in a tertiary educational institution and hold professional or similar qualifications equivalent to a degree may also apply for admission.

The Division of Business Administration accepts applications for admission from graduates with a first degree in Economics, Business Administration, Engineering, Arts, Natural Sciences or Social Sciences.

The entrance examination comprises tests in Chinese and English Languages, as well as other subjects required by the Division concerned. Candidates are also required to attend an interview. Overseas students applying for exemption from the entrance examination should submit the following credentials to this School before 16th April:

- 1. Acceptable credentials testifying to their language proficiency in Chinese and English.
- 2. A letter of recommendation signed by a scholar of international standing testifying to the research ability of the candidate.

Graduates with a First Class Honours degree from this University may be partially exempted from the entrance examination if they continue in the same field as their undergraduate major.

Language Requirement

Both Chinese and English are used as media of instruction in most of the Divisions, but Chinese is mainly used for the subjects of Chinese History, Chinese Language & Literature, Education, Geography and Philosophy, therefore students in these subjects must be proficient in the Chinese language.

Application

The Graduate School accepts applications for admission from 1st March to 15th April.

Two copies of each applicant's academic records and two letters of recommendation from his undergraduate teachers should be forwarded direct from his original university to the Graduate School; other supporting documents should accompany the application form.

An examination fee of HK\$50 is payable when an applicant is admitted to sit for the entrance examination.

Degree

(a) The following Master's degrees are awarded to candidates who have successfully completed the required two-year postgraduate programme including course work and a research thesis:

> Master of Philosophy (M.Phil.) Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.) Master of Divinity (M.Div.)

(b) The following Master's degrees are awarded to candidates who have successfully completed one calendar year of their postgraduate programme based on course work:

Master of Arts (M.A.) Master of Science (M.Sc.) Master of Social Science (M.S.Sc.)

Fees

Fees for the current academic year are as follows:

General Fee . (payable by		HK\$1,750 per annum
Caution Money	 	 HK\$100
Graduation Fee	 	 HK\$100

Caution money will be refunded on the completion of studies if he has no outstanding financial obligation to the University.

Auditing Students

A small number of auditing students may be admitted and fees are at HK\$225 per course per term. The total of course fees payable will not exceed HK\$1,750 per year.

Financial Aid

Scholarships and bursaries up to HK\$5,000 per annum are available. Halftime demonstratorships are also available in certain Divisions.

Division of Biochemistry

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Biology, Chemistry or related fields.

Fields of Specialization:

1. Actions of Animal Hormones/Reproductive Physiology

2. Protein Biochemistry/Clinical Biochemistry

- 3. Molecular Biology/Virus
- 4. Intermediary Metabolism/Actions of Plant Hormones
- 5. Lysosomal Functions in Carcinogenesis
- 6. Protein biosynthesis/Structure-Activity Relationships of Protein Hormones
- 7. Immunochemistry

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Each student is required to complete a total of at least 24 units for the Degree.

First Year:

Courses in Biochemistry or in other disciplines as approved by											
the Board		•			8 units						
Research/Special Study/Literature Review					4 units						
Seminar					2 units						
Second Year:											
Graduate Course/Seminar					2 units						
Research towards a Master's thesis		•	•	•	8 units						

Division of Biology

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Biology or a related field.

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. Animal Physiology/Comparative Endocrinology
- 2. Cytogenetics
- 3. Developmental Zoology

- 4. Fungal Genetics
- 5. Microbiology/Phycology
- 6. Molecular Biology/Cancer
- 7. Plant Pathology/Mycology
- 8. Plant Physiology: intermediary metabolism & plant hormones
- 9. Virology/Bacteriophage
- 10. Ecology/Environmental Studies
- 11. Entomology

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

The minimum requirements are:

First Year:

1.	Course work			•					•	•	•		6	Units
2.	Seminar . Research for t				•				•	•	•	•	2	,,
3.	Research for t	thesis	•	•	•	•	٠	•	·	•	•	•	4	"
Second	Year:													
1.	Special Topic													
2.	Seminar .	• •		•					•	•	٠	•	2	,,
3.	Research for	thesis		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	8	"
	Total .					•	•						24	Units

Division of Business Administration

This Division is operated under the Lingnan Institute of Business Administration. The Institute provides facilities for graduate study and research in the broad area of business administration, and offers a two-year curriculum leading to the degree of Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.). For students whose first degree is in the field of Economics or Business Administration, the completion of this curriculum will normally take two years. The Institute also welcomes applicants whose first degree is in the field of Engineering, Natural Sciences, Social Sciences or Arts. For these students, the Institute provides tailor-made curricula, the completion of which requires a minimum of two years.

A high degree of proficiency in English, both written and spoken, is essential for the successful completion of the Institute's curriculum, so that only those who are truly bilingual should apply for admission.

M.B.A. Degree Programme:

The first year of the two-year curriculum is designed to bring the students to a high level of competence in the basic skills underlying the successful administration of complex enterprises. For students without an undergraduate background in business administration, certain basic business courses are pro-

140

vided to make up for their deficiencies. In the second year of study, students are offered the opportunity to concentrate in areas of their own special interest, and to write a Master's thesis incorporating the results of their investigation of an appropriate problem.

Division of Chemistry

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Chemistry or related fields.

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. Inorganic Chemistry
- 2. Analytical Chemistry
- 3. Organic Chemistry
- 4. Physical Chemistry
- 5. Theoretical Chemistry
- 6. Applied Chemistry

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

The courses offered to students are varied according to their interest and their research project. The study plan for each student will be arranged by his research supervisor, following the guideline set up by the Chemistry Board.

First Year:

- 1. Selected topic courses in Chemistry offered both to 4th year undergraduates and graduate students;
- 2. Tutorial course in an advanced special field to strengthen his background in research, as arranged by the supervisor;
- 3. Survey of current literature in the chosen field arranged with the supervisor;
- 4. Courses offered by other departments but specially useful to the graduate students;
- 5. Seminar and
- 6. Research

Second Year:

- 1. Tutorial course and literature survey arranged with the supervisor;
- 2. Seminar and
- 3. Research towards a Master's thesis

Division of Chinese Language and Literature

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Chinese Linguistics, Chinese Literature or related fields.

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Students are required to take at least three full courses and participate in one seminar in their first and second year, and to prepare a Master's thesis in the second year of study.

Courses are to be offered in the following fields:

- 1. For Department of Chinese Linguistics:
 - (a) Chinese Linguistics
 - (b) Chinese Etymology
 - (c) Selected readings
- 2. For Department of Chinese Literature:
 - (a) Lectures on special subjects
 - (b) Selected Readings (I)
 - (c) Selected Readings (II)

Students of both Departments must learn a third modern language other than Chinese and English for a period of two years.

Students of the Department of Chinese Linguistics who have not taken the course on General Linguistics in their undergraduate studies are required to take such course in the first year.

Division of Economics

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, applicants should have majored in Economics or related disciplines with a good background in Mathematics or Statistics.

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. Quantitative Economics
- 2. International Economics
- 3. Economic Development
- 4. Asian Economic Studies

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Each M. Phil. candidate must meet a minimum requirement of 30 credits for course work (an equivalent of 10 term courses) and a substantial thesis, which normally take two years for completion. First Year:

- 1. Compulsory courses:
 - (a) Economic Theory;
 - (b) Econometrics
- 2. Elective courses:
 - (a) Mathematical Economics
 - (b) Monetary Theory
 - (c) International Trade
 - (d) International Finance
 - (e) Economic Development
 - (f) Development Planning
 - (g) Socialist Economics
 - (h) Seminars in Area Studies

Second Year:

- 1. Seminars
- 2. Research towards a Master's thesis

Division of Education

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates who have obtained a Diploma in Education or practical experience in Education, including publications, will receive special consideration. Oral examination in the form of an interview is also required.

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. Educational Measurement
- 2. Educational Technology
- 3. Curriculum Development
- 4. Educational Psychology

M.A. Degree Programme in Education:

This Division is operated by the School of Education of the University. The Division offers a one-calendar-year postgraduate programme leading to the degree of Master of Arts (Education). Candidates are required to complete at least four year courses or eight term courses offered by the School of Education and to present a thesis based on the results of a systematic investigation.

Division of Electronics

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, the Division requires that candidates should normally hold an honours degree in Electronics, Electrical Engineering, or Physics with Electronics, or the equivalent.

Study Programmes:

(1) M.Sc. Programme:

A student pursuing the degree of Master of Science in Electronics is required to take lecture courses forming 4 full papers*.

In addition, the student is required to work on a project of about 5 months in duration, for which a satisfactory dissertation is required.

This programme usually takes one year to complete on a full-time basis, or two years on a part-time basis.

(2) M.Phil. Programme:

A student pursuing the degree of Master of Philosophy is required to take lecture courses forming at least 2 full papers*.

In addition, the student is required to carry out a research project of about one year in duration for which a satisfactory thesis is required.

This programme usually takes two years to complete on a part-time basis.

Division of Geography

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates are expected to have a basic training in their undergraduate studies in Geography or other appropriate subjects. Oral examination in the form of an interview is also required.

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Graduate courses will have special emphasis on the following areas:

- (a) Chinese Studies
- (b) Urban-economic Studies
- (c) Environmental Studies

In addition to course work, each student will be required to write and submit a research thesis.

144

^{*} Each full paper consists of lectures on one or more topics to be covered in not less than 40 hours. Degree papers may be selected, with the guidance of the teaching staff, from course units offered at the Electronics Department of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and other recognised course units if and when they are offered at the University of Hong Kong.

Division of History

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in History or related fields.

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. History of Chinese Political Institutions
- 2. Chinese Historical Geography
- 3. Chinese Economic History
- 4. History of Ming and Ch'ing Dynasties
- 5. Modern Chinese History
- 6. Historical Relations between China and Asian Countries

Students are required to take at least three full courses in the first and second years of study, and to prepare a Master's thesis in the second year.

Courses, either lectures or seminars, are to be offered in the following fields:

- 1. Ancient Chinese History
- 2. Medieval Chinese History
- 3. History of Ming and Ch'ing Dynasties
- 4. Modern Chinese History
- 5. Chinese Economic History
- 6. Historical Relations between China and Asian Countries

Students are also required to learn a third modern language other than Chinese and English for a period of two years.

M.A. Degree Programme:

Students are required to take at least four year courses or its equivalents in one calendar year. On the advice of their assigned supervisors, they should take relevant graduate courses and/or courses offered for junior or senior undergraduates as listed below, and they should get a satisfactory grade approved by the Division.

The Division will offer the following courses in the academic year 1975/76 to be chosen by the students according to their specialization:

*Comparative Historiography and Historical Method *Historical Relations of China and the Western World Topic Studies in China's Relations with other Asian States Topic Studies in European History Topic Studies in Chinese Social and Economic History Topic Studies in European Social and Economic History Topic Studies in 19th Century Britain and British Commonwealth Topic Studies in Contemporary World

* Courses also for junior and senior students.

Division of Mathematics

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Mathematics or related fields.

Fields of Specialization include:

- 1. Functional Analysis
- 2. Algebra
- 3. Applicable Mathematics

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Each candidate should normally complete a total of 26 units. These may be distributed as follows:

First Year:

1.														8 units
2.	Seminar											•	•	2 units
3.	Thesis .													
	Total			•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	·	12 units
Second	Year:													
1.	Courses													
2.	Seminar										•			2 units
3.	Thesis .													10 units
	Total				•	•	•	•		•	•	٠	•	14 units

Each course arranged by the Graduate Panel will be for one term and will be equivalent to 2 units. The candidate may elect one term course during his first year. Other courses will be arranged under the guidance of the supervisor. These may be advanced undergraduate courses or graduate courses, but in no case shall a student be credited with more than the equivalent of 4 postgraduate units in undergraduate courses.

Division of Philosophy

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Philosophy or related fields.

Fields of Specialization:

- 1. Problems of Chinese Philosophy
- 2. Problems of Epistemology
- 3. Metaphysics
- 4. Studies of Chinese or Western Philosophers
- 5. Other fields of philosophy including Comparative Studies in Philosophy

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

Students are required to take at least four full courses and participate in one seminar in their first and second year, and to prepare a Master's thesis in the second year of study.

Division of Physics

In addition to the general qualifications required for admission to the Graduate School, candidates should have majored in Physics or related fields.

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

First Year:

- A. Courses: Each student is required to take two or three of the following courses per term:
 - 1. Quantum Mechanics I (required)
 - 2. Quantum Mechanics II (elective)
 - 3. Mathematical Methods (elective)
 - 4. Electrodynamics (elective)
 - 5. Statistical Mechanics (elective)
 - 6. Solid State Theory (elective)
 - 7. Selected Topics (elective)
- B. Experiments: A student intending to undertake a theoretical research project may be required to carry out one experiment such as:
 - 1. High vacuum technique
 - 2. Semi-conductor detector
 - 3. Atomic beam spectroscopy
 - 4. Optical spectroscopy
 - 5. Beta and gamma-ray spectrometer
 - 6. Ultrasonic measurement

Second Year:

Each student is required to undertake a research project and to write a thesis. Facilities are available for work on the following:

- 1. Electrical and mechanical properties of solid state polymers
- 2. Thermal properties of solid state polymers
- 3. Optical properties of solids

- 4. Electrical and optical properties of amorphous semi-conducting films
- 5. Ultrasonic in polymers and condensed state
- 6. Mossbauer effects
- 7. Neutron activation analysis
- 8. Multi-valued logic circuits
- 9. Theoretical study of disordered systems
- 10. Theoretical study on collisions of electrons with atoms and molecules
- 11. Interaction of laser with matter
- 12. Laser holography

Division of Sociology

In addition to the general qualifications for admission to the Graduate School, preference will be given to candidates who have a solid background in one social science subject (Sociology, Anthropology, Psychology, etc.) and whose research interests are already well developed. Oral examination in the form of an interview is also required.

Fields of Study:

The Division offers the following courses: Advanced Theory, Advanced Methodology, Comparative Social Systems, Aspects of Sociology, Chinese Society, Hong Kong Society, and Graduate Seminar.

M.Phil. Degree Programme:

The Sociology Division offers a two-year programme leading to an M.Phil. degree. The programme is organized to enable the student to devote the first year to course work and to spend the major part of the second year writing his Master's thesis. Each student and his supervisor will plan a programme of studies at the beginning of the first year. This programme will consist of required graduate courses and elected reading courses chosen in the light of the student's needs and interests. In some cases, students may be required to take advanced courses in the undergraduate curriculum which are relevant to the students' thesis topic or which will strengthen the students' general sociological background. In addition, each student will be required to attend Graduate Seminar which meets twice a month. The purpose of this Seminar is to provide a public space for the exchange of views amongst graduate students, faculty and visiting specialists in relation to a number of selected topics in current sociology and anthropology. Students are required to choose their thesis topic in the second term of the first year and, if possible, to initiate at least exploratory research during the summer months.

148

Division of Theology

Applicants for admission must present letters of recommendation from an official of their church and from an undergraduate teacher.

M.Div. Degree Programme:

First Year:

The regular programme for Master of Divinity degree will consist of advanced studies designed to bring the students to a high level of competence in the basic skills and knowledge required for the professional ministry.

Second Year:

Students will concentrate on the area of their own special interest and write a Master's thesis incorporating the results of their study in their area of special interest.

Those who hold a Bachelor's degree in subjects other than Theology will have to study more than two years to fulfil the requirements of the professional degree.

SCHOOL OF EDUCATION

Director

T.C. CHENG, O.B.E.; B.A. (H.K.); M.A., Dip.Ed. (London); J.P.

Lecturers

Benjamin Y. CHAN, B.A. (Houghton); M.Ed., Ed.D. (S.U.N.Y.)
Kai-sun CHAN, B.A.(Ed.) (National Sun Yat-sen)
S.C. CHENG, B.A. (H.K.); A.I.E. (London); M.A. (McGill) (on leave)
Arthur HINTON, B.A., Cert.Ed. (Bristol)
William J.F. Lew, Ph.D. (S. Illinois)
Ping-kee Sru, M.S., Ph.D. (Fordham)
Peter T.K. TAM, B.A., Cert.Ed. (H.K.); M.Sc. (Indiana State); Ph.D. (Florida State)
Leo P.K. YAM, M.Sc. in Education & Speech (Wisconsin); P.D. in Communication Arts & Theatre, Ed.D. (Columbia)
YAU LAI Lai-ling, Betty, Mrs., B.A., Dip.Ed., M.A.(Ed.) (H.K.); M.Ed. (Bristol)

Assistant Lecturer

Lam-fat Lo, B.Sc. (Washington); M.Sc. (Seattle Pacific); M.Ed. (Nevada)

Part-time Lecturers

William Y.N. CHENG, B.A., Dip.Ed., M.A. (H.K.); Dip. in Applied Linguistics (Edinburgh)
Hsuan-min Liu, B.A., M.A. (Yenching)
Y.W. Liu, B.Sc., Cert.Ed. (H.K.); A.I.E. (London)
W.M. TANG, B.Sc., B.Sc.Sp., Dip.Ed. (H.K.)
S.B. TENG, B.A., Cert.Ed. (H.K.)

General Information

The School of Education was established in September 1965.

From the beginning, the School has been mainly concerned with the education of teachers for local secondary schools. Thus it offers a one-year full-time and a two-year part-time postgraduate programme leading to the award of a Diploma in Education. Currently, this programme includes courses such as

150

Developments in Modern Education, Current Issues in Education with Special Reference to Hong Kong, School Administration, Counselling & Guidance in Schools, Psychology of Learning and Teaching, Psycho-social Development of the Adolescent, Evaluation & Test Construction, Educational Communications & Technology (I), Educational Communications & Technology (II), Micro-teaching (I), Micro-teaching (II), Subject Curriculum & Teaching, Educational Research & Statistics, and Oral Communication in English. Students are required to spend a substantial part of the academic year in practice teaching which includes a series of Micro-teaching activities and two blocks of observation and teaching in secondary schools.

Applicants for the Diploma in Education Course should be degree holders of recognized universities and, for the two-year part-time course, also serving secondary school teachers. All applicants are required to sit for a qualifying examination and attend an interview.

Beginning in September 1973, a one-calendar-year postgraduate programme leading to the degree of Master of Arts in Education, and intercollegiate undergraduate courses in Education have also been offered.

Candidates for the M.A. degree are required to complete at least four full courses or eight half courses and to conduct systematic research as a basis for writing a thesis. Courses offered are under the following four areas: Curriculum Development, Educational Technology, Educational Measurement and Educational Psychology. Admission requirements are as set out by the Graduate School of the University.

Undergraduate courses in Education are open to students of all Colleges and Faculties. Two courses are offered: Introduction to Education for second and third year students, and General Teaching Methods for third and fourth year students.

Up to the present the School has 513 alumni from its Diploma in Education Programme, with the 1975-76 enrolment set at approximately 235. In its second year of operation, the M.A. in Education programme enrolled 8 students.

Grants are available to needy full-time students through the Joint University Committee on Student Finance and the Graduate Council of the University. Other scholarships include the Lam Oi Tong Scholarships, the Chinese Temple Committee Scholarships, the Tsang Hung Tim Scholarships, the Wilson Wang Scholarship, and the Sik Sik Yuen Scholarship.

The School has a collection of several thousand books and more than 80 periodicals on education and related fields. In addition, it has a language laboratory and an Educational Technology Laboratory equipped with a Closecircuit Television System, a photographic room and learning consoles.

The School publishes the Studium, a journal in Chinese and English, containing articles on education and news about the School.

In addition, staff members of the School contribute to the improvement of local education through the conduct of in-service training workshops for teachers and educators, as well as through their participation in the diverse range of educational committees.

LINGNAN INSTITUTE OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Director and Professor of Business Administration H. SUTU, B.A. (Yenching); M.B.A., Ph.D. (Pennsylvania)

Associate Director and Senior Lecturer John L. Espy, B.S. (Georgia Inst. of Tech); S.M. (M.I.T.); D.B.A. (Harvard)

Visiting Professor

Bernard J. BENNINGTON, B.Sc., M.Sc., Ph.D. (U. of Manchester Inst. of Science & Tech.)

Visiting Associate Professor Charles F. STEILEN, B.S., M.B.A. (California State); D.B.A. (Oregon)

Senior Lecturer

Lamp Li, B.A. (National Central); M.A. (Oregon); M.B.A. (Michigan)

Lecturer

Jerome J. DAY, Jr., B.S. (Coll. of the Holy Cross); M.B.A. (Pennsylvania)

- Invited Guest Teachers from Local Business Community Victor K.K. FUNG, B.Sc., M.Sc. (M.I.T.); Ph.D. (Harvard) Li & Fung Ltd.
 - Kimum LEE, B.A. (Pacific); M.B.A. (Nevada) Intercontinent Finance Ltd.
 - Eric YEUNG, B.A. (Oklahoma Baptist U.); M.A. (Oklahoma); Ph.D. (Washington U., St. Louis) Perfekta Enterprises Ltd.

General Information

The Lingnan Institute of Business Administration was established in 1966 as one of the divisions of the Graduate School of the University, with substantial financial support from the Trustees of Lingnan University in New York.

The Institute has six major objectives:

1. To prepare men and women for responsible administrative and executive positions in business, governmental and other organizations.

- 2. To provide students with a well-rounded basic education in substantially all analytical and functional areas of business administration and with opportunities for a moderate concentration in a particular area of organizational or administrative activity.
- 3. To develop students' abilities to identify and analyze problems, search for relevant information, formulate alternative approaches, evaluate the alternatives and make decisions.
- 4. To provide each student with a foundation for continuing selfeducation and development.
- 5. To contribute to the growth of knowledge and understanding of business management.
- 6. To serve the Hong Kong and Southeast Asian business community by offering advanced training in management sciences for practising businessmen.

The Institute has continued to receive generous grants from the Lingnan University Board of Trustees. In addition the Institute has attracted considerable support from businessmen and companies in both Hong Kong and Southeast Asia. Three of its lectureships are financed by grants from the B.Y. Lam Foundation Ltd. of Hong Kong, the Lee Foundation of Singapore and Mr. Lee Wing-Tat of Hong Kong. An IBM visiting professorship has also been instituted. Other funds from local sources provide scholarships for students of the Institute.

Admission to the Institute is open to graduates of recognized colleges and universities, both in Hong Kong and abroad, who hold a bachelor's degree in business administration, social sciences, liberal arts, science, or engineering. Apart from a good scholastic record, relevant working experience will also be given favourable consideration. A high degree of proficiency in both the Chinese and English languages is essential, and applicants are required to take the Chinese/English language proficiency examination administered by the Graduate School in addition to an aptitude test of the Institute.

The Institute offers a curriculum in the broad area of business administration that leads to the degree of Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.). The completion of this curriculum will normally take two years, although students whose first degree is in the arts, science, or engineering must take some basic courses to make up any deficiencies.

The programme of study consists of core curriculum and elective courses and the preparation of a thesis based on first-hand investigation. First-year core courses include Accounting and Corporation Finance, Principles of Organization and Management, Economics, Quantitative Methods in Business, Computers for Management, Business Communications and Written Analysis,

154

Marketing Management, Financial Management, Business, Information Systems and Business Research Methods. Second-year courses include Operations Research, Managerial Economics, Managerial Control Systems, Administrative Theory, Business Policy, Legal Environment of Business. For students without an undergraduate background in Business Administration, certain basic business courses are provided. The Institute arranges for work opportunities for students in the summer between their first and second years, and makes every effort to assist each graduate in obtaining a responsible post commensurate with his interests and abilities.

The Institute undertakes to assist faculty and students in their research activities by granting financial support and providing equipment and service of research assistants. It also encourages its faculty to engage in consultancy and to conduct "in-plant" training programmes for the local business community. Major research projects already completed include: "A study of Government Financial Assistance to Small Industries, with Special Reference to Hong Kong", "Managerial Policy, Strategy and Planning for Southeast Asia", "A Study of the Industrial Structure in Hong Kong", and "A Study of Tourist Shopping in Hong Kong". Among the firms and organizations which have used the services of the Institute's faculty members are American International Assurance Co., Ltd., Bank of America in Hong Kong, The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, Ltd., Lowe Bingham Company Management Consultants, Tek-Devices, Ltd. and Hong Kong Tourist Association. Besides research and consultancy, the Institute has cooperated with the Hong Kong Management Association in sponsoring and conducting educational programmes for practising managers in Hong Kong.

INSTITUTES AND RESEARCH CENTRES

The University is directly responsible for providing faculty members with research facilities so as to enable them to keep up with the latest developments in their own fields and to contribute to them. For this purpose three Institutes have been established; namely, the Institute of Chinese Studies, the Institute of Science and Technology and the Institute of Social Studies and the Humanities.

Generally, the development of the Institutes is as follows: individual faculty research may develop into a group or inter-disciplinary effort; when substantial outside financial support permits, a research unit, a centre or an independent institute would be established. Various research centres have been set up within these three Institutes to concentrate on specific fields of studies. In addition, research projects in the fields of History, Linguistics, Education, Biology, Chemistry and Physics are conducted by individual faculty members.

Institute of Chinese Studies

The Institute of Chinese Studies was established on 1st November, 1967, on the basis of a broad but unified concept of Chinese Studies. It includes what is traditionally identified as Sinology, but emphasizes the application of social science discipline, characterized by its quantitative and comparative approaches.

The Institute has the following objectives:

1. To promote scholarship in Chinese Studies in Hong Kong and overseas by serving as an international centre for Chinese Studies capable of effectively assisting other academic and research institutions and scholars in this field and maintaining close and continuing co-operating and interchange with them;

2. To develop a well-integrated programme of teaching and research in Chinese Studies viewed within the context of Asian and world developments;

3. To provide interested local and visiting academic members of the University with the necessary facilities for training in order to help them strengthen their teaching and research abilities, and

4. To encourage the exchange of knowledge and experience in Chinese Studies through an effective programme of publications, academic conferences and research seminars.

156

Under the directorship of Prof. C.T. Hu, the Institute is governed by a Management Committee whose members are actively engaged in research work under the auspices of the Institute. Special research projects are under the direction of Dr. C.M. Li, the Vice-Chancellor.

Publications of the Institute have covered a variety of subjects in Chinese culture over the past few years. The first six volumes of the Journal of the Institute of Chinese Studies have been well received in Hong Kong and abroad. The seventh volume is due to appear later in 1975. A number of monographs have been published: Mr. Teh-chang Chang: Life of a Peking Official in the Late Ch'ing Dynasty: A Study of Personal Income and Expenditure (清季一個京官的生活); Mr. Shee-wu Sung: A Study of Monetary History of the Western-Han Dynasty (西漢貨幣史初稿); Dr. Chen Ching-ho: Tu-duc Thanh-che Tu-hoc Giainghia-ca (嗣德聖製字學解義歌譯註) and A Collection of Chinese Inscriptions in Singapore (新加坡華文碑銘集釋); Mr. Chuan Han-sheng: A Brief History of the Hanyehping Iron and Coal Mining and Smelting Company (1890 - 1926) (漢冶萍公司史畧), The Silver Mining Tax and Silver Output in Yunnan during the Ming and Ch'ing Periods (明清時代雲南的銀課與銀產額) and Mid-Ch'ing Rice Markets and Trade: An Essay in Price History (co-operated with Mr. Richard A. Kraus); Mr. Samuel Cheung: Studies in Cantonese as a Spoken Language in Hong Kong (香港粤語語法研究); Prof. Chou Fa-kao, Mr. Cheung Yat-shing, Miss Tsui Chee-yee and Miss Lam Kit-ming: A Pronouncing Dictionary of Chinese Characters in Archaic and Ancient Chinese. Mandarin and Cantonese: Mr. Cheung Yat-shing and Miss Lam Kit-ming (editors): Chou Fa-kao's Archaic Chinese Phonological Tables; Mr. Cheung Yat-ming and Miss Lam Kit-ming (editors): A List of Phonetic Compounds in Shuo-wen T'ung-shun Ting-sheng with Chou's Reconstructions of Archaic and Ancient Chinese together with Modern Mandarin and Cantonese; Prof. Chou Fa-kao: Etymological Dictionary of Ancient Chinese Bronze Inscriptions (Chin-wen Ku-lin 金文詁林). The manuscript of The Copper Mining Industry in Yunnan during the Ch'ing Period by Mr. Chuan Han-sheng and A Comparative Study of the Mandarin Vocabulary in Several Text Books for Westerners by Mr. Ho Kwok-cheung are ready for the press.

Research projects in Chinese Studies undertaken by the University's own academic members are in different stages of development. One such important project has produced the monumental *Chinese-English Dictionary of Modern Usage* (當代漢英詞典). Dr. Lin Yu-tang, Research Professor of the University, was in charge of this pioneering task, which was published in October 1972. It is the first dictionary, in Chinese or English, to determine what are the words, not ideographs, of current Chinese language. This project has been financially supported by Chinese and British contributions in Hong Kong.

Other research projects in progress include "Supplement to the Etymological Dictionary of Ancient Chinese Bronze Inscriptions (Chin-wen Ku-lin Pu-pien) by Prof. Chou Fa-kao; "Ch'ing Economy" and "A Study on corruption of the Ch'ing Dynasty" by Mr. Teh-chang Chang; "The Spanish Controversy over the Trade between China, Philippines and the America in the Early Modern Period" by Mr. Chuan Han-sheng; "Modern China's Knowledge of the West" by Mr. Wang Teh-chao; "Routes Leading from Szechwan to Yunnan and Annam in the Han and T'ang Dynasties" by Mr. Yen Keng-wang; "Continuity and Change in the Chinese Conception of Social Classes" by Dr. Chiao Chien; "A Historical Analysis of the Controversy over the Retention or Abolition of the Examination System in Late Ch'ing" by Professors C.T. Hu and Wang Teh-chao; "A Study on New Sociology in China under Communism" by Dr. Ambrose King; and "Annotations of Chinese Inscriptions on Bronzes and Stone Rubbings" by Mr. Lee Yim.

A number of the above research projects are supported by grants from local and overseas foundations.

The new building of the Institute, the construction cost of which was donated by the Lee Hysan Estate Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong in memory of the late Mr. Lee Hysan, was completed in 1970.

A unique feature of the Institute is the Art Gallery which is at the eastern end of the building. Very modern in design, the Art Gallery is mainly for exhibition and teaching purposes. Fourteen exhibitions have been held since the establishment of the Art Gallery in 1971. They were The Opening Exhibition, Bibliographical and other material relating to the Dream of the Red Chamber, The Ch'in — the seven-string Zither, Lok Tsai Hsien Collection of Calligraphic Couplets, Chinese Carved Jades, "Lan-t'ing Exhibition", Landscape Paintings by Kwangtung artists of the Ming and Ch'ing Periods, Wah Kwong Collection of Ch'ing Porcelain, Prints from American Universities, Display of Chinese Antiquities, Excavation at Shamwan, Lamma Island, Phase III, Exhibition of Works by 1974 Graduates of the Fine Arts Department, New Asia College, Exhibition of Literati Paintings from Japan and Display of Chinese Antiquites.

A Management Committee has been appointed to recommend to the Vice-Chancellor policies on the Art Gallery and to implement the approved policies.

Institute of Science and Technology

The Institute of Science and Technology is established for the purpose of promoting faculty research, and to conduct postgraduate training in relevant fields.

At the beginning, the allocation of the research grants from various sources, including the Government of Hong Kong, Ford Foundation and The Asia Foundation, etc., embraces the following subjects in both the pure and applied aspects: (1) Biochemistry, (2) Biology, (3) Chemistry, (4) Computer Science, (5) Electronics, (6) Mathematics and Statistics, and (7) Physics.

The Institute is under the administration of a Director. A Board of Advisers is set up to recommend the award of research grants to projects which are acceptable to the University and within the available resources.

It is the intention of the University to make the Institute of Science and Technology an important vehicle for cooperation in scientific research and teaching with universities abroad.

Since the establishment of the Institute, more than 100 projects have been accepted for research grants and many of the research reports have been published.

Institute of Social Studies and the Humanities

The function of the Institute of Social Studies and the Humanities is two-fold: (1) to promote and encourage faculty research in various fields; (2) to conduct postgraduate training on different subjects. The faculty research mentioned above is distinct from the kind of research supported by other organizations in the University for teaching purposes. Through the Institute, the University hopes to come to closer cooperation with universities abroad.

The Institute embodies the following subjects: (1) Business Administration (including Commerce, Finance and Accounting), (2) Contemporary Chinese Social Studies, (3) East Asian Studies, (4) Economics, (5) Education, (6) Geography, (7) Mass Communication, (8) Modern Chinese Social Studies, (9) Modern Languages, (10) Public Administration, (11) Social Survey, (12) Social Work, (13) Sociology, (14) Translation, and (15) World History.

With the assistance of a Board of Advisers, the Director of the Institute recommends research grants for faculty members who have applied for financial aid, thus enabling them to do research work on individual projects.

Various projects have been carried out with grants from the Government of Hong Kong, The Asia Foundation and other private funds, and many of the projects have been brought to a successful conclusion.

Centre for Communication Studies

The Centre for Communication Studies, restructured July 1974, functions both as an interdisciplinary research unit carrying out investigations of its own and as a service agency for externally originated studies.

The Centre's long-range goal is to develop, improve and maintain more effective communication of human society in general and of the mass media in particular, at both local and regional levels.

The Centre's immediate objectives will be:

a. the survey and analysis of what has been accomplished in the area of Chinese language communication studies,

- b. investigation into the variations and changes in the usage of the Chinese Language as a communication tool,
- c. collection and dissemination of information on communication education and findings of communication studies in the Asian region through its documentation unit,
- d. promotion of regional cooperation among communication educators and educational organizations through seminars, workshops and joint research projects, and
- e. offering of professional training programmes for persons in communication media industries in Asia pursuing advanced education,

which will lead to the study of more fundamental problems of communication.

Centre for East Asian Studies

The Centre for East Asian Studies was established in January 1971, under the directorship of Dr. Chingho A. Chen.

Its objective is to promote Japanese, Korean and Southeast Asian studies by arousing academic interest and training experts in this field locally as well as internationally.

Research personnel includes Research Fellows who are experts on Asian studies from among the teaching staff of the University, and Visiting Research Fellows invited from other institutions to carry on their own research in a specific field. Graduate students of the University and graduates of foreign universities may also be appointed as Research Assistants and Visiting Research Assistants, and work under the supervision of Research Fellows and Visiting Research Fellows in the relevant field. For the academic year 1974-75, the Centre has the following research staff:

Adviser:

Prof. Takashi Kotono

Research Fellows:

Mr. James C.Y. WATT, Dr. May-ching KAO and Dr. CHOI Ching-yan

Visiting Research Fellows:

Mr. Nobuhisa Tsuji, Mr. Seiki Shono and Mr. Ts'Ao Yung-ho

Research Associates:

Mr. YUE Wai, Mr. YEUNG Jo-ling, Mr. CHAO Hsiao-suan and Mr. YUE Kwan-cheuk

The Centre may recommend outstanding Research Assistants for further studies in distinguished universities in East Asia on government scholarships of those countries.

The Centre has received the following book donations: 221 Vietnamese books from the Government of the Republic of Vietnam, 1032 Japanese books (including more than 180 titles on Social Science and the Humanities) from the Soka Gakkai and 74 books from the Japan Foundation.

The Centre encourages its members to participate actively in international conferences of Asian studies, and holds monthly seminars.

Research reports will be published in University journals or in monograph series. An "Annual Report of the Centre for East Asian Studies" will be published in due course as an official publication of the Centre.

Also, the Centre will promote international collaboration and carry out an exchange scheme of its publications with overseas universities, research institutes and other academic institutions.

The "Vietnamese Historical Sources Project", jointly sponsored by this University and Southern Illinois University (Carbondale), was undertaken by the Centre between September 1973 and May 1975. The collation of Dai Viet Su Ky Toan Thu, Dai Nam Nhat Thong Chi (Bac Ky and Nam Ky), Gia Dinh Thong Chi and Viet Su Luoc has been finished and will be published in due course. Research Projects starting from September 1974 are:

- Railway Investments in China in the Late 19th & Early 20th Centuries — Prof. Takashi Kotono
- 2. The Pottery Trade in S.E. Asia from the 13th to 16th Centuries — Mr. James C.Y. WATT
- A Study of Asian Buddhist Iconography — Dr. May-ching Кло
- Urban Policies of Decentralization A Comparative Study of Hong Kong and Tokyo — Dr. Сног Ching-yan
- Sino-Japanese Trade in the 16th & 17th Centuries: the role of the Chinese maritime activities in E. & S.E. Asia — Mr. Ts'Ao Yung-ho

- Compiling "Historical Source Materials on the E. Asian Countries, 1644-1912": A Collection of excerpts from the Ta-Ching Li-Chao Shih-Lu (Veritable Records of Successive Reigns of the Ch'ing Dynasty) — Dr. Chingho A. CHEN in collaboration with Mr. Ts'Ao Yung-ho, Mr. YEUNG Jo-ling, Mr. YUE Wai and Mr. CHAO Hsiao-suan
- 7. The Chinese Immigrants/Residents in Nagasaki during the Tokugawa Period (1603-1867)

- Dr. Chingho A. CHEN

Chinese Linguistics Research Centre

The manuscript of A Comparative Study of the Mandarin Vocabulary in Several Text Books for Westerners has been finished and the first draft of A Dictionary of the Ch'ao-chou (潮州) Dialect has also been completed. An Etymological Dictionary of Ancient Chinese Bronze Inscriptions, comprising 16 volumes, 10,000 pages and 3,000,000 words and compiled by Prof. Chou Fa-kao and his associates over a period of seven years, has been published by the Publications Office of the University.

The Centre is now working on the compilation of A Supplement to the Etymological Dictionary of Ancient Chinese Bronze Inscriptions. Japanese works on ancient Chinese bronze inscriptions will be selected and translated into Chinese. Appendix to Yung Keng's Chin Wen Pien (金文編附錄), which contains graphs not easily deciphered, will be annotated in detail.

Economic Research Centre

The Economic Research Centre undertakes group research projects as well as facilitates research projects on individual basis. As an example of the former, the Centre conducted a study during 1965-68, under contract with the United States Department of Agriculture, in projecting Hong Kong's demand and supply for agricultural products between 1965-80 in the light of the long-term trends in local development, import requirements, and national income and population growth. The result was published in November 1969 in book form under the title "Long-term Economic and Agricultural Commodity Projections for Hong Kong 1970, 1975, and 1980". Other research activities have led to the publication of a series of monographs and occasional papers covering Hong Kong, Mainland China and other Far Eastern countries, and the United States.

Some faculty members are currently working on research projects dealing with various aspects of the economy of Hong Kong viewed as a part of the world economy, while others are focussing their attention on the recent experience in development and growth of the countries in the Far East, including Mainland China.
Geographical Research Centre

The Geographical Research Centre was established in January 1966. The principal research work carried on in this Centre is closely related to the teaching in the Geography Division of the Graduate School. Students of the Geography Division can make full use of the facilities and financial assistance from the Centre and distinguished students may carry on their research in the Centre after graduation.

The Centre's current research work falls into two broad categories: the geographical studies of China and the geographical studies of Hong Kong. The geographical studies of China is in turn divided into two branches: (1) Historical and cultural geography of China and (2) Contemporary Chinese geographical studies. In the research on the historical and cultural geography of China, the materials used are fang-chih or local gazetteers. The Twenty-five Histories (=+ 五史), famous travels and other historical records. As far as possible, historical facts are presented through mapping. So far, the Centre has completed about 124 historical maps, including maps showing the political divisions, the population distribution and products of every dynasty, the building dates and sizes of the wall-cities and the distribution of birth-places of Chin-shih (進士) or persons of advanced scholarship which resembled in some ways the modern Ph.D. The limited collection of classic books in the libraries of Hong Kong necessitates part of the work to be completed in some overseas leading libraries. The ultimate aim of this research is to work out the cultural regions of China and from which a set of historical and cultural maps of China may also be produced. Another section of the research on China is the annotation of "Selected Famous Chinese Travels". In preparing the annotation, modern geographical concepts and methods are used. The reports already published are as follows: A Geographical and Annotated Evaluation of the Travels to the West of Taoist Ch'ang Ch'un (長春眞人西游記的地理學評註), Geographical Evaluation of I Yü Lu (異 域錄的地理學評價) and A Study of Chin-la Feng T'u Chi (眞臘風土記的研 究). The work underway at present includes 大唐西域記,法顯傳,鄭和的航 海,北行日錄,宋雲使西域記,許亢宗行程錄,入蜀記,李翱南來錄,宣和奉 使高麗圖經以及徐霞客遊記等。 In the research on contemporary Chinese Geographical studies, stress is laid on the changes in the geographies of China in the past 20 years.

The Centre also undertakes two comprehensive research projects involving both historical and contemporary geographies of China. One is "The Development of Cartography in China" which is part of Prof. Chen's book, *The Development of Geographical Science in China*. Many rare maps of China, including the world's only hand-drawn copy of "The Map of The Great Wall", are reproduced in this article and listed as Research Report No. 9 of the Centre. The research project is "The Study of Place-names of China".

CALE IDAR

With regard to the geographical studies of Hong Kong, the Centre had to begin with the preparation of a series of Socio-Economic Maps of Hong Kong in view of the lack of any previous systematic research. At present, the Centre has prepared 96 sheets of maps; the materials of which are mainly obtained from field survey. This series of maps is useful as reference for those who want to understand the socio-economic conditions of Hong Kong. Owing to the lack of financial help, only seven of these maps have been published; one of which is a 16-colour map, *The Functional Land Use of Urban Areas in Hong Kong*. The Centre has also finished detailed survey of the use of floor space in the districts of Yaumati, Sanpokong, Central District, North Point and Wan Chai. The mapping work is already completed.

The Centre has published 78 research reports in Chinese with English and German summaries. Many of the research reports on China, especially those written by Prof. C.S. Chen, have been republished in England, U.S.A. and West Germany. These include research reports No. 23, "The Sugar Manufacturing Industry of China" (*The Geographical Journal*, March 1971 Issue, published by the Royal Geographical Society, London); No. 27, "The Agricultural Regions of China" (*Special Bulletin*, 1970, published by the American Institute of Crop Ecology); No. 44, "The Cities of China" (*The Geographical Review*, January 1970, published by the American Geographical Society, New York); and No. 52, "The Petroleum Industry of China" (published by Zeitschrift der Gesellscheft fur Erdkunde zu Berlin, No. 3-4, 1972).

The Centre has established good relationship with many leading geographical institutions all over the world. There is an increasing number of renowned geographers visiting the Centre every year.

The Centre has a separate reference library housing about 25,900 geographical books and periodicals. The periodicals include complete sets of leading geographical journals in many languages. A large collection of maps and books were borrowed from the famous Fu-Min Geographical Institute of Economic Development.

Marine Science Laboratory

The Marine Science Laboratory was established in 1970 as a research centre for advanced studies in Oceanography. A separate building complex was completed in May 1971 on the shore of Tolo Harbour at the University site of Ma Liu Shui.

This research centre is essentially interdisciplinary, and offers facilities for research in biology, chemistry, physics and geography. The present stress is on biological investigations, and undergraduate courses in Oceanography/Marine Pollution, and Marine Biology/Mariculture are being run at the Laboratory. Academic offerings are presently through the Board of Studies in Biology of the University, and facilities of the University Science Centre are also available. The Marine Science Laboratory is the only established academic centre for marine studies in Hong Kong, and is the only research facility which provides a fully reticulated running seawater system. Selected research projects include quantitative and qualitative zooplankton studies on the inshore waters of Hong Kong, breeding biology and life-history studies on decapod Crustacea, bacteriological studies on bivalve molluses, and pollution monitoring of Tolo Harbour. Publication is at present limited to local and international journals.

Social Research Centre

The Social Research Centre, established in November 1969, has both research and educational commitments.

In its research programme, the Centre undertakes studies of social change in Hong Kong. This means that various aspects of the evolving societal scene in Hong Kong are investigated from the vantage point of the dynamics of their history as well as from the standpoint of the dynamics of their future paths. The Centre has particular interest in research which permits not only an assessment of a given situation, but also an analysis of alternative future developments coupled with a capability to observe the actual future developments as they occur.

In this regard, the Centre's research programme is one of basic research through which the Centre seeks to advance social, scientific, and particularly sociological, knowledge of both secular and induced processes of change.

But the Centre's programme is firmly grounded in the needs of the community. Thus it prefers to undertake studies which not only contribute to the advancement of basic knowledge, but also have practical policy implications for the Government of Hong Kong, for various voluntary organizations, and for the people in Hong Kong.

On occasion, the Centre will undertake to help other interested organizations in the formulation of their research programmes, in research design, field work, analysis of data and thereby act as a consultant on relevant aspects of research studies which, in themselves, may be carried out by other private or Governmental organizations.

In its educational commitment, the Centre seeks to contribute to the development of a cadre of expert researchers whose abilities and skills will contribute to this community regardless of the position which such researchers may come to occupy in the future. The Centre's educational functions both at the postbaccalaureate and the pre-baccalaureate levels are, in turn, coordinated with the Boards of Studies of the relevant fields. Undergraduate students participate in the research efforts and receive training in field work, interviewing, and other aspects of social research.

Current Research Programme

- 1. Industrial Community (Kwun Tong) Research Programme
 - Coordinator: Dr. Ambrose King

The Structural Patterns of the Industrial Bureaucracies in Kwun Tong Dr. Ambrose King, Dr. C.K. Liang & Mr. H.K. Leung

Urban Religious Behaviour Mr. John Myers, Jr.

Health Services and Attitudes Dr. Rance LEE

Leadership in Local Community Mr. W.T. CHAN

Problems of Small Factories in Hong Kong Dr. Victor Мок

The Value System of Chinese Small Factories in Kwun Tong Dr. Ambrose KING

Education Mobility and Access Dr. Pedro Ng

- 2. Spatial Economy of Street Trading in Hong Kong Dr. F.Y. Tse
- 3. Socio-psychological Correlates of Fertility Behaviour among Chinese Women in Hong Kong (in cooperation with the Hong Kong Family Planning Association) Dr. C.Y. CHOI & Mr. K.C. CHAN

 The People of Kwun Tong: A Study of the Population Growth in Relation to Family Interaction and Community Structures Dr. Pedro NG, in collaboration with Dr. Y.K. CHAN, Dr. Ambrose KING, Dr. Rance LEE, Dr. C.K. LIANG, Mr. John MYERS, Jr., Dr. F.M. WONG, & Mr. S.L. WONG

- 5. Housing Problems and Urban Neighbourhood in Hong Kong Miss Angela KAN
- 6. Housing Policy and Internal Movement of Population Dr. C.Y. Choi
- 7. Study of Juvenile Offenders in Hong Kong Miss Agnes NG
- 8. The Impact of Crowding on Social and Health Adaptation in Hong Kong Dr. Y.K. CHAN

166

- 9. Chinese and Western Medical Care Systems Dr. Rance LEE
- 10. Expression of a Revolution: A Study of the Revolutionary Modern Peking Opera Dr. Chien CHIAO & Dr. Michael WEI
- 11. Manpower Utilization in Chinese Communes Mr. T.S. Wong
- 12. The Emergence and Development of Maoist Sociology in the People's Republic of China Dr. Ambrose KING & Mr. T.S. WONG

Translation Centre

The Centre for Translation Projects was established in 1971 with a grant from The Asia Foundation. It is at present concerned with research and publication involving English-Chinese and Chinese-English translation.

In translating from Chinese into English, the work is mainly in the areas of literature, history and philosophy. A continuing vehicle for this is the English-language journal, *Renditions*, devoted to translations of Chinese materials, classical and contemporary. Published semiannually, the magazine has an international circulation among students of translation, Chinese studies, and comparative literature. It serves as a regular outlet for the works of scholarly and literary translators in Hong Kong and elsewhere. It also provides a forum for discussion of the art of translation and a medium through which Chinese literature is made accessible to the Western reader.

A projected series of "Renditions Books" will publish new translations from Chinese literature, including anthologies of poetry, drama, fiction, and classical and contemporary prose. These books will be issued by the University and distributed or co-published by scholarly publishers abroad.

In translating from English into Chinese, the emphasis is on the social sciences, with projects in the humanities and the natural sciences as well. The Centre collaborates with the academic departments in sponsoring translation symposia, compiling glossaries of scientific terminology, and translating and publishing scholarly monographs. Already published is the volume *Essays on Classical Chinese Literature by British and American Scholars*. A projected series of books will include titles on various aspects of social change, translated from standard English works, of which two are presently being readied for the press.

In carrying out its work the Centre cooperates with the various Boards of Studies and Departments of the University, and serves them in a consultative capacity. It also maintains close relationship with the academic Committee on Translation to the end that teaching, research and publication will profit from one another.

DEPARTMENT OF EXTRAMURAL STUDIES

The Department aims to serve the community by offering opportunities for continuing education, utilising the teaching and research resources of the University as well as the community as a whole. The goals are personal enrichment and enhancement of professional and vocational competence.

The Department offers a large number of courses in different fields of study, including the following:

ChineseScience & MathematicsPhilosophy, Psychology & Social SciencesEnglishHistory & GeographyArtEconomics, Commerce & LawComputer ScienceEducationComputer Science

Apart from general Extramural courses, the Department has to-date run the following Certificate Courses: Hotel Management, Social Welfare, Tourist Guiding, Advanced Translation, Applied Design, Transistor Technology, Librarianship, Computer Fundamentals & Programming, Chinese History, The Teaching of Modern Mathematics in Secondary Schools, Tourism: Promotion & Techniques, Certificate Course for Teachers of Primary Mathematics, Chinese Literature, General Banking Administration, Hotel Operation, Basic Systems Analysis, Personnel Management, Industrial Design, Graphic Design, Film & T.V. Studies, Advanced Electronics, Music, Design and Construction of Structural Projects, Practical Accountancy, Library Assistants, Foundation Course in University Mathematics, Modern Chinese Ink Painting, Medical Laboratory Technology (Refresher Course), Nurse-Teacher in Schools of Nursing. The following Certificate Courses are in progress: Basic Business Administration, Buddhism, Foundation Course in University Mathematics (II), Advanced Translation (III), Kindergarten Teaching, Film Making. Participants in Extramural courses include persons from all walks of life of various ages and levels of education. The enrolment figures since April 1965 are as follows:

1965-66:	4,717
1966-67:	7,764
1967-68:	7,710
1968-69:	9,760
1969-70:	9,955
1970-71:	12,478
1971-72:	13,422
1972-73:	15,609
1973-74:	18,778
1974-75:	19,659

168

PART IV DEPARTMENT OF EXTRAMURAL STUDIES

The Department also offers correspondence courses in English and Chinese Writing, English and Chinese Language and Literature, Business Administration, Principles of Economics, Child Development and Care, Design, Chinese Painting, Introduction to Modern Mathematics, etc.

The Department started radio courses in Business Administration in collaboration with Commercial Radio in 1973, and later English courses with Radio Hong Kong. An "ITV Programme" (Instructional Television) commenced transmission in September 1975, with CTV.

The Extramural Town Centre is located at 809-816, Star House, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon.

Information brochures and leaflets are issued regularly and are obtainable free on request. For further information, call 3-669361 or write to the Department of Extramural Studies, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hang Seng Bank Building, Carnarvon Road, Kowloon.

THE NEW ASIA — YALE-IN-CHINA CHINESE LANGUAGE CENTRE

The New Asia — Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre lays claim internationally to being one of the leading institutions for teaching Mandarin and Cantonese. Its courses are designed primarily for non-native speakers of Chinese. Founded in 1963 under the joint auspices of New Asia College and the Yale-China Association, the Centre became a part of the University on 1st July 1974. The Centre now has two campuses, one at 6 Farm Road, Kowloon, and one on the University campus in Shatin, N.T.

Every year over one hundred students come from different parts of the world to study at the Language Centre. These students range from absolute beginners to trained sinologists who wish to brush up their spoken Chinese or learn a Chinese dialect. Courses are offered at all levels so that any student can find training suitable to his needs and ability. Indeed, the Centre makes every effort to flexibly accommodate the particular demands of each student.

The Language Centre also offers Mandarin courses for hundreds of local Cantonese-speaking residents. The faculty of the Language Centre prepares a significant portion of its own teaching materials and audio-visual aids for its students.

Studying at the Language Centre

The Kowloon campus of the Language Centre operates on a quarter system, each quarter lasting eleven weeks. Students may register for admission beginning in any quarter. There are beginners courses offered at the beginning of each quarter. The intensive programme of fifteen hours of classroom instruction per week constitutes the maximum course load. Students may also register for six or nine hours, depending on the courses being offered in any one quarter. The maximum class size is 7 students, while most classes average between 4 and 5, with the more advanced classes generally having fewer students. In exceptional cases, private tutorials are available.

The Language Centre has a full complement of tapes, both reel to reel and cassette, for its spoken materials. Students may borrow tapes from the Centre's tape library or may, for a small fee, have personal copies made of non-copyrighted materials. Language Laboratory facilities are available on the University campus as well as cassette tape recorders which students may borrow for short periods.

The Academic Staff

The Language Centre at present has 17 full-time instructors and 10 parttime instructors in both the Cantonese and Mandarin departments. They are all native speakers with at least a B.A. degree and an average experience in teaching Chinese as a second language of 8 years.

Teaching Materials and Methods

The Centre's teaching methods and materials derive from those originally developed and prepared by the Institute of Far Eastern Languages at Yale University. However, most of the teaching materials now used at the Centre are up-to-date revisions of published materials or entirely new texts written by the Centre's faculty. The teaching methods follow the most modern linguistic and psychological principles. As a policy, the Language Centre uses, in every instance possible, Chinese to the exclusion of any other foreign language so that all advanced courses are taught in the medium of either Cantonese or Mandarin. The exceptions are in giving grammatical explanations, translation and occasionally in newspaper reading.

Fees

The tuition fee per quarter for a student in a group class (3-7) is:

Intensive	15 hours/week	HK \$1, 650/term
Full-time	9 hours/week	HK\$1,188/term
Part-time	6 hours/week	HK\$ 792/term

Students taking private tutorials will be charged on the basis of HK\$30.00 per hour of instruction, while each student in a class of two will be billed on the basis of HK\$15.00 per hour.

Credits

The Language Centre gives credits according to the American pattern and issues grades and transcripts. Study at the Centre has been recognized by major American universities for degree credit. For students from institutions that do not use the credit system, transcripts are prepared in sufficient detail to present a clear picture of the work accomplished by each student.

Inquiries

The Centre will be pleased to receive any inquiries about its programme or the possibility of studying at the Centre. All correspondence should be addressed to the Director, New Asia — Yale-in-China Chinese Language Centre,

The Chinese University of Hong Kong, 6 Farm Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Telephone: 3-010225-7.

Academic Calendar 1975/76

lst Term	6th October	 19th December
2nd Term	5th January	 26th March
3rd Term	29th March	 18th June
4th Term	12th July	 30th September

172

PART V

REGULATIONS

r.

MATRICULATION REGULATIONS, 1976

1. General

(a) The Chinese University of Hong Kong Matriculation Examination, hereinafter referred to as the Matriculation Examination, shall be conducted in accordance with these Regulations by The Chinese University of Hong Kong Matriculation Board, hereinafter referred to as the Matriculation Board.

(b) Fulfilment of the matriculation requirements or exemption therefrom according to these Regulations shall be a prerequisite for admission to courses in the Foundation Colleges of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

(c) The Foundation Colleges may prescribe additional requirements over and above those set out in these Regulations.

(d) All communications concerning the Matriculation Examination shall be addressed to the Secretary of the Matriculation Board.

2. Qualifications for Entry

(a) Except as provided in (b) below, no student shall be eligible to enter the Matriculation Examination unless he has

- i. passed the Hong Kong Chinese School Certificate Examination or the Hong Kong English School Certificate Examination with passes in both Chinese and English at one and the same examination, and has subsequently studied a full course in a registered day-school for at least one year taking a minimum of five subjects relevant to the Matriculation Examination; OR
- ii. gained in the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination (Chinese) or the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination (English) Grade E or above in at least five subjects including Chinese and English at one and the same examination, and has subsequently studied a full course in a registered day-school for at least one year taking a minimum of five subjects relevant to the Matriculation Examination; OR
- iii. gained in the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination (Chinese) or the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination (English) or equivalent examinations at least Grade C or above in five subjects relevant to the Matriculation Examination at one and the same examination. Chinese and English must be passed at Grade E or above, if they are not included in these five subjects; OR

- *iv.* gained in 1974 or 1975 in the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination Grade E or above in at least five subjects including Chinese Language or Chinese Literature and English Language at one and the same examination, and has subsequently studied a full course in a registered day-school for at least one year, taking a minimum of five subjects relevant to the Matriculation Examination; OR
- v. gained in 1974 or 1975 in the Hong Kong Certificate of Education Examination or equivalent examinations at least Grade C or above in five subjects relevant to the Matriculation Examination at one and the same examination. Chinese Language or Chinese Literature and English Language must be passed at Grade E or above, if they are not included in these five subjects; OR
- vi. completed a six-year course in a registered secondary school and passed the Hong Kong Chinese School Certificate Examination with passes in both Chinese and English in or before 1965.
 - N.B. A pass at lower level in any subject is not acceptable.

(b) Applicants possessing other qualifications or pleading special circumstances shall be considered on their individual merits.

3. Date and Fees of the Matriculation Examination

(a) The Matriculation Examination will be held in the latter part of April each year.

(b) Entry forms may be obtained from the Secretary of the Matriculation Board from 1st November each year and entry procedures must be duly completed before 15th December in the year preceding the Examination. In very special circumstances late entries may be accepted up to 27th December with the approval of the Secretary of the Matriculation Board. No entry will be accepted after 27th December.

(c) Three identical photographs $(2^{"} \times 1\frac{1}{2}^{"})$ of each candidate, taken within the previous three months, will be required, one to be affixed to his entry form, one to his admission card, and the third to the Matriculation Certificate if he fulfils all the matriculation requirements.

(d) Entry fees will be HK\$80.00 for each candidate offering FIVE subjects. HK\$15.00 will be charged for each additional subject in excess of five. An extra fee of HK\$65.00 will be charged for late entry.

(c) Entry fees are not refundable and cannot be transferred to a subsequent examination after application for entry is accepted.

PART V REGULATIONS

4. Subjects of the Matriculation Examination

- (a) The subjects of the Matriculation Examination will be:--
 - i. Chinese Language and Literature
 - ii. English Language
 - iii. Chinese History
 - iv. History
 - v. Geography
 - vi. Biology
 - vii. Chemistry
 - viii. General Mathematics
 - ix. Higher Mathematics
 - x. Physics
 - xi. Fine Arts
 - xii. Economics and Public Affairs
 - xiii. Music
- (b) Choice of subjects:--
 - *i*. No candidate shall sit for less than five subjects or more than seven subjects at one examination with the exception of cases provided in 6(b) and (c).
 - ii. A candidate who passes in both Higher Mathematics and General Mathematics can only count his pass in one of these two subjects.

5. Matriculation Requirements and Faculty and/or College Admission Requirements

(a) Except as provided in Regulation 6 below, a candidate must at one and the same examination pass in Chinese Language and Literature, English Language and three other subjects in order to fulfil the Matriculation requirements.

(b) In order to be eligible for admission to a Foundation College an applicant must, in addition to fulfilling the matriculation requirements, satisfy any faculty and/or college requirements which may from time to time be prescribed by the Faculty and/or College.

6. Application for Exemption

(a) Applicants who have fulfilled the matriculation requirements of the University of Hong Kong with passes in three Advanced Level subjects including Chinese Language and Literature at one and the same examination may be considered as having completed the matriculation requirements of this University.

(b) App' cants who have fulfilled the matriculation requirements of the University of Hong Kong with passes in three Advanced Level subjects not including Chinese Language and Literature at one and the same examination and have obtained a pass in Chinese Language and Literature paper in the Matriculation Examination may be considered as having completed the matriculation requirements of this University.

(c) Applicants who have received their secondary education outside Hong Kong and have completed at least one year of university study in a recognized university may apply for exemption and may be required to pass the Chinese Language and Literature and/or English Language paper in the Matriculation Examination.

(d) Mature persons who are aged 29 or over on 1st September in the year when admission is sought and who cannot meet the normal matriculation requirements may apply for matriculation exemption and university admission simultaneously in March of that year, provided:—

- (a) they are able to show either by publication or by other acceptable evidence of mature age study that they have achieved competence in their chosen field of study sufficient to justify admission, OR
 - (b) they have shown exceptional ability in appropriate academic or professional fields; AND
- ii. they can produce evidence of at least three years' continuous residence in Hong Kong.

However, they may be granted exemption only if and when their application for admission is accepted by the Faculty concerned.

(e) Except as provided in (d) above, application for exemption must be made to the University Registrar between 1st November and 15th December each year.

(f) A fee of HK\$80.00 is payable on application and is not refundable whether exemption is granted or not. The special entry fee for each language paper is HK\$20.00.

(g) Except as provided in (d) above, students who have been granted exemption may apply to the University Registrar for admission in June.

7. Disqualification

The Board may at its discretion disqualify a candidate who breaks any of the Regulations or Instructions made for the conduct of the Examination.

8. Announcement of Results

The Pass List for the Examination will normally be published at about the end of June.

9. Effective date of Regulations

These Regulations will be effective as from 1st September, 1975.

10. In all matters pertaining to the Matriculation Examination, the decision of the Matriculation Board is final.

REGULATIONS FOR THE DEGREE EXAMINATION 1976

Section J -- General

1. The Degree Examination of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, hereinafter referred to as the Examination, shall be conducted in accordance with these Regulations by the Undergraduate Examinations Board, hereinafter referred to as the Board, constituted under the Senate of the University.

2. Success in the Examination, in accordance with the requirements laid down by the Board, shall be a prerequisite for admission to the bachelor's degree of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

3. The Examination shall be conducted in two parts: Part I and Part II. The Part I Examination is intended for students who have satisfied the requirements for promotion to the third year, and the Part II Examination for students who have passed the Part I Examination.

4. The Examination will be held in about the first week in the month of May each year.

5. Candidates shall be notified through their own Colleges of the timetable for the Examination and the centres at which the Examination will be held.

6. The principal language used in the Examination shall be Chinese, but Boards of Studies or Committees concerned may decide upon the language or languages to be used in setting the examination papers and in answering them.

7. Successful candidates in both Part I and Part II of the Examination shall be recommended by the Board to the Senate for the award of a Degree in Arts, Science, Business Administration or Social Science, in accordance with their major subjects.

8. A list of successful candidates recommended for the award of a degree will be published by the Board at about the end of July each year.

Section II - Entry Requirements

1. Entry to Part I of the Examination is restricted to candidates who have

(a) previously passed the Matriculation Examination of The Chinese University of Hong Kong or been exempted from it,

- (b) previously satisfied the requirements for promotion to the third year,
- (c) pursued an approved course of study extending over at least three years as fulltime students at one of the Foundation Colleges, except as provided for in Statute 23(4), and
- (d) registered with the Board during their second year of studies as candidates for the Degree Examination on the prescribed form supplied by the Examination Secretariat.

2. Entry to Part II of the Examination is restricted to candidates who have

- (a) previously obtained a Pass or Recommended Pass in Part I of the Examination, and
- (b) pursued an approved course of study extending over at least four years as full-time students at one of the Foundation Colleges, except as provided for in Statute 23(4).

3. A candidate who has previously entered for the Degree/Diploma Examination of The Chinese University of Hong Kong may be permitted to enter for Part I and Part II of the Examination in two successive years provided he has not already had two attempts in the Degree/Diploma Examination.

4. Any candidate not covered by the above Regulations shall be eligible for admission to the Examination only if the sanction of the Board has been obtained.

5. Candidates for this Examination must apply, through their Colleges, for admission to the Examination on the prescribed forms supplied by the Examination Secretariat. All applications shall be forwarded by the Colleges to the Secretary of the Board not later than 25th January in the year of examination. No application shall be accepted after this date.

Section III --- Number of Papers

1. The total number of papers for both the Part I and Part II of the Degree Examination shall not be less than seven and shall not exceed nine.

2. In Part I of the Examination, a candidate shall enter for one to three papers in the major subject and one to two papers in the minor subject(s) as specified for each individual subject, subject to the condition that the total number of papers entered for in Part I of the Examination does not exceed four; and shall not be less than three.

3. In Part II of the Examination, a candidate shall enter for the necessary number of papers to satisfy the requirement that the total number of papers which he enters for in both Part I and Part II of the Examination shall be five or six in the major subject and two or three in the minor subject as specified for each individual subject.

PART V REGULATIONS

Section IV --- Part I Examination

1. A candidate who passes all the papers he enters for in the Part I Examination will be awarded a Pass in the Part I Examination.

2. A candidate who fails in one or two papers and yet reaches for all the papers he enters for in the Part I Examination an average mark not lower than the pass mark as decided upon by the Board may be awarded a Recommended Pass in the Part I Examination provided that the result of any paper does not fall below a minimum mark determined by the Board.

3. A candidate who fails to obtain a Pass or a Recommended Pass may be permitted to repeat a year and enter for the Part I Examination of the following year, in which case he shall be required to sit for all the appropriate papers set for the candidates of that year.

4. A candidate who passes the Part I Examination but wishes to repeat his third year owing to change of major/minor subject may be allowed to do so provided that he enters for the Part I Examination of the following year which will be counted as second attempt and that he shall be required to sit for all the appropriate papers set for the candidates of that year unless exemption from taking certain papers has been obtained from the Board on the recommendation of the Boards of Studies or Committees of the candidates' major/minor subject concerned.

5. No candidates shall be allowed to sit for the Part I Examination more than twice. Any second attempt should be made in the year immediately following his failure, unless permission of the Board for postponement is obtained.

Section V - Part II Examination

1. A candidate who passes all the papers he enters for in the Part II Examination will be awarded a Pass in the Part II Examination.

2. A candidate who fails in one or two papers and yet reaches for all the papers he enters for in the Part II Examination an average mark not lower than the pass mark as decided upon by the Board may be awarded a Recommended Pass in the Part II Examination, subject to the conditions that the total number of failure papers in the Part I and Part II Examination together does not exceed two and that the result of any one paper does not fall below a minimum mark determined by the Board.

3. A candidate who fails to qualify for a degree shall be permitted to enter the Part II Examination of the following year, in which case he shall be required to sit for all the appropriate papers set for the candidates of that year.

4. No candidates shall be allowed to sit for the Part II Examination more than twice. Any second attempt should be made in the year immediately following his failure, unless permission of the Board for postponement is obtained.

Section VI - Award of Degrees

Degree awarded to successful candidates shall be classified as follows:-

- (a) Bachelor's Degree with Honours, 1st Class
- (b) Bachelor's Degree with Honours, 2nd Class Upper Division
- (c) Bachelor's Degree with Honours, 2nd Class Lower Division
- (d) Bachelor's Degree with Honours, 3rd Class
- (e) Bachelor's Degree

Section VII --- Subjects of the Examination

1. The subjects of the Examination shall be as follows:---

Arts	Business Administration	Science	Social Science
Chinese Literature English Fine Arts French German History Japanese Music Philosophy Religious Knowledge Theology Translation	Accounting Financing General Business Management International Business Marketing Personnel Manage- ment	Biochemistry Biology Chemistry Computer Science Electronics Mathematics Physics	Economics Geography Government & Public Administration Journalism Psychology Sociology Sociology Social Work
* 1 44702442011			

2. A list of approved minor subjects for each of the subjects taken as major is shown below:---

Major Subject Approved Minor Subject Accounting Any subject other than Accounting provided consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies concerned **Biochemistry** Any subject other than Biochemistry provided consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies concerned Biology Biochemistry Chemistry Computer Science Geography Mathematics Physics Psychology Chemistry Accounting Biochemistry Biology

Computer Science Electronics

Finance

Major Subject

Approved Minor Subject

General Business Management Geography Government & Public Administration International Business Marketing Mathematics Personnel Management Physics Psychology

Chinese Literature

English

Computer Science English Fine Arts (excluding practical papers) French Geography German Government & Public Administration History Japanese Journalism Music Philosophy Psychology Religious Knowledge Sociology Theology Translation

EconomicsAccounting, Computer Science, Finance, General Business
Management, Geography, Government & Public Ad-
ministration, History, International Business, Marketing,
Mathematics, Personal Management, Psychology, Socio-
logy and other subjects that the Boards of Studies in
Economics considers relevantElectronicsAny subject offered by a Board of Studies other than

Any subject offered by a Board of Studies other than Electronics, provided approval of the Boards concerned is obtained

Any subject other than English provided consent has been obtained from the Board of Studies

Finance Any subject other than Finance provided consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies concerned

French

Major Subject

Fine Arts

Chinese Literature English

Approved Minor Subject

Geography German History Japanese Journalism Music Philosophy Psychology Religious Knowledge Theology Translation

General Business **Administration**

Geography

Government & Public Administration

History

Any subject other than General Business Administration provided consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies concerned

Biology Chemistry Chinese Literature Computer Science Economics English French German History Japanese **Mathematics** Philosophy Physics Psychology Sociology Theology Translation

Candidates majoring in Government & Public Administration may take any subject offered by other Board of Studies as their minor

Chinese Literature **Computer Science** Economics English Fine Arts (excluding practical papers) Major Subject

Approved Minor Subject

	•
	French and
	Geography
	German
	Government & Public Administration
	Japanese
	Journalism
	Philosophy
	Psychology
	Religious Knowledge
	Sociology
	Theology
	Translation
	Tansiadon
International Business	Any subject other than International Business provided
	consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies
	concerned
Journalism	Candidates majoring in Journalism may take any subject
	offered by any other Boards of Studies as their minor
	, ,
Marketing	Any subject other than Marketing provided consent has
	been obtained from Boards of Studies concerned
Mathematics	Any subject offered by a Board of Studies other than
	Mathematics, provided approval of the Boards concerned
	is obtained
Music	Any subject offered by a Board of Studies other than
	Music provided approval of the Boards concerned is
	obtained
Demonstration and the second second	
Personnel Management	Any subject other than Personnel Management provided
	consent has been obtained from Boards of Studies
	concerned
Philosophy	Chinese Literature
	Computer Science
	Economics
	English
	Fine Arts (excluding practical papers)
	French
	German
	Government & Public Administration
	History
	Japanese
	,- <u>r</u>

Major Subject

Approved Minor Subject

	Journalism Mathematics Psychology Religious Knowledge Sociology Theology
Physics	Biochemistry Biology Chemistry Computer Science Electronics Mathematics
Religious Knowledge	Any subject other than Theology provided consent has been obtained from the Board of Studies
Social Work	Any subject as their minor provided consent has been obtained from the Board of Studies
Sociology	Any recognized discipline in the University subject to the approval of both major and minor Boards of Studies
Theology	Any subject other than Religious Knowledge provided consent has been obtained from the Boards of Studies concerned

Section VIII - Disqualification

The Board may at its discretion disqualify a candidate who breaks any of the Regulations or Instructions made for the conduct of this Examination.

REGULATIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY LIBRARY SYSTEM

The University Library System consists of the University Library and the three College Libraries of Chung Chi College, New Asia College and United College. The University Library is primarily for the research and advanced studies of the faculty, staff and graduate students of the University, although undergraduates may also use it. The College Libraries stock the reference books, the basic textbooks and supplementary materials for undergraduate courses in the curricula of the Colleges. The following Regulations apply in all four Libraries, and all members of staff of the University Library System are expected to enforce them. The Senate Library Committee reserves the right to revise these regulations at any time.

The hours of opening are posted at the entrance of each Library and are adapted to the semester schedules. The Libraries are closed on public holidays.

LIBRARY PRIVILEGES

Library privileges are personal and individual. They may not be transferred to, or used on behalf of, other persons.

Privileges of the Library fall into three categories:

1. Borrowing

Borrowing privileges are extended to all registered students and academic/ administrative staff of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Others may apply to the University Librarian for special Borrowers' Cards. Clerical staff, technicians and spouses of the faculty and administrative staff of the University may also apply to the University Librarian for borrowing privileges.

2. Reading

The privilege of reading is extended to visiting scholars, to researchers and to graduates of this University upon application to the University Librarian. Reserve books, however, are for the exclusive use of students and faculty of the University.

3. Privileges of special facilities

Carrels: Not reserved for any category of Library user, carrels are available for the convenience of all.

Faculty Studies in the University Library: On application to the University Librarian, Assistant Lecturers (and above) may reserve a Study for three months, renewable if its use justifies it. Others who are engaged in research may also apply.

Seminar Rooms in the University Library: Upon application to the University Librarian, a Seminar Room may be reserved for a lecture or for a series of lectures or meetings which would benefit from the use of library materials and resources.

Photocopying: Upon request at any of the Libraries, a reader may obtain at cost photocopies of materials, provided there is no infringement of copyright.

Interlibrary loans: The reference librarians will attempt to obtain from other libraries books which are not owned by the University Library System and which cannot be readily purchased.

ADMISSION TO THE LIBRARIES

Every user of the Libraries must show a University Identification Card, a Borrower's Card or a Reader's Card at the Control Counter. Applications for Borrowers' Cards and Readers' Cards are made at the Circulation Desk.

Borrowers' Cards and Readers' Cards are not transferable and must be produced upon request. Loss of a Borrower's Card must be reported to the Library immediately; a duplicate card may be issued two weeks after the loss is reported. Only one duplicate will be granted within a semester. Change of address should also be reported to the Library as soon as possible.

Visitors, accompanied by a person entitled to use the Libraries, may be admitted with the permission of the Librarian or a deputy.

All Library users must enter and leave through the entrances and exits designated for these purposes.

BORROWING REGULATIONS

Borrower Categories

Users of the University Library System to whom the borrowing privilege is accorded are grouped into the following categories:

- 1. Registered students of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
 - a) Undergraduate students.
 - b) Graduate students; tutors/demonstrators who are registered students working part-time.

186

PART V REGULATIONS

- 2. Faculty members: all teaching staff, including *full-time* tutors/demonstrators.
- 3. Administrative staff: administrative assistants and above.
- 4. CUHK graduates: Upon payment of a fee of \$50 per annum.
- 5. Special categories:
 - a) Clerical staff and technicians, with the recommendation of their division heads.
 - b) Spouses of the faculty and administrative staff.
 - c) Others, upon special application.

Categories 1, 2 and 3 who identify themselves at the Circulation Desk may obtain an Intercollegiate Borrowing Card.

Borrowing Limits

Individuals may borrow within the limits of the following schedule:

Category 1a. Undergraduate students: 10 volumes (books) for two weeks.

Category 1b. Graduate students, part-time tutors/demonstrators: 15 volumes (books) for one month.

Categories 2-3. Faculty members and administrative staff: 30 volumes may be borrowed for one semester, although they should be returned as soon as they are no longer required. *Bound periodicals* and non-current single issues may be borrowed for periods of three days. *Current periodicals* may be borrowed for overnight use only.

Category 4. CUHK graduates: 3 volumes (books) for two weeks.

Category 5a. Clerical staff and technicians: 5 volumes (books) for two weeks.

Category 5b. Spouses of the faculty and administrative staff: 1 volume (book) for two weeks.

Category 5c. Others, according to special arrangement.

All books taken from the bookstacks must be charged at the Circulation Desk. Reserve Books must be charged at the Reserve Book Counter; there are varying borrowing limits on these books.

Books obtained on interlibrary loan are borrowed through the courtesy of other libraries and their restrictions as to loan period and renewal are therefore observed. Usually the loan period is two weeks and the books may have to be used only in the Library. Photocopies of periodical articles may be obtained at cost in lieu of the whole volume or issue.

Reference books, rare books, microforms and other audio-visual materials do not circulate.

Renewals

Borrowers may renew loans for two additional periods. To avoid fines renewals must be made on or before the last date of the initial loan period. Borrowers, with the exception of Categories 2-3 must renew their loans at the Circulation Desk of the issuing Library.

Faculty members and administrative staff who require a book for more than one semester may renew it in writing. After two renewals, however, the book must be returned to the library shelves for at least one month so that it may be available to others; it may not be borrowed by the same individual within that period.

No book may be renewed if it is required by another person.

Recall

Circulating books and journals to be put on reserve for courses are subject to recall at any time. All other loans are subject to recall after two weeks (the initial loan period). Borrowers should respond to a recall promptly.

Books which are urgently required for brief consultation and which have been on loan for less than two weeks may be recalled for a period of one day.

Overdue

The last date of the loan period is stamped on the date due slip at the back of each book loaned. When the loan period expires, an overdue notice is sent to all categories of borrowers. However, the responsibility of returning books on time lies with the borrower.

Fines

All categories of borrowers except 2 and 3 who keep books beyond the loan period are subject to a fine of HK\$0.50 per book per day. A fine of HK\$0.50 per hour will be charged for each reserve book overdue.

Losses

Borrowers who fail to return books or who return books damaged beyond repair will be charged the cost of replacement (including binding) in addition to the processing cost of HK\$10.00 and any accumulated fine. Damaged books and marked pages should be reported to the Librarian as soon as noticed.

CONTROL COUNTER

Under normal circumstances, all parcels, brief cases, bags, umbrellas, cameras, etc., should be deposited on entering the Library. No food or beverages may be taken into the Library. On leaving the Library, all books, etc., must be inspected.

LOSS OF PRIVILEGES

People who are engaged in noisy activities outside a Library building will be refused admission to the Library.

Minor infractions, such as smoking, shouting and other disturbances, are forbidden in all parts of the Libraries. The Librarian or an appointed deputy may expel from the building for the remainder of the day any person who is acting to annoy others or who is damaging books or other property in the Library. Payment must be made to cover all damages.

A gross breach of the Regulations may subject the borrower to a loss of library privileges.

- a) Overdue books After normal recall procedures, a written warning will be sent. If this is ignored, borrowing privileges will be withheld in all the Libraries until the return of the book(s) and the payment of accrued fines.
- b) Payment of charges If a person refuses to pay any outstanding charges (fines, replacement costs of damaged book or repair of damaged property), all the Libraries will withhold his borrowing privileges until the account is cleared.

Repeated offenses may lead to a total loss of the privilege of using the Libraries' facilities.

PART VI

GRADUATES HONORIS CAUSA

r.

GRADUATES HONORIS CAUSA

Doctors of Laws (LL.D.)

BLACK, Sir Robert Brown, G.C.M.G., O.B.E., M.A.	1964
CHERN Shiing-shen, D.Sc.	196 9
Cox, Sir Christopher William Machell, G.C.M.G.,	
M.A. Hon. D.C.L. D.Litt., LL.D.	1968
CROZIER, Douglas James Smyth, C.M.G., B.A., LL.D.	1969
Lord Fulton of Falmer, M.A.	1964
FUNG, The Hon. Sir Kenneth Ping-fan, C.B.E., K.St.J., D.Soc.Sc., J.P.	1968
Gordon, The Hon. Sir Sidney Samuel, C.B.E., C.A., J.P.	1970
KAN, The Hon. Sir Yuet-keung, C.B.E., B.A., LL.D., J.P.	1968
KERR, Clark, Ph.D.	1964
Kwan, The Hon. Sir Cho-yiu, C.B.E., LL.B., J.P.	1964
LEE Jung Sen, B.A., O.B.E.	1974
LEE, Richard Charles, The Hon., C.B.E., M.A., LL.D., J.P.	1964
LEE Quo-wei, The Hon., O.B.E., J.P.	1972
LEE Tsung-dao, Ph.D.	1970
L1 Choh-hao, Ph.D.	1970
LIN Chia-chiao, B.Sc., M.A., Ph.D.	1973
LIN Tung-yen, B.S., M.S.	1972
PEI Ieoh-ming, M.Arch.	1970
PHILIPS, Sir Cyril Henry, Ph.D., D.Litt.	1971
ROBINSON, Kenneth Ernest, C.B.E., M.A., F.R.Hist.S., J.P.	1969
TANG Ping-yuan, The Hon., C.B.E., B.S., J.P.	1968
TRENCH, His Excellency Sir David Clive Crosbie, G.C.M.G.,	
M.C., M.A., LL.D.	1968
Woo Pak Chuen, LL.B., Ph.D., C.B.E., J.P.	1974
Wu Chien-shiung, Ph.D., D.Sc.	1969
YANG Ching Kun, B.A., M.A., Ph.D.	1974
YOUNG-HERRIES, Michael Alexander Robert, O.B.E., M.C., M.A., J.P.	1973
YUNG Chi Tung, B.Sc., Ph.D., LL.D., O.B.E., J.P.	1974

Doctor of Social Science (D.S.Sc.)

Ho Sin-hang, M.B.E.

1971

Printed by Local Property & Printing Co., Ltd., H.K.

~ ~

